






















































































































































































































































































































































































RESOLUTION NO. 2016-8-1 
 

RESOLUTION OF APPLICATION BY THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REQUESTING THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 
COMMISSION OF SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY TO 
INITIATE PROCEEDINGS FOR THE CONSOLIDATION 
OF THE CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT AND THE  INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES 
AGENCY, A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District (IEUA) 
desires to initiate proceedings pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government 
Reorganization Act of 2000, commencing with Section 56826.5 of the California Government 
Code, for the consolidation of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD) and IEUA; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, CBWCD’s service area is wholly contained within the service area of IEUA, 
and the area of the proposed consolidation is inhabited, and a map showing the legal boundaries 
of IEUA is attached hereto as Appendix E in the Plan for Service (Exhibit A), and by this reference 
are incorporated herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desired that the proposed consolidation be subject to the following terms 
and conditions: 
 

1. IEUA shall provide for an orderly transition of the assets, liabilities, agreements, staff and 
activities from CBWCD to IEUA, as shown in the Plan for Service accompanying this 
Resolution, which Plan for Service is attached hereto as Exhibit A and by this reference 
incorporated herein. 

 
2. IEUA shall establish an Advisory Board on conservation comprised of the Board of 

Directors of CBWCD beginning on the effective date of the consolidation, with duties and 
terms as shown in the Plan for Service accompanying this Resolution. 
 

3. IEUA shall employ each regular employee of the CBWCD beginning on the effective date 
of the consolidation determined by the Local Agency Formation Commission of San 
Bernardino County (LAFCO). 
 

4. IEUA shall establish a special general ledger account in IEUA’s annual budget to track 
where CBWCD assets and tax revenue is spent, with the understanding that all funds 
generated by local taxes will be spent on local services; and   

 
WHEREAS, the principal reasons for the proposed consolidation are as follows: 
 

1. Under its principal act, the Municipal Water District Law of 1911 which commences with 
California Water Code Section 71000, IEUA is authorized to provide the services currently 
provided by the CBWCD.   

 



Resolution No. 2016-8-1 
Page 2 
 

2. IEUA has the legal authority and responsibility to manage the groundwater resources of 
western San Bernardino County in accordance with the Orange County Judgment (Orange 
County Water District v. City of Chino et al., April 17, 1969).   
 

3. CBWCD’s authorized functions and services, included in the San Bernardino LAFCO 
Policy and Procedure Manual, Section VI – Special Districts, could be assumed by the 
overlying agency (IEUA) that has the same authorized functions and services. 
 

4. The services provided by CBWCD benefit only a portion of the Chino Basin area, which 
is the groundwater basin that underlies western San Bernardino County, whereas services 
provided by IEUA benefit the majority of the Chino Basin area. 
 

5. The consolidation will eliminate redundant operating expenses, saving just under $1.1 
million annually, and improve comprehensive water resource management and benefit 
groundwater producers, the public and other governmental and municipal agencies.   

 
6. The consolidation will provide greater public accountability by eliminating one 

governmental entity and redundancy of jurisdictions, and will result in better integration of 
regional programs and transparency in government decision-making. 

 
7. As stated in the May 2015 LAFCO Service Review for Water Conservation within the 

Valley Region, “LAFCO staff’s position is that the best option for continuing the level of 
service offered for the entire West Valley would be for the Chino Basin WCD to 
consolidate with the IEUA.”; and 
 
WHEREAS, a sphere of influence review was completed for the CBWCD and LAFCO 

Resolution No. 3203 was adopted on September 16, 2015, amending the sphere of influence for 
the CBWCD to be coterminous with the sphere of influence of IEUA.  This action coincides with 
LAFCO staff’s recommendation to consolidate the two western county agencies; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is desired that LAFCO commence proceedings for the consolidation of 
CBWCD into IEUA, pursuant to the provisions of Part 3 of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local 
Government Reorganization Act of 2000, commencing with Section 56650 of the California 
Government Code; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is desired that IEUA be named the successor agency, conducting itself 

under the Municipal Water District Law of 1911, commencing with Section 71000 of the 
California Water Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the consolidation is an organizational or administrative activity that will not 

result in any direct or indirect negative environmental impacts, as noted in the February 28, 2015 
Environmental Recommendation conducted by Tom Dodson & Associates (Exhibit A, Appendix 
F),  thus exempting the consolidation from environmental review pursuant to Section 15378 (b)(5) 
of the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines; and 

 
 
 



Resolution No. 2016-8-1 
Page 3 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, IEUA shall indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County of San Bernardino from any 
legal expense, legal action, or judgment arising out of the Commission's affirmation of this 
consolidation, including any reimbursement of legal fees and costs incurred by the Commission. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the IEUA Board of Directors that this Resolution of 
Application is hereby adopted and approved, and LAFCO is hereby requested to take proceedings 
for consolidation of the two districts as authorized and in the manner provided by the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000.   
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is hereby authorized and 
directed to take any additional actions that may be necessary to assist LAFCO in proceeding with 
the proposed consolidation. 
 
 ADOPTED this 17th day of August, 2016. 

  
________________________________   
Terry Catlin 
President of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the  
Board of Directors thereof                     

ATTEST: 
 

 
_____________________________ 
Steven J. Elie 
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the  
Board of Directors thereof 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 
  



Resolution No. 2016-8-1 
Page 4 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA     ) 

) SS 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO  ) 
 
   

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2016-8-1, was adopted at a regular 

Board Meeting on August 17, 2016, of said Agency by the following vote: 

 
 
 AYES:   
  

NOES:   
 
ABSTAIN:  
  

 ABSENT:  
       ___________________________________ 
       Steven J. Elie 

Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 



EXHIBIT A 



PLAN FOR SERVICE 

Proposed Consolidation 
of the  

Inland Empire Utilities Agency, 

A Municipal Water District 
and the  

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 

Prepared for: 

Local Agency Formation Commission for San Bernardino County 

215 North D Street, Suite 204 

San Bernardino, CA  92415-0490 

Prepared by: 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

6075 Kimball Avenue 

Chino, CA  91708 

August 17, 2016



 

i 
 

 

Table of Contents 

Section: Page 

CERTIFICATION OF PLAN OF SERVICE ................................................................................................. V 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ..................................................................................................................1 

2.0 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................7 

3.0 SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED ...........................................................................................................8 

3.1 Comparisons of Powers and Authorities ............................................................................................ 8 

3.2 Agency Overview .............................................................................................................................. 12 

3.3 Continuance of CBWCD Activities and Management Agreements ................................................... 14 

3.4 Other IEUA Water Management Responsibilities ............................................................................. 22 

3.5 Benefit to Groundwater Basin Stakeholders .................................................................................... 23 

4.0 FACILITY CONDITIONS 24 

4.1 Condition of Recharge Facilities ........................................................................................................ 24 

4.2 Facility Maintenance and Capital Needs ........................................................................................... 24 

4.3 Long-term Infrastructure Management ............................................................................................ 24 

5.0 SERVICE COSTS AND REVENUES 25 

5.1 Projected Costs to Provide Services .................................................................................................. 25 

5.2 Projected Revenue ............................................................................................................................ 28 

6.0 TRANSITION PLAN  30 

6.1 Chino Basin Water Conservation District Staff ................................................................................. 30 

6.2 CBWCD Management Accounts ........................................................................................................ 34 

6.3 Transfer of Assets and Liabilities ....................................................................................................... 34 

7.0 OPERATIONS OF SUCCESSOR DISTRICT 38 

7.1 Employees’ Responsibilities .............................................................................................................. 38 

7.2 Successor Agency Project Responsibilities........................................................................................ 40 

8.0 CONCLUSION 43 

 

 

  



 

ii 
 

Tables 

Table 3.1, IEUA Functions and Service Authorized by LAFCO ....................................................................... 8 

Table 3.2, CBWCD Functions and Services Authorized byLAFCO ................................................................. 8 

Table 3.3, Services Authorized by California Water Code ............................................................................ 9 

Table 3.4, Powers Authorized by California Water Code............................................................................ 10 

Table 3.5, IEUA/CBWCD Service Area Boundaries ...................................................................................... 11 

Table 3.6, CBWCD Owned Recharge Basins ................................................................................................ 17 

Table 3.7, Community Participation and Sponsorships .............................................................................. 19 

Table 3.8, Consolidated Services and Activities .......................................................................................... 22 

Table 5.1, Budget Comparison and Cost Savings ........................................................................................ 26 

Table 5.2, Consolidated Expense Items ...................................................................................................... 27 

Table 5.3, Budget Revenue Comparison ..................................................................................................... 28 

Table 5.4, CBWCD Fund Reserves…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..29 

Table 6.1, Employee Benefits Comparison…………………………………………………………………………………………….31 

Table 6.2, CBWCD Current Assets………………………………………………………………………………………………………….35 

Table 6.3, CBWCD Non-Current Assets…………………………………………………………………………………………………..35 

Table 6.4, CBWCD Current Liabilities…………………………………………………………………………………………………..…36 

Table 6.5, CBWCD Non-Current Liabilities………………………………………………………………………………………………36 

Table 6.6, CBWCD General Fund Balance……………………………………………………………………………………………….37 

Table 7.1, Staff Position Equivalencies………………………………………………………………………………………………..…41 

Table 7.2, Staff Project Support…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….42 

 

 

 

 Figures 

Figure 1 – Consolidated Boundary Map 

Figure 2 – IEUA and CBWCD Facility Locations 

Figure 3 – IEUA Facilities 

Figure 4 – CBWCD Facilities 

Figure 5 – CBWCD Water Conservation Center Campus 

Figure 6 – IEUA Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park 

Figure 7 – Comparison of Audited Balance Sheets 

Figure 8 – IEUA Organizational Chart 

Figure 9 – CBWCD Organizational Chart 

Figure 10 – Consolidated Organizational Chart  

 



iii 

Appendices

APPENDIX A:  Service Review for Water Conservation in the Valley Region - Executive Summary
APPENDIX B:  Champion Newspaper Group – Articles of Reference 

APPENDIX C:  Four Party Agreement 

APPENDIX D:  CBWCD Staff Policy Manual 

APPENDIX E:  Consolidated Map of Legal Boundaries 

APPENDIX F:  Environmental Recommendation from Tom Dodson 



 

iv 
 

Acronyms and Abbreviations 

AF Acre Feet  
AFY Acre Feet per Year 
CBWCD Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
COE Community Outreach and Education 
FY Fiscal Year 
GRCC Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee 
IEUA Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
LAFCO Local Agency Formation Commission 
LEAP Landscape Evaluation Audit Program 
MW Megawatt 
PPA Power Purchase Agreement 
SARCCUP 
SBCFCD 

Santa Ana River Conservation and Conjunctive Use Program 
San Bernardino County Flood Control District 

TEAM Santa Ana Watershed Action Team 
WCD Water Conservation District 
  

  



 

v 
 

CERTIFICATION OF PLAN FOR SERVICE 

I hereby certify that the facts, statements and information presented in this Plan for Service are true and 

correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.   

 

 

_______________     _________________________________ 

Date       Signature of Applicant 

      

 

       _________________________________ 

       Printed Name and Title 



1 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On May 20, 2015, the Local Agency Formation Commission for San Bernardino County (LAFCO) approved 

Agenda item #9, LAFCO 3174, Service Review for Water Conservation within the Valley Region.    

LAFCO staff’s report to the Commission states: 

Given the determinations presented in the service review report, it is LAFCO staff’s position that the 

Commission should support one of two options: 

 The consolidation of the two Water Conservation Districts into a single Water Conservation

District serving the entirety of the Valley region…

 The two water conservation districts should consolidate with its respective overlaying

municipal water district.

The May 20, 2015 staff report further states: 

For the West Valley, efforts and sentiments to dissolve the Chino Basin WCD date back to 1969 

based on the reasoning that the District’s functions and services could be assumed by an 

overlying agency that has the same authorized functions and services (IEUA or Flood Control 

District).  Given the information gathered and the determinations of this service review, LAFCO 

staff’s position is that the best option for continuing the level of service offered for the 

entire West Valley would be for the Chino Basin WCD to consolidate with the IEUA. 

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District (IEUA/Agency) strongly concurs with the 

LAFCO staff that the best option for continuing and improving the level of service for the entire west 

valley is for the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD/District) to consolidate with IEUA.  The 

primary reasons include: 

1. The majority of the services currently provided by CBWCD to its 113-square miles service area
duplicate the programs delivered by IEUA to the entirety of the 242-square mile west valley –
a service area that fully encompasses CBWCD’s boundaries.

Both IEUA and CBWCD were originally formed to ensure current and future water needs of their 

respective service areas would be met.  Today, the three primary functions of CBWCD are to provide 

groundwater recharge, water conservation and public education programs. 

In contrast, IEUA’s primary functions, as a wholesale water and regional sewage service provider, are to 

secure and supply imported water, collect and treat wastewater, produce high quality renewable 

products; such as, recycled water, compost and energy, and promote sustainable use of groundwater 

and development of local water supplies including conservation.  Today, IEUA’s programs have evolved 

into a sophisticated and cost-effective blend of regional services that integrate all forms of water and 

resource management (conservation/education and water-use efficiency, stormwater management, 

groundwater recharge, recycled water, supplemental water supplies, groundwater desalination, 

compost production for a “healthy soils” amendment, disposal of non-reclaimable industrial water and 



 

2 
 

brine to protect the groundwater basin, and renewable energy production).   IEUA is recognized as a 

statewide leader in water-use efficiency, water management and sustainability programs, and has 

received numerous local, state and federal awards for these programs. 

The comparison of CBWCD’s current functions with the services offered by IEUA contained in this 

document underscore the extent to which CBWCD’s existing programs duplicate or are extensions of 

IEUA’s activities: 

 Groundwater Recharge:  IEUA currently manages 29 groundwater basins, including the 
operation of the eight groundwater recharge basins owned by CBWCD.  In addition, IEUA and 
Watermaster have a joint recharge permit from the Regional Water Quality Control Board for 
recharge of imported, storm and recycled water.  CBWCD’s involvement is limited to providing 
landscaping services and their participation, along with IEUA, in the “Four Party Agreement.”  
This agreement outlines the procedures for the collaborative operation and maintenance of all 
the facilities needed to implement the Chino Basin Recharge Master Plan. 
 

 Water Conservation Services:  The CBWCD provides landscape audits and installations, along 
with technical training in landscape efficiency services.  The landscape audit program was 
developed by CBWCD at IEUA’s urging, which included the start-up “train the trainer” grant 
from the California Department of Water Resources that IEUA prepared as a joint IEUA-CBWCD 
effort.  Today, IEUA offers the landscape audit program to its region by “outsourcing” these 
services to CBWCD.   This regional program integrates with and directly supports other IEUA-
sponsored conservation programs.  In addition, IEUA funds and manages non-landscape-based 
regional water-use efficiency grants and programs that CBWCD does not provide.  These 
broader conservation programs benefit the entire west valley, including taxpayers within 
CBWCD’s service area. 
 

 Water Education Services:  The CBWCD completed the renovation of its Water Conservation 
Center Campus, which includes their water-wise demonstration garden, in 2013.  The District 
conducts workshops, hosts public events and field trips and showcases landscape designs that 
capture stormwater on site and that reduce water usage.  IEUA offers a very similar array of 
programs at its 22-acre Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park.  Constructed in 2007, the 
Park and grounds that surrounds IEUA’s platinum-LEED® headquarters showcase native and 
water conserving landscaping, as well as demonstration methods for stormwater management 
and water quality improvements.  Both agencies have facilities for outdoor education and school 
trips.  Both offer conservation education workshops, expert demonstrations, poster contests, 
and public events.  The annual Landscape and Water Conservation Fair hosted at CBWCD is 
jointly funded by IEUA and CBWCD with participation by all of IEUA’s member agencies. 
 

 Community Participation and Regional Engagement:  The CBWCD and IEUA have extensive 
overlapping memberships and activities.   Two-thirds of CBWCD memberships duplicate IEUA’s.  
Regional activities are also duplicated, including participation in the Chino Basin Watermaster 
(Watermaster) where both agencies are party to the Watermaster agreement.  IEUA currently 
serves as Chair of the Watermaster Board.  IEUA’ s regional engagement extends beyond 
CBWCD through its participation on the Boards of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (MWD), Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority, and Inland Empire Regional Compost 



 

3 
 

Authority, and engagement with the Santa Ana River Watershed Action Team, Santa Ana River 
Conservation and Conjunctive Use Program, and Chino Basin Desalter Authority. 
 

2. The financial analysis, based upon information provided by CBWCD, shows that the proposed 
consolidation of the District into IEUA will save taxpayer money and improve management of 
these financial resources. 

 

The financial statements provided by CBWCD were evaluated by IEUA to determine whether cost and 

management efficiencies would be attained through the consolidation proposal.  Two conclusions were 

reached: 

 The proposed consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA would result in estimated annual savings of 
$1,083,905, even after funding CBWCD’s current activities included in CBWCD’s Fiscal Year (FY) 
2016/17 budget.  

 

The CBWCD and IEUA programs were combined and the consolidated FY 2016/17 budgets for CBWCD 

and IEUA were then compared to evaluate potential cost savings.  In this assessment, it was assumed 

that all CBWCD programs would be implemented as identified in its FY 2016/17 budget.  In addition, all 

CBWCD staff would be retained and they would receive equivalent, or better, compensation and 

benefits.  Similarly it was assumed that the CBWCD Board of Directors would be reconstituted as an 

Advisory Board on Conservation, maintaining their current benefits and receiving the same 

compensation for their activities as IEUA’s Board of Directors. 

The estimated annual savings of $1,083,905 reflects the elimination of CBWCD’s overhead costs that 

duplicate IEUA expenditures.  The primary categories of expected savings are professional fees and 

services ($431,700), Director’s Fees and Costs ($350,100), Materials and Supplies ($214,550), and Office 

and Administration ($80,000).  There are modest savings projected in the categories of Benefits, 

Operating Fees, Financial Expenses, and miscellaneous costs. 

 The proposed consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA would eliminate CBWCD’s growing structural 
budget shortfall and the continued depletion of their reserves, which will benefit taxpayers. 

 

Over the past eight years, CBWCD expenses have exceeded revenue in aggregate by nearly $7 million.  

During this time, roughly $6 million was invested in the construction of CBWCD’s Water Conservation 

Center Campus that was completed in 2013.    

 

 

 

 

 



 

4 
 

Comparison CBWCD Total Revenues and Total Expenditures 

 

The remaining revenue shortfall appears to be driven by recent increases in Salaries & Benefits and 

Materials & Services categories.  Currently, the District’s FY 2016/17 budget shows operating expenses 

of about $3 million (including capital outlays and excluding depreciation costs), which means that 

CBWCD will have $565,000 in expenses over the anticipated total revenue of $2.5 million.  This 

estimated shortfall will be covered by CBWCD fund reserves.   

CBWCD Total Operating Expenses 

 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

FY
2009/10

FY
2010/11

FY
2011/12

FY
2012/13

FY
2013/14

FY
2014/15

FY
2015/16

FY
2016/17

Total Expenditures Total Revenues

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

FY
2009/10

FY
2010/11

FY
2011/12

FY
2012/13

FY
2013/14

FY
2014/15

FY
2015/16

FY
2016/17

Salaries & Benefits Basin & Garden Maintenance

Public Education Materials & Services



 

5 
 

Assuming future operating expenses (Salaries & Benefits and Materials & Services) increase at the same 

pace as they are currently, total revenues, comprised primarily of property taxes, will continue to fall 

short.  This means that, similar to FY 2015/16 and FY 2016/17, CBWCD’s fund reserves will have to be 

used in the future to backfill budget shortfalls.  This is not a sustainable fiscal practice.   

The estimated cost savings from the proposed consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA would eliminate the 

District’s structural revenue shortfall and still result in sufficient remaining revenue to augment FY 

2016/17 conservation programs. This underscores the point that the result of the proposed 

consolidation would be a net financial benefit to the ratepayers. 

3. The proposed consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA will result in better integration of regional 
programs and transparency in government decision-making. 

 

Consolidation would demonstrate to the residents of San Bernardino County that decision makers 

actively strive to implement policies with good governance and stewardship of public funds in mind.  

Streamlining would provide greater transparency in the structure of governance in the west valley, 

leading to enhanced programs and services for ratepayers.  A more understandable process of water 

conservation within IEUA’s service area would lead to better communication on water-use efficiency 

education and outreach programs.   

As a voting member of Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), IEUA has access to 

numerous MWD conservation, education and rebate programs that are implemented in the Chino Basin.  

These regional programs combined with IEUA’s own investments in water-use efficiency and 

conservation education are key to attaining drought resiliency in western San Bernardino County.  In FY 

2015/16 alone, IEUA received approximately $8 million in regional benefits from MWD to use for 

regional conservation programs.  In addition, due to the significant size of IEUA’s service area and 

population, IEUA has access to larger amounts of grant funding.  These programs contribute greatly to 

long term water savings in the region and provide significant benefits to IEUA’s ratepayers. 

The Proposed “Plan for Service”  

This document provides the programmatic and financial evaluation upon which the proposal to LAFCO 

initiating the consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA is based.  The proposed “Plan for Service” includes a 

detailed assessment of the services which will be provided by the consolidated agencies and how those 

services will be sustainably funded.  It also demonstrates that all taxpayers in the west valley will enjoy 

enhanced programs at a reduction from current costs. 

The key findings of the proposed Plan for Service and our proposal to LAFCO are the following: 

1. CBWCD’s authorized functions and services, included in the San Bernardino LAFCO Policy and 
Procedure Manual, Section VI – Special Districts, could be assumed by the overlying agency (IEUA) 
that has the same authorized functions and services. 
 

2. IEUA is authorized to provide all of the services currently being provided by CBWCD (Section 3.1). 



 

6 
 

3.  IEUA will continue to manage the operations and maintain all CBWCD groundwater recharge 

basin facilities for the benefit of the entire Chino Basin (Section 3.3). 

4.  The current combined revenue of the consolidated agencies is more than sufficient, without 

depleting CBWCD reserves, to finance all current CBWCD activities, and support integration and 

expansion of water-use efficiency, water conservation education and outreach, groundwater 

recharge and water storage in the region. It is IEUA’s intent to use all funds generated from 

CBWCD’s service area will be spent to benefit those same ratepayers.  All activities will be 

funded without depleting reserves to balance the budget (Section 5.2).   

5.  IEUA will implement an efficient transition plan to meet the goals of the consolidation and will 

assume all rights, responsibilities, properties, contracts, personnel, assets and liabilities of 

CBWCD (Section 6.2). 

6.  All CBWCD employees shall become employees of IEUA, maintaining all fringe benefits currently 

provided to them, or IEUA’s benefits, whichever is greater (Section 6.1). 

6.  The current CBWCD Board will become an Advisory Board on Conservation to the IEUA Board of 

Directors to benefit from their knowledge of conservation issues, and shall receive the IEUA 

director stipend of $225.00 per meeting, with a maximum of 10 meetings per month, as well as 

maintain the current fringe benefits offered to the CBWCD Board Members, or IEUA’s benefits, 

whichever is greater (Section 6.1). 

Summary 

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency strongly concurs with the LAFCO staff that the best option for 

continuing and enhancing the level of service offered for the entire west valley in a cost-effective, 

regionally integrated manner is to consolidate the Chino Basin Water Conservation District to 

consolidate into IEUA.    

As stated by LAFCO staff in its May 20, 2015 Service Review: 

Consolidation offers the greatest level of benefit for resource management, seamless 

operations, and standardized coverage… The redundancies for multiple elected and 

appointed officials as well as leadership staff would be eliminated.  It would be expected 

that a single agency could use resources more effectively, and water education activities 

could consolidate thereby resulting in a single, streamlined message.   

 

 

 

  



 

7 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION 

The Plan for Service (Plan) for the proposed consolidation of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District 

(CBWCD/District) into the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District (IEUA/Agency) has 

been prepared for submission to the Local Agency Formation Commission for San Bernardino County 

(LAFCO) as part of a consolidation application pursuant to Government Code Section 56653(a).   

Pursuant to the San Bernardino LAFCO Policy and Procedure Manual Section VI – Special Districts, 

CBWCD’s authorized functions and services could be assumed by the overlying agency (IEUA) that has 

the same authorized functions and services. 

This Plan clearly identifies how the functions and services will be enhanced and improved under a 

consolidated organization, including the reduction of costs, promoting open communication and 

transparency and improving services to the community.  The Plan will also provide LAFCO, public 

agencies, affected property owners and residents, and other interested persons with information 

regarding how services will be provided following the proposed consolidation.   

Included in this report are: 

 A description of the enhanced services to be provided; 

 An overview of recharge facilities, their condition and a management plan;  

 Projected reduction in service costs and increased revenue savings; and  

 Transition Plan for a well-organized consolidation of IEUA and CBWCD.   

Upon the effective date of the consolidation, IEUA will be solely responsible for providing the services 

described in this Plan.  All services currently provided by the CBWCD will be continued or enhanced after 

the consolidation takes place.  In addition, significant organizational and resource management 

efficiencies, as described in more detail on the following pages, will be achieved through the 

consolidation.   

  



 

8 
 

3.0 SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED 

Executive Summary #1: The majority of the services currently provided by CBWCD to its 113-square miles service area 
duplicate the programs delivered by IEUA to the entirety of the 242-square mile west valley – a service area that fully 
encompasses CBWCD’s boundaries.   

 

3.1 Comparison of Powers and Authorities 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District (IEUA/Agency) and Chino Basin Water 

Conservation District (CBWCD/District) were formed under different principle acts in the California 

Water Code, Section 71000 et seq. and Section 74000 et seq., respectively.  These acts contain certain 

differences that are highlighted below to assure Local Agency Formation Commission for San Bernardino 

County (LAFCO) that all services and functions conducted by CBWCD will continue once the 

consolidation is approved.   

Table 3.1 IEUA Functions and Services Authorized by LAFCO 

IEUA 
Function Services 

Water   Water conservation activities 

 Water education programs 

 Wholesale imported water 

 Develop recycled water infrastructure 

 Develop local water resources 
 

Sewer  Regional wastewater treatment agency 

 Own and operate five regional wastewater recycling plants (methane gas 
generated from plants is used to power IEUA facilities) 

 Dispose of non-reclaimable industrial water and brine 

 Regional distribution of recycled water 

 Co-owns (with LACSD) and operates composting facility to recycle biosolids 
 

Total Basin 
Management 

 Manage the operations of 29 groundwater basins, including eight owned 
by CBWCD 

 Recycled water recharge 
 

 

Table 3.2 CBWCD Functions and Services Authorized by LAFCO 

CBWCD 
Function Services 

Water Conservation   Contract with IEUA to manage the operations of the eight basins owned by 
CBWCD 

 Provide landscaping services to the basins owned by CBWCD 

 Water conservation education 



9 

Table 3.3, Services Authorized by California Water Code, summarizes generalized categories of services 

granted to municipal water districts and water conservation districts by their respective principle acts. 

Table 3.3 Services Authorized by California Water Code 

Service 
Municipal Water District Law of 

1911 
(Water Code §71000 et seq.) 

Water Conservation District 
Law of 1931 

(Water Code §74000 et seq.) 

Appropriate, acquire, and 
conserve water and water rights 

Yes Yes 

Sell, deliver, and distribute 
water 

Yes Yes 

Construct, operate, and 
maintain hydroelectric power 

facilities 
Yes Yes 

Flood Control No Yes 

Construct, acquire, maintain, 
and operate recreational 

facilities 
Yes Yes 

Implement urban water 
conservation programs 

Yes No 

Flood control is the only function that conservation districts are authorized to perform that is not 

already included in those authorized for municipal water districts, as illustrated above.  Based on a 

thorough review of the applicable California Water Code sections, all services currently provided by 

CBWCD can be provided by IEUA under the authorities granted by the Municipal Water District Law of 

1911 once the proposed consolidation is approved. 

Since 1976, LAFCO has had exclusive authority over activation of all services and functions of special 

districts, including water conservation districts and municipal water districts, pursuant to Government 

Code Section 56821.  LAFCO has determined that the only remaining water-related power that CBWCD 

is performing, per the Water Conservation District Law of 1931, is replenishment of the basin.  However, 

operation of the CBWCD-owned replenishment basins is currently carried out by IEUA through 

cooperative agreements.   

In accordance with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 

(Government Code Sections 56000 et seq.), LAFCO has conducted service reviews for the CBWCD and 

IEUA.  As part of these reviews, LAFCO reviewed existing authorized services and functions and modified 

them as appropriate for both agencies.     

IEUA’s leadership role in water supply and resources is formalized by the appointment of IEUA as a 

representative on the Chino Basin Watermaster Board, with an IEUA Board member currently serving as 

its Chair.  CBWCD also participates in various Watermaster meetings and collaborations.  To accomplish 

the services listed in Table 3.1, the applicable Water Code sections provide administrative powers to 

both municipal water districts and water conservation districts.   



 

10 
 

Table 3.4, Powers Authorized by California Water Code, summarizes and compares the relevant powers 

authorized under each principle act.   

Table 3.4 Powers Authorized by California Water Code 

Power/Authority 
Municipal Water District Law 

of 1911 
(Water Code §71000 et seq.) 

Water Conservation District 
Law of 1931 

(Water Code §74000 et seq.) 

Enter into contract for water and 
other related facilities 

Yes Yes 

Issue bonds Yes Yes 

Levy and collect a groundwater 
charge 

No Yes 

Set water rates Yes Yes 

Exercise the right of eminent 
domain 

Yes Yes 

Commence, intervene in 
proceedings related to water rights 

adjudication 
Yes Yes 

Exercise powers expressly granted 
or necessarily implied 

Yes No 

As with the comparison of the authorized services, it can be seen that the powers authorized by the 

Water Code are quite similar between the two different types of districts.  The only difference identified 

is that conservation districts, unlike municipal water districts, are provided the authority to levy and 

collect a groundwater charge on groundwater production within their boundary.  However, 

groundwater production within the Chino Basin is overseen by the Chino Basin Watermaster and 

CBWCD does not currently levy a groundwater charge within their boundaries.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

11 
 

Table 3.5 IEUA/CBWCD Service Area Boundaries 

 
 



 

12 
 

3.2 Agency Overview 

IEUA encompasses 242-square miles and serves approximately 870,000 people in the cities of Chino, 

Chino Hills, Rancho Cucamonga, Fontana, Montclair, Ontario, and Upland, as well as Monte Vista Water 

District, Cucamonga Valley Water District, Fontana Water Company, Water Facilities Authority, and all of 

the unincorporated areas of western San Bernardino County.  CBWCD encompasses 113-square miles 

and serves approximately 458,000 people; this includes the entire cities of Montclair and Chino, portions 

of the cities of Chino Hills, Upland, Ontario, Rancho Cucamonga, and some of the unincorporated areas 

of western San Bernardino County.  The consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA will not require changes to 

the current IEUA service area boundary because CBWCD’s boundary is wholly contained within the IEUA 

boundary.  The geographic extent of IEUA and CBWCD service area boundaries, along with the Chino 

Basin area, is shown in Figure 1 – Consolidated Boundary Map, while the individual facilities are 

reflected in Figure 2 – IEUA and CBWCD Facility Locations, Figure 3 – IEUA Facilities, and Figure 4 – 

CBWCD Facilities.   

Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

IEUA, originally called the Chino Basin Municipal Water District 

(CBMWD), was formed in 1950 by popular vote of its residents to 

become a member agency of the Metropolitan Water District of 

Southern California for the purpose of importing water under the 

Municipal Water District Law (Water Code Section 71000 et seq).  

In 1998, CBMWD officially changed its name to the Inland Empire 

Utilities Agency, to reflect the changes in CBMWD’s mission. 

IEUA has adopted the following mission statement: 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency is committed to meeting the needs of the region by 

providing essential services in a regionally planned and cost effective manner while 

safeguarding public health, promoting economic development and protecting the 

environment.  Key areas of service: 

 Securing and supplying imported water. 

 Collecting and treating wastewater.   

 Producing high-quality renewable products such as recycled water, compost and 

energy. 

 Promoting sustainable use of groundwater and development of local water 

supplies. 

Since its formation in 1950, IEUA significantly expanded its water and wastewater utility services.  These 

now include production of recycled water, distribution of imported and recycled water supplies, regional 

sewage utility services, composting of municipal biosolids, desalination of groundwater supplies, 

stormwater management, disposal of non-reclaimable industrial wastewater and brine, and programs to 

encourage water conservation and education, including water-efficient landscaping demonstrations and 



 

13 
 

a suite of water-use efficiency programs.  IEUA’s 242-square mile service area covers the majority of the 

Chino Basin. 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 

CBWDC was formed in 1949 and has a goal to protect the Chino Groundwater Basin in order to 

guarantee that current and future water needs will be met.   

CBWCD has adopted the following mission statement:  

The Chino Basin Water Conservation District is a public agency whose goal is the 

protection of the Chino Groundwater Basin in order to guarantee that current and future 

water needs will be met.  The Basin is protected by the capture and percolation of waters 

through the District’s network of channels, basins and spreading grounds.  Water 

conservation education is provided to the individuals and organizations within the service 

area to further promote the efficient use of our water resources.   

The District overlaps the western portion, or approximately 113-square miles, of the Chino Basin.  The 

District’s service area includes all or portions of the cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Montclair, Ontario, 

Rancho Cucamonga, and Upland, and unincorporated areas of western San Bernardino County.  

Additionally, the District’s primary function has evolved into providing water conservation education to 

individuals and organizations within the Basin to further promote the efficient use of local water 

resources.   

 

 

  



 

14 
 

3.3 Continuance of Chino Basin Water Conservation District Activities and Management 

Agreements 

Upon consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA, the Agency will continue all services that are currently 

provided by CBWCD and efficiently integrate them into its current education outreach and water 

management programs.  The following provides more detailed information regarding the specific service 

areas and responsibilities which IEUA will continue after the consolidation: 

Water Education and Outreach 

Description: One of CBWCD’s core functions is to provide water education and outreach to 

approximately 458,000 people within its service area.  The District takes a two-part strategy which 

addresses current needs for better, more efficient outdoor water practices and helps to ensure that 

water-wise practices become the new normal for the next generation.   

Many of the District’s education programs are located at their Water Conservation Center Campus as 

depicted in Figure 5 – CBWCD Water Conservation Center Campus.  This campus includes classrooms 

for school field trips, a Water Wise Demonstration Garden, a multi-use building, and a Wilderness Park.  

Events held in the park include the District’s Earth Day field trip and the annual Landscape and Water 

Conservation Fair, which is funded by IEUA and CBWCD with participation by all of IEUA’s member 

agencies.   

CBWCD also sponsors a poster contest for grades K-12 at schools located within their boundaries.  Each 

winning student receives $250, and the teachers of each winner’s class receives $1,000 worth of school 

supplies. 

CBWCD’s Education Grant is open to high school and college students who are permanent residents 

within the boundaries of the district and who are pursuing a degree related to, or identified with, water.  

Students do not have to attend school in California to be eligible for the grant, which is up to $5,000.   

Status: In fall 2013, the District completed the redesign its Water Conservation Center Campus to 

achieve the objectives listed above.  The District currently provides field trips to schools within its 

boundaries at no cost, with schools and groups outside its boundaries welcome if they cover their own 

transportation costs.  The Water Conservation Center Campus, which includes the Water Wise 

Demonstration Garden, the Wilderness Park, landscape design room, board room, demonstration 

parking lot, educational lobby exhibits, and the education building, are open to drop-in visitors from 

Monday to Saturday throughout the year.   

In 2016, CBWCD awarded $25,000 to five students who submitted applications for their education grant.  

Their poster contest was budgeted at $23,900 for FY 2015/16 to pay for awards and program expenses. 

IEUA has recently become aware of LAFCO approving a contract between CBWCD and the Inland Empire 

Resource Conservation District to provide water conservation education, outreach and training.  IEUA 

will review the contract provisions post consolidation to determine the best use of resources for 

education outreach. 



 

15 
 

Post Consolidation: IEUA also provides a range of programs for 

students ranging from kindergarten through 12th grade.  These 

include Water Discovery field trips to the Chino Creek Wetlands 

and Educational Park (partially funded by a grant from the State 

Water Resources Control Board) as depicted in Figure 6 – IEUA 

Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park, a popular, two-

day Earth Day event attended by thousands of residents every 

year, creating and administering the Garden in Every School® 

program, and sponsoring the annual Water is Life poster 

contest, National Theater for Children, and Solar Cup 

competition, among other programs.   

IEUA also provides tours of their facilities, including the headquarters complex, Regional Water 

Recycling Plants and Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park, to interested groups of all ages.  The 

headquarters complex is one of the largest public landscapes in southern California to use native plants 

and to have integrated stormwater management, including restoration of natural drainage and the 

creation of wetlands and riparian habitat, on the property.  The state-of-the-art treatment plant tours 

educate the community about the wastewater treatment process and recycled water usage.  The park 

facilities serve as a demonstration site for native landscapes, low impact development and the use of 

wetlands to improve water quality. 

IEUA will continue its Water is Life poster contest in lieu of CBWCD’s poster contest.  IEUA's poster 

contest’s winning entries are submitted to Metropolitan Water District of Southern California for 

participation in the Southern California regional poster contest.  In addition, IEUA’s contest represents a 

significant savings of public dollars (IEUA - $1,100/ CBWCD - $23,900). 

Although IEUA does not sponsor its own educational grant program, it has a leadership role in the Water 

Education Water Awareness Committee (WEWAC), of which CBWCD is currently a member.  WEWAC 

sponsors a Water Scholar Program that provides $500 scholarships for high school seniors living in the 

service areas of IEUA and Three Valleys Municipal Water District who are planning to attend a two or 

four year college.  Last year, WEWAC awarded $1,500 in scholarships. 

Additionally, in 2015 IEUA developed, and continues to fund, a regional drought campaign with outreach 

throughout its service area, maintains an active online presence to spread the water conservation 

message through regular posts on the IEUA website, Facebook, YouTube, and Twitter.  IEUA maintains 

an educational blog to provide updates on events, news, education programs, drought, and water 

conservation tips. 

IEUA will continue to offer these services and will continue operation of CBWCD’s Water Conservation 

Center Campus. 

 

 



16 

Landscape Evaluation, Education and Design Services 

Description: CBWCD provides a Landscape Evaluation and Audit Program (LEAP) to assist commercial, 

residential and institutional customers with water-use reduction actions and opportunities.  Initially, 

funding for this program, which started in 2007, came from a grant from the Department of Water 

Resources, which was a partnership between CBWCD and IEUA.  The grant was for five years, with 

current funding inside CBWCD’s service area coming from the District.  Outside of CBWCD’s boundaries, 

funding is provided by IEUA.  Each audit evaluates irrigation efficiency and identifies areas for 

improvement, as well as providing information on available programming options.   

The Qualified Water Efficient Landscaper (QWEL) program is an EPA WaterSense labeled certification 

that provides approximately 20 hours of education focused on water efficient principles.  The District 

provides this training in both English and Spanish to landscape professionals, businesses and individuals 

who might benefit from training in water efficient practices.  QWEL classes are currently offered through 

the district for a fee of $150 per attendee, and in 2016 CBWCD began outsourcing the classroom 

instruction. 

CBWCD has a landscape design room at their Water Conservation Center where homeowners can bring 

pictures of their current landscaping and work with staff on designing irrigation layouts, plant selection 

and overall site design.  The District also offers a variety of professional and residential workshops 

throughout the year and conducts monthly mulch giveaways. 

Status: During Fiscal Year 2015/16, the CBWCD performed 74 total landscape evaluations, with a total 

potential water savings of approximately 58 acre-feet per year, a $42,224 savings based on MWD’s Tier 

II water rates.  

IEUA contracts with CBWCD to administer landscape and irrigation audits outside of CBWCD’s service 

area boundaries.  Current contracts between IEUA and CBWCD include: 

 Implementation and completion of landscape audits within the IEUA service area for customer

sites currently identified as potentially significant water conservation candidates,

 Residential landscape training program,

 Water-use monitoring for IEUA’s water-use efficiency locally implemented programs, and

 Garden in Every School® field and labor support services within the IEUA service area.

In part through the contracts described above, IEUA offers a suite of water use efficiency programming 

which focus on enhanced efforts to improve landscape management and reduce outdoor water use.  

These programs include direct customer installation of high efficiency irrigation technologies, landscape 

evaluations and consultations, turf removal, high efficiency sprinkler nozzle and weather based irrigation 

controller rebates and vouchers, as well as high efficiency toilet and clothes washer rebates.   

Post Consolidation:  IEUA will absorb existing CBWCD program staff and continue to provide region-

wide landscape program services. 



 

17 
 

Recharge Facilities Operations and Maintenance 

Description: CBWCD owns eight groundwater recharge basins which capture stormwater, dry weather 

flow, recycled water, and imported water.  Five of the basins are in Montclair, two are in Upland and 

one is in Ontario.  Table 3.6, CBWCD Owned Recharge Basins, below, shows the size and capacity of 

each of these basins.   

Table 3.6 CBWCD Owned Recharge Basins 

Basin 
Property Area 

(Acres) 
Storage Capacity 

(Acre Feet) 

Brooks 21 503 

College Heights-East 19 104 

College Heights-West 12 106 

Ely #3 17 136 

Montclair #1 15 134 

Montclair #2 19 242 

Montclair #3 11 49 

Montclair #4 13 97 

 

CBWCD does perimeter landscaping at four of their basins, and provides full landscape services at their 

other four basins; however, IEUA manages the operations, including the recharge of recycled water, 

stormwater and imported water, at all of these basins.  The District recently completed a landscape 

beautification project at College Heights - West to incorporate drought-tolerant landscaping. 

Status: From Fiscal Year 2005/06 through Fiscal Year 2015/16, these basins captured and recharged an 

average of 1,850 acre-feet of stormwater and dry weather flow, 4,637 acre-feet of imported water and 

1,274 acre-feet of recycled water.   

The District completed the Montclair Basins Improvement Project at all four Montclair basins to improve 

the function of this system by replacing water sensor infrastructure and grading the basin slopes to 

restore recharge rates.  CBWCD owns the street frontage area adjacent to Turner Basin #1, which is 

owned by San Bernardino County Flood Control District.  IEUA allowed CBWCD to connect to IEUA’s 

recycled water pipelines at Turner Basin #1, providing the connection and water at no cost, which 

eliminated the demand for potable water for irrigation at this site.    

The groundwater recharge program currently operates on an annual budget of approximately $1.5 

million, and approximately $600,000 per year is spent on basin-specific operation and maintenance 

activities. 

 

 

 



 

18 
 

Post Consolidation: IEUA manages operations at 29 

groundwater recharge basins, which have contributed 

greatly to IEUA’s goal of drought-resiliency in the 

region.  Through the construction of recycling plants 

and recycled water infrastructure, new recharge 

basins, and desalters, IEUA has been able to rely on 

local water supply for 70% of the region’s water needs. 

 

LAFCO’s Service Review found that IEUA already plays a significant role in recharge accounting, 

operating and maintaining the CBWCD basins.  IEUA’s activity roles at CBWCD basins are as follows: 

 IEUA only 

o Stormwater passive capture and active diversion and volume accounting 

o Imported water delivery and volume accounting 

o Basin slope, floor and infrastructure area weeding 

o Operate and maintain groundwater recharge communication and infrastructure 

o Operate and maintain diversion infrastructure 

o Biological surveys and biological permitting 

o Operations and maintenance permitting with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and the 

Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

o Recycled water delivery and volume accounting (at basins receiving recycled water) 

 CBWCD only  

o Perimeter landscape (four basins), full landscape services (four basins) and property 

maintenance 

o Contracts vector inspection and control through West Valley Mosquito and Vector 

Control District (as needed) 

Upon consolidation, IEUA will continue to manage the operations of the eight CBWCD basins, including 

responsibility for the services currently being provided by CBWCD.  

  



19 

Community Participation and Sponsorships 

Table 3.7 Community Participation and Sponsorships 

Organization IEUA CBWCD 

Association of California Water 
Agencies 

Yes Yes 

Association of California Water 
Agencies – Delta 

Yes 

Association of San Bernardino 
County Special Districts 

Yes Yes 

American Water Works 
Association 

No Yes 

California Landscape 
Contractors Association 

No Yes 

California Groundwater 
Coalition 

Yes 

California Special Districts 
Association 

Yes Yes 

California Urban Water 
Conservation Council 

Yes Yes 

International Society of 
Arboriculture 

No Yes 

Irrigation Association No Yes 

Montclair Chamber of 
Commerce 

Yes Yes 

Ontario Chamber of Commerce Yes Yes 

Chino Valley Chamber of 
Commerce 

Yes Yes 

Southern California Water 
Committee 

Yes Yes 

Urban Water Institute No Yes 

Water Education Foundation Yes Yes 

Water Education Water 
Awareness Committee 

Yes Yes 

Denotes organization that is no longer in existence. 



 

20 
 

Additional IEUA Memberships: 

 Alliance for Water Efficiency 

 Bioenergy Association of California 

 California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) 

 California Association of Stormwater Quality Agencies 

 California Wastewater Climate Change Group (absorbed by CASA) 

 Isle Utilities 

 National Association of Clean Water Agencies 

 National Safety Council 

 National Water Research Institute 

 Southern California Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

 Southern California Salinity Management Coalition 

 WateReuse Association 

 WateReuse Foundation 

 Fontana Area Chamber of Commerce 

 Rancho Cucamonga Chamber of Commerce 

 Upland Chamber of Commerce 

 Public Agency Risk Managers Association 

Post Consolidation: IEUA will absorb any memberships, and continue any sponsorships, that CBWCD 

currently funds or in which they participate. 

Chino Basin Watermaster 

Description: The Chino Basin Watermaster (Watermaster) was established as a result of the 1978 

Judgment adjudicating the Chino Basin.  It functions to ensure that the provisions of the Basin Judgment 

are equitably and efficiently enforced.  Watermaster consists of stakeholders from diverse backgrounds, 

organized into three “pools.”  These three pools consist of agricultural, overlying non-agricultural and 

appropriative.   

Status: CBWCD is a party to the Watermaster agreement, and continues to participate in the Chino 

Basin Watermaster Recharge Master Plan Update by attending Watermaster meetings and collaborating 

with IEUA on possible cost-effective projects.  As described on the next page, CBWCD, IEUA, 

Watermaster, and the San Bernardino County Flood Control District (SBCFCD) entered into the Four 

Party Agreement to cooperatively implement the Recharge Master Plan and ensure that recharge 

capabilities are maintained into the future.   Both IEUA and CBWCD are participants in the Chino Basin 

Groundwater Recharge Program, which aims to increase recharge of stormwater, imported water and 

recycled water throughout the Chino Basin.  

 



 

21 
 

Post Consolidation:  IEUA will continue its leadership role with the Watermaster.  Watermaster holds 

the water right permits to divert, percolate and store stormwater.  Operation of the facilities is handled 

by IEUA, many of which defer to SBCFCD during storm periods.  Watermaster and IEUA have a joint 

recharge permit from the Regional Water Quality Control Board for the recharge of imported, storm and 

recycled water.   

Four Party Agreement 

Description: The Agreement for Operation and Maintenance of Facilities to Implement the Chino Basin 

Recharge Master Plan is commonly known as the Four Party Agreement (Appendix C).  The four parties 

that have signed this agreement are: SBCFCD, Basin Watermaster, CBWCD, and IEUA.   The purpose of 

this Agreement is to ensure cooperation between the four agencies to safeguard the Chino Basin’s 

recharge capabilities to meet its future needs.  This Agreement also requires the agencies to create a 

Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC) to provide coordination of the operation, 

maintenance and use of the facilities for groundwater recharge in the Chino Basin.  The Agreement also 

allows the use of certain flood control and other sites for groundwater recharge operations and sets 

forth the conditions for reimbursement of operation and maintenance costs to the parties.   

Status: The Four Party Agreement was signed in 2003, and expires on December 31, 2032.  The GRCC 

meets quarterly, or as needed, to facilitate coordination of groundwater recharge operations in the 

Chino Basin, and is led by IEUA staff as the operator. 

Post Consolidation: IEUA is one of the members of the Four Party Agreement, and will continue to 

participate in GRCC meetings as necessary to ensure sustainable management of groundwater resources 

in the Chino Basin.   

The following table lists services which CBWCD is currently providing and other activities in which 

CBWCD is participating.  The anticipated changes as a result of the consolidation are also listed in Table 

3.8, Consolidated Services and Activities.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

22 
 

 Table 3.8 Consolidated Services and Activities 

Service/Activity Result of Consolidation Change 

Water Education and 
Outreach 

IEUA already offers a portfolio of water education and 
outreach programs that cover all of western San Bernardino 

County, and, with the addition of CBWCD staff, will 
continue to provide this programming. 

Activities will be 
enhanced by 

inclusion of some of 
CBWCD’s programs. 

Landscape Evaluation, 
Education and Design 

Services 

IEUA currently outsources landscape audits and 
installations within IEUA’s service area to CBWCD and other 
contractors.  All of these activities, including trainings, will 

continue under IEUA’s leadership. 

Activities will be 
enhanced by the 

addition of classes to 
IEUA’s conservation 

program. 

Recharge Facilities 
Operations and 

Maintenance 

IEUA already manages and operates 29 groundwater, which 
includes CBWCD’s eight basins.  Landscaping services will 

continue at these locations. 
None 

Community Participation 
and Sponsorships 

Any events or sponsorships that are not currently 
duplicated by IEUA will be integrated into current programs 

and budgets to ensure continued participation. 

The addition of new 
memberships and 

sponsorships. 

Chino Basin Watermaster 

IEUA already participates in all planning activities and 
meetings, with an IEUA Board Member currently serving as 

Chair of the Watermaster Board.  IEUA will continue this 
leadership role. 

IEUA will represent 
the combined 

agencies. 

Four Party Agreement 
IEUA and CBWCD are both participants in the Four Party 

Agreement, and IEUA would solely represent existing IEUA 
and CBWCD interests post-consolidation. 

IEUA will represent 
the combined 

agencies. 

 

3.4 Other IEUA Water Management Responsibilities 

Regional Efforts to Reduce Consumption 

Santa Ana River Watershed Action Team (TEAM) 

IEUA is a member of the TEAM, which was formed to actively identify large-scale water supply and 

reliability projects that will benefit the entire Santa Ana watershed.  A key goal of this program is to 

secure funding for these projects, as well as administering programs that will support water 

conservation, including turf removal programs and water use efficiency education.   

Santa Ana River Conservation & Conjunctive Use Program (SARCCUP) 

SARCCUP is a multi-agency, watershed-wide program developing water supply for dry years by storing 

excess water accumulated during wet years.  The TEAM developed a list of projects and programs 

collectively known as SARCCUP to apply for a $55 million grant in 2015 that was awarded in early 2016.  

The funding will benefit all of the projects and programs identified by the TEAM as essential to water 

reliability in the region.   

 



 

23 
 

Water Saving Garden Friendly 

IEUA is a participant in the IE Water Saving Garden Friendly program, which was 

developed to assist consumers in locating and learning about climate-appropriate 

plants for the Inland Empire through appropriate labeling of plants, as well as 

landscape workshops, plant sales and online resources.   

Summary of Services Post Consolidation 

The May 2015 LAFCO Service Review found that consolidation of IEUA and CBWCD would provide even 

greater opportunities for cooperation and sharing of facilities, reducing costs and increasing efficiency 

for water conservation administration in the Chino Basin.  Thus, LAFCO staff recommended 

consolidating CBWCD into IEUA. 

3.5 Benefit to Groundwater Basin Stakeholders 

This proposed consolidation is expected to increase financial efficiency, improve comprehensive water 

resource management and benefit local groundwater producers, the public, and other government and 

municipal agencies.   

IEUA is the regional agency best suited to coordinate the management of the groundwater and surface 

water of the Chino Basin.  IEUA overlays the entirety of CBWCD and actively performs water 

conservation activities, in part through existing contracts with CBWCD.   

Under consolidation, all assets and liabilities of CBWCD would accrue to IEUA per statute.  Thus, IEUA 

would receive title to all assets of CBWCD and would become responsible for subsequent capital 

improvements required, as discussed in Section 5.  IEUA will establish a special general ledger account to 

track where CBWCD assets and tax revenue is spent.  It is IEUA’s intent that all funds generated by local 

taxes will be spent on local services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 

4.0 FACILITY CONDITIONS 

Executive Summary #1: The majority of the services currently provided by CBWCD to its 113-square miles service area 
duplicate the programs delivered by IEUA to the entirety of the 242-square mile west valley – a service area that fully 
encompasses CBWCD’s boundaries.   

4.1 Condition of Recharge Facilities 

As shown in Table 3.6, the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD/District) owns and 

maintains eight groundwater recharge basins which capture stormwater, dry weather flow, recycled 

water, and imported water to recharge the Chino Groundwater Basin.  Over the past eight years, these 

facilities have collectively collected and recharged an average of 5,980 acre feet of water per year (AFY).  

Of this amount, 1,651 acre feet (AF) was stormwater and dry weather flow; 1,509 AF was recycled 

water; and, 2,820 AF was imported water.   

4.2 Facility Maintenance and Capital Needs 

The CBWCD facilities identified in this report are in good condition and maintenance activities at 

CBWCD’s facilities are generally limited to weed abatement and landscape maintenance.   

4.3 Long Term Infrastructure Management 

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District (IEUA) already manages the operations of 

all CBWCD groundwater basins.  Post consolidation, IEUA will continue to utilize, operate and maintain 

all existing basins.   

Brooks Basin 



25 

5.0  SERVICE COSTS AND REVENUES 

Executive Summary #2: The financial analysis, based upon information provided by CBWCD, shows that the proposed 
consolidation of the District into IEUA will save taxpayer money and improve management of these financial resources. 

5.1 Projected Costs to Provide Services 

In accordance with California Government Code Section 56881(b)(1), LAFCO must make the 

determination that public service costs of a proposal are likely to be less than or substantially similar to 

costs under alternative means of providing services.  In order to best demonstrate expected costs and 

savings resulting from a consolidation of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District 

(IEUA/Agency) and the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD), a detailed, side by side 

comparison was done using the Board-adopted Fiscal Year (FY) 2016/17 budgets.  Based on a comparison 

of this data, IEUA is able to demonstrate the one-time and ongoing cost savings, as well as the post 

consolidation costs of retaining CBWCD staff and facilities.  .   

Table 5.1 provides the budget analysis.  Column 1 contains a line number for each expense item to be 

used as a reference.   Columns 2 and 3 contain the current FY 2016/17 budgets of IEUA and CBWCD, 

respectively.  Column 4 shows the total potential costs to the public prior to a consolidation, whereas 

Column 5 presents the new combined pro forma budget for the consolidated organization.  Lastly, Column 

6 is simply the difference between Columns 4 and 5, or the difference between the pro forma budget after 

consolidation and the non-consolidated budget.  Specifically, Column 6 shows the annual (savings)/costs 

to the public as a result of the proposed consolidation.  Principle assumptions used for the development 

of the IEUA pro forma budget after consolidation, on Table 5.1, include the following: 

1. At the time of consolidation, all full-time CBWCD employees shall become employees of IEUA,

and shall retain all salaries or wages and fringe benefits received prior to consolidation, or better

based on IEUA’s compensation schedules.

2. All seven CBWCD directors shall become members of an Advisory Committee on Water

Conservation to the IEUA Board of Directors and shall receive the IEUA director stipend of $225.00

per meeting, with a maximum of 10 meetings per month.  All seven CBWCD directors shall become

members of the Advisory Committee until the end of their current term of office, and will continue

to receive their current fringe benefits, or IEUA’s benefits, whichever is greater.

3. All CBWCD administrative expenses shall be absorbed by IEUA and shall be coordinated within

the existing IEUA operations structure.

4. IEUA shall continue to perform and provide all existing CBWCD public services, programs and

activities through the current IEUA operations structure.

5. All CBWCD facilities, including the Water Conservation Campus Center and groundwater recharge

basins, shall be retained and operated by IEUA.  Use of the Water Conservation Center Campus

may be assessed after the first year and make any determinations necessary to ensure further

efficiencies and cost savings.



 

26 
 

Table 5.1 Budget Comparison and Cost Savings 

 Expense Item 
IEUA 

FY 2016/17  
Budget(1) 

CBWCD                         
FY 2016/17 

Budget(2) 

Combined 
Budget 

IEUA 
 Post 

Consolidation 
Proforma 

Budget 

Estimated 
(Savings)/ 

Costs  
FY 2016/17 

1 
Director’s 
Fees/Costs 

580,423  369,000  949,423  624,323  (325,100)* 

2 Wages 29,600,092  1,135,000  30,735,092  30,735,092  0  

3 Benefits 19,607,848  465,000  20,072,848  20,047,848  (25,000)  

4 
Office & 
Administration 

2,435,101  80,800  2,515,901  2,435,846  (80,055) 

5 
Materials & 
Supplies 

3,231,941  304,550  3,536,491  3,321,941  (214,550) 

6 Insurance 840,500  36,000  876,500  845,500  (31,000) 

7 
Professional Fees & 
Services  

10,064,357  533,800  10,598,157  10,166,457  (431,700) 

8 Biosolids Recycling 4,404,158  0  4,404,158  4,404,158  0  

9 Chemicals 4,674,015  0  4,674,015  4,674,015  0  

10 Operating Fees 8,263,811  1,000  8,264,811  8,263,811  (1,000) 

11 Utilities 11,608,046  73,300  11,681,346  11,681,346  0  

12 
MWD Water 
Purchases 

35,027,752  0  35,027,752  35,027,752  0  

13 Lease & Rentals 82,020  0  82,020  82,020  0  

14 Financial Expenses 348,500  500  349,000  348,500  (500) 

15 Interest Expenses 9,669,556  0  9,669,556  9,669,556  0  

16 
Depreciation & 
Capital Clearing 0 369,955 369,955 369,555 0 

17 
Miscellaneous 
Expense 

341,300  5,000(3) 346,300  341,300  (5,000) 

18 Total Expenses $140,779,420  $3,373,905  $144,153,325  $143,039,420  ($1,113,905) 

  Total Ongoing Annual Savings to Public from Consolidation ($1,113,905)  

  Cost to Provide CBWCD Services for One Year After Consolidation $2,260,000  

 

(1) Amounts reflected in the IEUA All Funds FY 2016/17 Amended Budget adopted on June 15, 2016.  
(2) Amounts reflected in the Chino Basin Water Conservation District FY 2016/17 Budget. 
(3) Includes tax collection fees $4,000 and grant & non-grant related program expenses $1,000. 
* Assumes reduction of election expenses by $300,000 

Table 5.1 shows an ongoing annual cost savings to the public of approximately $1,113,905, as a result of 

the proposed consolidation.  The total annual ongoing cost to continue to provide the services of CBWCD 

would be $2,260,000. 



27 

The ongoing annual cost savings generally fall into the following categories. Due to the consolidation, 

there are anticipated cost savings in management, overhead and participation in local or regional 

programs.   Additionally, there will be fewer costs associated with participation in regional agencies and 

programs since a single organization will be paying dues, subscriptions and other costs.   

Expenses included in Table 5.2 below, referenced by their line number from Table 5.1, provides a more 

detailed explanation of the expense items that will result in ongoing savings or costs to IEUA. 

Table 5.2 Consolidated Expense Items 

Line 
Item 

Expense Comment 

1 Director’s Fees/Costs 

CBWCD directors shall become members of an Advisory Board on Water 
Conservation to the IEUA Board of Directors, until the end of their current 
term of office.  Savings are primarily due to the elimination of election 
expenses for CBWCD directors and fewer numbers of meetings and events. 
Included in the $325,100 cost savings, is $300,000 for CBWCD Board 
elections which will no longer be needed after consolidation.      

3 Benefits 
CBWCD worker’s compensation insurance premium of $25,000 will 
be absorbed by IEUA budget of $206,000. 

4 
Office & 
Administration 

Memberships, contributions & sponsorships, employee training, 
meetings & conferences, and other office & administrative costs will 
be absorbed by IEUA budget of nearly $995,000. 

5 Materials & Supplies 

Includes promotional & giveaway items, office furniture & computer 
equipment, small tools & equipment, operations materials & 
supplies, fleet parts & supplies, fuel and uniform & rugs costs to be 
absorbed by IEUA budget of $2.7 million. 

6 Insurance 
CBWCD liability insurance premium of $31,000 will be absorbed by 
IEUA budget of $410,000.   

7 
Professional Fees & 
Services  

Includes professional services for legal, engineering, auditing, 
accounting, landscaping, and computer system maintenance.  The 
cost savings represent redundant services, or services no longer 
needed, that will be absorbed by IEUA budget of $7.6 million.  IEUA 
will assume all District liabilities and obligations, and upon review of 
the District’s existing contracts/agreements, terminate any 
redundant services or services no longer needed based on the 
contracts’ terms and conditions. 

10 Operating Fees Redundant permits not required after consolidation. 

14 Financial Expenses Integration of banking activities will reduce related fees and charges. 

17 
Miscellaneous 
Expense 

Includes tax collection fees and grant & non-grant related program 
expenses that will be absorbed by IEUA budget. 



28 

In conclusion, the consolidation is estimated to result in a $1,113,905 annual decrease in the costs to 

provide services to CBWCD.  Furthermore, the projected $1,113,905 annual savings shown in Table 5.1 

are anticipated to continue or increase in the foreseeable future.  Over time, the annual cost savings will 

result in millions of dollars in savings. 

5.2 Projected Revenue 

Ongoing Revenues: The services currently provided by CBWCD, as described in Section 3, are funded 

primarily through annual property taxes, with some additional revenue from interest, contributions, 

grants, and other miscellaneous sources.  As with the expense items listed in Table 5.2, Table 5.3, Budget 

Revenue Comparison reflects a combined revenue budget compiled using the same methodology.   

Table 5.3 Budget Revenue Comparison 

Revenue Item 

IEUA 
FY 2016/17 

Budget(1) 

CBWCD  
FY 

2016/17 
Budget(2) 

COMBINED  
BUDGET 

IEUA Post 
Consolidation 

Proforma 
Budget 

Estimated 
(Savings)/Costs 

FY 2016/17 

1 Service Charges 70,875,436 70,875,436 70,875,436 0 

2 Sales 17,813,996 17,813,996 17,813,996 0 

3 Recycled Water 
Rebates 

28,670,598 28,670,598 28,670,598 0 

4 Other Revenue 1,250,000 3,500 1,253,500 1,250,000 3,500 

5 Interest Income 609,405 45,000 654,405 654,405 0 

6 Property Tax 44,704,800 2,338,000 47,042,800 47,042,800 0 

7 Connection Fees 20,068,020 20,068,020 20,068,020 0 

8 Contributed Capital 0 0 0 0 

9 Grants & Subsidies 10,715,256 5,000 10,720,256 10,720,256 0 

10 Other Non-
Operating Revenue 

13,827,846 78,500(3) 13,906,346 13,879,846 26,500 

Total Revenues 208,535,357 2,470,000 211,005,357 210,975,357 30,000 

Total Annual Revenue after+ Consolidation 210,945,357 

(1) Amounts reflected in the IEUA All Funds FY 2016/17 Amended Budget adopted on June 15, 2016.
(2) Amounts reflected in the Chino Basin Water Conservation District FY 2016/17 Budget.
(3) Amount includes miscellaneous income $15,000, water wise landscape workshops $2,000, qualified water efficient landscaper
fees $9,000, and Cal card incentive $500. 

Table 5.3 shows an annual ongoing revenue reduction of approximately $30,000 to the IEUA pro forma 

Budget, as a result of the proposed consolidation. 



 

29 
 

Based on the financial analysis shown above, ongoing revenues will be sufficient to finance all current 

CBWCD activities in the future.  By subtracting the total annual revenue reduction from the total ongoing 

annual expense savings, the net annual savings due to the proposed consolidation are as follows: 

Ongoing Annual Expense Savings $1,113,905 

Annual Revenue Reduction -$30,000 

Net Annual Savings from Consolidation $1,083,905 

 

As seen on the previous page, the proposed consolidation will result in net annual savings of $1,083,905 

after consolidation.  This annual amount will eliminate the need to use current CBWCD fund reserves to 

balance CBWCD’s FY 2016/2017 budget and make fund reserves available for investment in essential 

water reliability and resiliency projects, such as expansion of water use efficiency, groundwater 

recharge, water storage projects.  It is IEUA’s intent to use all funds generated from CBWCD’s service 

area will be spent to benefit those taxpayers.  All activities will be funded without depleting reserves to 

balance the budget. 

Table 5.4 CBWCD Fund Reserves 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



30 

6.0  TRANSITION PLAN 

Executive Summary #3:  The proposed consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA will result in better integration of regional 
programs and transparency in government decision-making. 

In order to effectively manage water resources in the Chino Basin and maximize benefits to the public, it 

is important that there is a timely and orderly transition for the consolidation of the Inland Empire Utilities 

Agency, A Municipal Water District (IEUA/Agency) and the Chino Basin Water Conservation District 

(CBWCD/District).   

6.1 Chino Basin Water Conservation District Staff 

All CBWCD staff will become employees of IEUA, and retain all salaries or wages and fringe benefits 

received prior to consolidation, or IEUA’s salaries and/or benefits, whichever is greater.  Assignment of 

classifications and responsibilities of the CBWCD staff will be based on their current roles, responsibilities 

and skill sets.  The integration of District staff is shown in the organization structure described in Figure 

10 – Consolidated Organization Chart.  All District staff will be relocated to IEUA facilities. 

On either (1) the day following the effective date of consolidation, or (2) the day complete personnel 

information is received from CBWCD, whichever is later, IEUA will employ each employee of CBWCD at 

an equivalent position to their current role at CBWCD.   

Table 6.1, Employee Benefits Comparison shows the benefits currently offered by CBWCD and IEUA. 

Appendix D of this document also contains specific information on the CBWCD policies and benefits 

provided below.  Section 7.0, below, contains a more detailed description as to how the consolidated 

agency will be structured and employees compensated under the new agency.  



 

31 
 

 

 

 

 

Table 6.1 Employee Benefits Comparison 

Employee 
Benefits 

CBWCD IEUA 

Retirement California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS): 
 
Tier 1: For employees in CalPERS prior to 
January 2013, the retirement formula is 
2.0% @ 60 and the District pays the 
employee portion of the CalPERS benefit. 
 
Tier 2 (PEPRA): For employees not in 
CalPERS prior to January 2013, the 
retirement formula is 2.0% @ 62 and the 
employee pays the employee portion of the 
CalPERS benefit. This benefit is provided for 
full-time and part-time staff working at least 
1,000 hours per fiscal year. 
 

California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS): 
 
Tier 1: An employee hired on or before 
December 31, 2011, will be enrolled in the 
CalPERS 2.5% @ 55 formula. As of July 1, 
2016, such employees shall contribute 7% 
toward the employee contribution.  
 
Tier 2: An employee who is a “classic” 
member who is hired on or after July 1, 
2012, will be enrolled in the CalPERS 2.0% @ 
55 formula. As of July 1, 2016, such 
employees shall contribute the full 7% 
toward the employee contribution. 
 
Tier 3 (PEPRA): An employee who becomes 
a “new” member of CalPERS for the first 
time on or after January 1, 2013 will be 
enrolled in the CalPERS 2.0% @ 62 formula. 
New members will be required to pay the 
full employee contribution.  
 
Note: CBWCD employees currently enrolled 
in the Tier 1 benefit will be placed in IEUA’s 
Tier 2 benefit.    
 
 
The Agency also participates in Social 
Security. 

Medical 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The District provides medical benefits for full 
time staff through ACWA with choices from 
Anthem Blue Cross CalCare HMO, Kaiser 
HMO, and Anthem Blue Cross Classic PPO 
plans.  Health care is 100% paid by the 
District.  Eligible part time staff is allowed up 
to $350 reimbursement for medical 
insurance upon proof of payment.  

The Agency shall make a maximum monthly 
contribution towards the cost of the 
employees’ health insurance.  The 2016 
rates are as follows, minus the minimum 
PEMHCA contribution: 

Employee only $786.00 
Employee +1 $1,049.00 
Employee Family $1,297.00 



 

32 
 

 
 
 
 

Medical (cont.) 

Health insurance is offered through CalPERS, 
and enrollment is optional with evidence of 
health coverage from another source.  
Eligible employees who waive their medical 
benefit receive a cash incentive payment. 
Coverage is effective the first day of the 
month following the date of hire.  
 
Note: Employees who are enrolled in single 
coverage and have health premiums that are 
less than $786.00 can apply the difference 
toward dental, vision and/or life. However, 
employees enrolled in Employee +1 or 
Family coverage cannot apply any excess 
amounts.  Health contribution for these two 
types of coverage is only applicable to 
health premiums and cannot be applied to 
dental, vision and/or life even if the health 
premium is less than the total contribution 
amount.     
 

Dental Dental insurance is provided from Delta 
Dental for full time staff and is 100% paid by 
the District. 

The Agency offers two dental plans – Delta 
Dental and Western Dental. Enrollment in 
one of the plans is mandatory. Coverage is 
effective the first day of the month following 
the date of hire.  Dental coverage is fully 
paid by the employee.  The 2016 rates are: 
 

2016 Emp. Only Emp. + 1 Family 

Delta  $ 43.00 $ 89.50 $ 167.10 

Western $ 14.35 $ 26.30 $ 35.10 

 
Note: Employee is responsible for premium 
unless he/she is enrolled in single coverage 
and health premiums are less than $786.00 
and the difference can be applied toward 
dental, vision and/or life. 

Vision Vision insurance is provided from VSP for full 
time staff and is 100% paid by the District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vision insurance is offered through EyeMed 
Vision Plan and enrollment is voluntary. 
Coverage is effective the first day of the 
month following the date of hire.  
 

2016 Emp. Only Emp. + 1 Family 

EyeMed  $ 8.03 $ 15.20 $ 22.33 

 
Note: Employee is responsible for premium 
unless he/she is enrolled in single coverage 
and health premiums are less than $786.00 



 

33 
 

 
 
 
 

and the difference can be applied toward 
dental, vision and/or life. 
 

Life and 
Accidental 
Death & 

Dismemberment 
Insurance 

Life insurance is 100% paid by the District 
providing $50,000 for full time staff with an 
additional Accidental Death and 
Dismemberment coverage available at the 
employees’ expense. Dependent Life 
Insurance is 100% paid by the District 
providing Spouse $1,500, Child 0-6 months 
$100, Child 6 months to 19th birthday 
$1,000. 

The Unrepresented employees are provided 
an Agency-paid $50,000 Life and AD&D 
policy. A basic $10,000 Life and AD&D policy 
is offered at the employees’ expense and 
enrollment is mandatory. Dependent 
coverage with a benefit of $1,500 is 
optional. Coverage is effective the first day 
of the month following date of hire.  

Long/Short 
Term Disability 

Insurance 

Long and short term disability insurance is 
100% paid by the District for full time staff. 

Short-term disability insurance is available 
through State Disability Insurance (SDI). 
Workers covered by SDI are covered by two 
programs: Disability Insurance and Paid 
Family Leave Insurance. SDI is employee 
funded.  
 
Regular employees are covered by an 
Agency-paid long-term disability insurance, 
which will provide income for an employee 
who is totally disabled from injury or 
accident. The basic benefit provides for 60% 
of the first $10,000 of monthly salary, 
reduced by deductible income, after a 365 
day waiting period. Coverage is effective the 
first day of the month following date of hire. 
LTD coverage is paid by the Agency. 

Holidays The District observes twelve (12) paid 
holidays throughout the year.  

The Agency offers thirteen (13) paid 
holidays - (nine (9) paid holidays + an 
additional four (4) paid floating holidays) 
are available each fiscal year.  Pro-rated 
after July 1. 

Sick Leave All salaried and hourly full-time employees 
accrue sick leave at the rate of 80 hours per 
year. 

Employees accrue 96 hours of sick leave per 
year. 

Vacation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Full-time Employees: 80 hours accrued per 
year, years 1 through 5, 120 hours accrued 
per year after 5 years, an additional day (8 
hours) for each year of service starting year 
6, up to a maximum of 20 days. 
 
Part-time Employees: Not eligible for 
vacation. (Note: Management level may 

Employees accrue 80 hours of vacation 
leave per year depending on length of 
employment, progressing to 200 hours per 
year.  
 
Unrepresented 
1st – 60th month = 80 hours per year (up to 5 
years) 



 

34 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Vacation (cont.) 

differ depending upon contract or 
negotiations at time of hire.) 

61st – 72nd month = 96 hours per year (5.01 
to 6th year) 
73rd – 84th month = 112 hours per year (7th 
year) 
85th – 108th month = 128 hours per year (8th 
– 9th years) 
109th – 180th month = 160 hours per year 
(9.01 – 14 years) 
181st – 239th month = 177 hours per year 
(15-19 years) 
240th + month = 200 hours per year (20 
years) 

Administrative 
Leave 

Administrative leave is provided to the 
Executive Director (80 hours). Upper 
management may be included in the future. 

Eligible employees will be entitled to receive 
80 hours of Executive Leave. 

Figure 10 – Consolidated Organizational Chart shows the general relationship and titles of the 

employees under the proposed consolidated organizational structure.   

Upon the effective date of the consolidation, IEUA intends to establish an Advisory Board for 

Conservation.  The CBWCD Board of Directors will serve in an advisory capacity to the IEUA Board of 

Directors.  Monthly meetings will be scheduled at the IEUA headquarters.  The IEUA Board 

Secretary/Office Manager will provide administrative support to the Advisory Committee.  Advisory 

Committee members will be reimbursed at the same rate as IEUA Board members at $225 per meeting, 

a maximum of 10 meetings per month.    

6.2 CBWCD Management Accounts 

A key objective of IEUA will be to segregate the assets transferred from CBWCD to appropriately account 

for their use and the benefit provided to the residents in the District’s and the Agency’s service area. It is 

the intent of IEUA to use all assets and future tax revenues collected from the region for the area. 

The Balance Sheets for IEUA and CBWCD are shown together in Figure 7 – Comparison of Audited Balance 

Sheets as of June 30, 2015.  Upon the effective date of consolidation, the Balance Sheet for CBWCD will 

be combined with the Balance Sheet for the IEUA.  CBWCD assets and liabilities will be tracked separately 

to account for District related activities.   

6.3 Transfer of Assets and Liabilities  

Upon the effective date of consolidation, IEUA will begin implementing an efficient transition plan in 

accordance with the goals of the consolidation.  The preliminary plan for transfer of assets and liabilities 

is as follows:  

CBWCD Current Assets 

(As shown in the CBWCD Statement of Net Position dated June 30, 2015, from the CBWCD Financial 

Statements for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015.) 



 

35 
 

Table 6.2 CBWCD Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Balance at 
6/30/2015 Transfer Action 

Cash on Hand (Petty Cash) $1,000 Transfer to designated account for District funds. 

Deposits Held with Financial 
Institutions 

$22,791 Transfer to designated account for District funds.   

Deposits Held with Cal Trust $7,521,314 Change ownership record on account. 

Deposits Held with California LAIF $6,269,378 Change ownership record on account. 

Accrued Interest Receivable $7,381 Notify payor of change in writing regarding the change. 

Accounts Receivable $26,269 Notify payor of change in writing regarding the change 

Property Taxes Receivable $37,625 Notify payor of change in writing regarding the change. 

Prepaid Expenses-ACWA Dues $11,503 Notify ACWA of the change and request reimbursement of 
any remaining amount.  Transfer to designated account for 
District funds. 

Prepaid Expenses-Other $19,811 Notify vendors of the change and request reimbursement for 
those no longer needed.  Transfer to designated account for 
District funds. 

Total Current Assets $13,917,072   

 

CBWCD Non-Current Assets 

(As shown in the CBWCD Statement of Net Position dated June 30, 2015, from the CBWCD Financial Statements for 

the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015.) 

Table 6.3 CBWCD Non-Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 
Balance at 
6/30/2015 Transfer Action 

Non-Depreciable Assets     

Land $1,486,121 Transfer title to IEUA.  The Agency will continue to utilize the 
District’s headquarters and to manage and operate the 
eight groundwater recharge basins.  Thereafter, the Agency 
may assess continued use of the headquarter facilities to 
ensure efficiencies.   

Construction-in-Process $62,954 The Agency will evaluate the projects under construction to 
determine necessary action, including; complete as 
planned, discontinue and close it out, or modify scope to 
meet new requirements.   

Depreciable Assets     

Buildings & Improvements, Net $7,318,390 Transfer title to IEUA.   The Agency will continue to utilize 
the District’s headquarters.  Thereafter, the Agency may 
assess continued use of the headquarter facilities to ensure 
efficiencies.   

Demonstration Garden, Net $1,324,987 

Equipment & Furniture, Net $39,467 

Transfer title to IEUA.   
Vehicles, Net $0 

Total Non-Current Assets, Net $10,231,919   

 



 

36 
 

CBWCD Current Liabilities 

(As shown in the CBWCD Statement of Net Position dated June 30, 2015, from the CBWCD Financial Statements for 

the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015.) 

Table 6.4 CBWCD Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Balance at 
6/30/2015 Transfer Action 

Accounts Payable and Accrued 
Expenses 

$33,149 
The Agency will assume all obligations of the District 
outstanding as of the date of consolidation.  Liabilities will 
be recorded in the Agency's financial system.   

Retention Payable $45,645 The Agency will assume all obligations of the District 
outstanding as of the date of consolidation.  As part of the 
evaluation of projects under construction, any retentions 
for completed/closed projects will be settled in full with the 
contractor.   

Accrued Wages $21,003 Any wages due to employees as of the date of consolidation 
will be paid in full to employees prior to their transfer to the 
Agency.   

Compensated Absence $39,519 The Agency will assume all obligations of the District 
outstanding as of the date of consolidation.  Record liability 
for CBWD staff compensated absences. 

Total Current Liabilities $139,316   

 

CBWCD Non-Current Liabilities 

(As shown in the CBWCD Statement of Net Position dated June 30, 2015, from the CBWCD Financial Statements for 

the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015.) 

Table 6.5 CBWCD Non-Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Balance at 
6/30/2015 Transfer Action 

Net Pension Liability(1) $285,096 

IEUA, as the successor agency in the consolidation, will 
coordinate with CalPERS to pay off CBWCD’s net pension 
liability.  Payment will be made from District reserves.  All 
District employees will be transferred into the Agency’s 
pension plan.  IEUA has informed CalPERS and will be 
coordinating with the CalPERS going forward to ensure the 
successful transfer of benefits. 

Total Non-Current Liabilities $285,096   
(1)Long term liability - due in more than one year. 

 

  



 

37 
 

CBWCD General Fund Balance 

(As shown in the CBWCD Statement of Net Position dated June 30, 2015, from the CBWCD Financial Statements for 

the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015.) 

Table 6.6 CBWCD General Fund Balance 

General Fund Balance 
Balance at 
6/30/2015 Transfer Action 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $10,231,919 Transfer to a designated District account.   

Unrestricted Net Position     

Non-Spendable $1,531,314 Transfer to a designated District account.  Reserve is 
comprised of prepaid expenses and a designation to 
support major structural failures at a set amount of 
$1,500,000.  The Agency insures over $500 million in 
infrastructure, facilities and equipment and maintains a 
reserve of $6 million to address any unforeseen events.  The 
transfer of District's assets will not affect the Agency's 
insurance coverage costs or reserve requirements.  The 
$1,500,000 designated by the District to address major 
structural failures will be reclassified to "Unassigned" 
reserves. 

Committed $3,666,770 Transfer to a designated District account.  District 
committed these reserves to recycled water conservation 
contribution program.  The Agency will utilize these 
reserves as intended by the District to support its regional 
recycled water and conservation programs.  

Assigned $6,454,625 Transfer to a designated District account.  Reserve is 
primarily comprised of recharge improvements of   
$6,000,000.  The Agency will utilize these reserves to 
support groundwater recharge in the region. 

Unassigned $2,164,566 Transfer to a designated District account.   

Total General Fund Balance $24,049,194   

 

Water Rights 

CBWCD has never had water rights in the region.  The Chino Basin did not begin the process of acquiring 

water rights until the 1980s, at which point the rights were acquired by Chino Basin Watermaster.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

38 
 

7.0  OPERATIONS OF SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

Executive Summary #3:  The proposed consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA will result in better integration of regional 
programs and transparency in government decision-making. 

 

The consolidation of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD/District) into the Inland 

Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District (IEUA/Agency) will provide benefits to the people 

who are currently serviced by both agencies.  This section provides further details as to how each service 

and function will be provided by the integrated staffs of IEUA and CBWCD.  The organizational chart will 

guide the integration of CBWCD staff members.  Figure 8 – IEUA Organizational Chart and Figure 9 – 

CBWCD Organization Chart, reflect the current positions.  Figure 10 – Consolidated Organizational 

Chart, shows the inter-relationships of the individual positions and functional teams in the consolidated 

structure.   

7.1 Employees’ Responsibilities  

To ensure realization of all potential efficiencies, IEUA will implement employee transition of all CBWCD 

employees using the organizational structure described in Figure 10 – Consolidated Organizational 

Chart.  Based on data provided to IEUA, general descriptions and levels of responsibility of each current 

CBWCD positions are provided below:  

Executive Director/General Manager: The General Manager is responsible for the management and 

execution of District activities and programs; performs the function of chief executive officer in 

supervising day-to-day activities of the District with particular emphasis on providing oversight of the 

District’s water conservation activities, personnel matters, fiscal control and safeguard the District 

assets; performs and directs other work as needed or assigned.    

Deputy Executive Director: Under the administrative direction of the Executive Director, the Deputy 

Executive Director plans, organizes, and supervises the operations and functions of the organization 

including: leadership of management team to develop and administer education and conservation 

programs, maintain budgets, motivate staff, interface with Board and act on behalf of the Executive 

Director in his/her absence. 

Administrative Assistant: The Administrative Assistant position answers directly to the General Manager 

and is responsible for general support to District management, staff, Board of Directors and public 

meetings while adhering to all Brown Act requirements; all accounting, record keeping, financial reports 

including year-end procedures and related regulatory/governmental accounting standards board (GASB) 

requirements; computer support activities; meeting all required deadlines for regulatory, financial and 

staff related activities; and oversees the activities of the Office Assistant.   

Office Assistant I: Under administrative direction, the Office Assistant I position performs a variety of 

semi-skilled and skilled duties to support office staff, including clerical duties, financial record keeping, 

greeting visitors in person and on the telephone, processing mail, making copies, filing, typing, indexing, 

ordering office supplies, janitorial work, as well as performing light maintenance at the District office.  



 

39 
 

Individuals in this position also assist the general public and school tours visiting District facilities as 

needed.  As this is an entry level position, positions assigned to this level typically perform limited or 

routine clerical and janitorial duties as well as light landscape maintenance at the District’s various 

properties.    

Conservation Programs Manager: Under the administrative direction of the Deputy Executive Director, 

the Conservation Programs Manager is responsible for conservation program development and 

implementation, horticultural activities, teaching water conservation and landscape related classes, and 

supervision of District personnel.  This includes working closely with the general public and conducting 

school tours visiting District facilities. 

Conservation Specialist II: Conservation specialists work cooperatively with other agencies and 

organizations in providing information and education related to water conserving activities performed 

by the District.  Employees in the Conservation Specialist II category interact and coordinate stormwater 

capture, and recharge and recycled/imported water recharge in District Basins with IEUA and SBCFCD 

personnel and is responsible for the District’s Optimum Basin Management Plan (OBMP) requirements.   

Conservation Technician: Primary responsibility of conservation technicians is to provide continuous 

support to the Landscape Evaluation and Audit program efforts.  This includes customer contact, 

appointment setting, field data collection, database management, and report generations.  

Conservation technicians work cooperatively with other agencies and organizations in providing 

information and education related to water conserving activities performed by the District.  Included in 

this category is support of the landscaping efforts at all properties owned by the District, outreach to the 

landscape industry, conservation grant management, landscape irrigation evaluations for external 

parties and other related responsibilities.    

Community Programs Manager: Under the administrative direction of the Deputy Executive Director, 

the Community Programs Manager is responsible to provide strategic direction and oversight of the 

District’s general public outreach and education efforts.  This includes working closely with a wide 

variety of constituents including children and adults.  Related responsibilities include promoting water 

wise landscaping best practices, conducting public outreach and education activities and general 

administrative functions, as needed. 

Community Education and Outreach Assistant II: Under general supervision, employees in the 

Community Outreach and Education (COE) Assistant classification perform a wide variety of responsible 

tasks in support of the District’s water conservation mission.  Primary responsibility is to provide 

continuous support to the District’s general public outreach and education efforts.  This includes 

working closely with a wide variety of constituents including children and adults.  Also included in this 

category are related responsibilities including: to promote water wise landscaping best practices, to 

conduct public outreach and education activities and to perform general administrative and other 

functions as needed.   

 



 

40 
 

Community Education and Outreach Intern: Interns shall be currently enrolled in college as an 

undergraduate or graduate student, or have graduated from college within the last three years.  The 

Intern will work on multiple CBWCD projects located at the District office, demonstration garden, and 

Wilderness Park.  Under general supervision and working with others, areas of responsibility may 

include but are not limited to the following: promote water wise landscaping best practices, conduct 

public outreach and education and general administrative and other functions as needed.   

Facility/Landscape Maintenance Supervisor: Under the direction of the executive director, the Facility 

and Landscape Maintenance Supervisor is responsible for the overall maintenance of the Water 

Conservation Center Campus and Water Wise Education Garden; and supervises all activities of the 

Landscape Maintenance Workers.  This position requires knowledge of woodworking, painting, welding, 

electrical, plumbing, general construction, structure maintenance, mechanical, automotive repair, and 

all aspects of landscape maintenance.    

Landscape/Maintenance Worker II: Employees at this level must be able to perform all activities of the 

Landscape/Maintenance Worker I position plus additional areas of responsibility including overseeing 

employees performing basin, garden and other District landscape projects.  This includes coordination of 

work plan for District landscape employees, establishment of landscape maintenance schedules, 

coordination of special projects, and monitoring and repairing the irrigation system.   

Landscape/Maintenance Worker I: In this entry level position, employees perform limited or routine 

assigned landscape maintenance related duties as needed at the District demonstration garden, District 

offices, or other District properties, or assigned locations with ongoing supervision.  Essential functions 

include, but are not limited to, mowing, planting, trimming, raking, watering, weeding, fertilizing, and 

renovating vegetation. 

7.2 Successor Agency Project Responsibilities   

Each of the CBWCD employees will be assigned duties that support the IEUA mission of providing 

efficient water management to its constituents.  As detailed in Section 3.2, each of CBWCD’s services 

and activities will be integrated into IEUA’s overall programs and continued by IEUA.  The teams of 

positions listed in Table 7.2, Staff Project Support, will administer and coordinate the activities of each 

program.  Each program is listed with the CBWCD employees who will provide primary and secondary 

support.  CBWCD positions and their equivalent IEUA positions, which will be filled by CBWCD staff 

following consolidation, are shown in Table 7.1, Staff Position Equivalencies. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

41 
 

Table 7.1 Staff Position Equivalencies 

 

(1) Compensation will be adjusted as needed to offset any employee pickup of retirement and/or benefits 

(2) Represents new classification to be added to IEUA’s structure and compensation will be frozen at the District’s current amount.     The Agency will periodically assess market 

data and conduct an internal equity analysis in order to determine if any future salary increases are appropriate for the Y-Rated employees. 

(3) Compensation will be frozen at the District’s current amount. The Agency will periodically assess market data and conduct an internal equity analysis in order to determine if any 

future salary increases are appropriate for the Y-Rated employees. 

(4) CBWCD intern will be subject to IEUA’s intern policy that limits the amount of hours worked to no more than 25 hours per week, without exceeding 960 hours annually. 

 

 

CBWCD TITLE 

CURRENT 
ANNUAL 
SALARY 
RANGE 

CURRENT 
ANNUAL 
SALARY IEUA TITLE 

IEUA 
ANNUAL 
SALARY 
RANGE(1) 

Executive Director $165,000  $166,650  Special Advisor on 
Conservation Programs 

$166,650 
 (Y-Rated(2)) 

Deputy Executive Director $115,000 - 
$127,500 

$122,400  Senior Environmental 
Resources Planner 

$122,400 
 (Y-Rated(3)) 

Office Assistant I $36,920 - 
$47,632 

$49,421  Administrative Assistant I $50,710 - 
$61,788 

Conservation Programs 
Manager 

$70,000 - 
$88,550 

$80,580  Facilities Specialist $67,949 - 
$82,789 

Conservation Specialist II $65,000 - 
$83,750 

$79,861  Facilities Specialist - 
Landscape 

$67,949 - 
$82,789 

Community Programs 
Manager 

$65,000 - 
$83,750 

$75,480  External Affairs Specialist 
II 

$67,949 - 
$82,789 

Community Education and 
Outreach Assistant II 

$42,120 - 
$55,744 

$45,552  External Affairs Specialist I  $50,710 - 
$61,797 

Conservation Technician II $45,760 - 
$60,008 

$54,142  External Affairs Specialist I  $50,710 - 
$61,797 

Conservation Technician I  $36,920 - 
$46,696 

$37,669  External Affairs Specialist I  $50,710 - 
$61,797 

Facility/Landscape 
Maintenance Supervisor 

$60,000 - 
$76,950 

$68,579  RW/GWR Operations and 
Maintenance Specialist 

$74,914 - 
$91,275 

Landscape/Maintenance 
Worker II 

$33,800 - 
$43,888 

$40,976  Plant Maintenance 
Worker 

$37,856 - 
$46,114 

Landscape/Maintenance 
Worker I   

$27,040 - 
$35,360 

$31,990  Plant Maintenance 
Worker 

$37,856 - 
$46,114 

Landscape/Maintenance 
Worker I   

$27,040 - 
$35,360 

$27,581  Plant Maintenance 
Worker 

$37,856 - 
$46,114 

Landscape/Maintenance 
Worker I   

$27,040 - 
$35,360 

$32,240  Plant Maintenance 
Worker 

$37,856 - 
$46,114 

Community Education and 
Outreach Intern 

$20,800 - 
$31,200 

$20,800  Intern(4) $20,800 - 
$31,200 



 

42 
 

Table 7.2 Staff Project Support 

Service/Program Staff Support 

Water Education and Outreach  Community Programs Manager 

 Community Education and Outreach 
Assistant II 

 Community Education and Outreach 
Intern 

Landscape Evaluation, Education and Design 
Services 

 Conservation Programs Manager 

 Conservation Specialist II 

 Conservation Technician I and II 

Recharge Facilities Operation and Maintenance  Landscape/Maintenance Supervisor, I and 
II 

Community Participation and Sponsorships  Community Programs Manager 

 Community Education and Outreach 
Assistant II 

 Community Education and Outreach 
Intern 

 Conservation Programs Manager 

 Conservation Specialist II 

 Conservation Technician I and II 

Chino Basin Watermaster  Executive Director 

 Deputy Executive Director 

Four Party Agreement  Executive Director 

 Deputy Executive Director 

Administrative Services  Office Assistant I 

Table 7.2 does not provide a comprehensive list of all IEUA’s activities that the combined staff will be 

required to support.  Rather, it provides a listing of all the current CBWCD activities and several IEUA 

activities that together demonstrate how the consolidated organization can effectively and efficiently 

serve the needs of the public.  As shown in Table 7.1, there are already very similar staff positions in 

both agencies and all responsibilities and activities can be maintained under a single, consolidated 

organization.    

  



 

43 
 

8.0 CONCLUSION 

Executive Summary #1: The majority of the services currently provided by CBWCD to its 113-square miles service area 

duplicate the programs delivered by IEUA to the entirety of the 242-square mile west valley – a service area that fully 

encompasses CBWCD’s boundaries.   

Executive Summary #2:  The financial analysis, based upon information provided by CBWCD, shows that the proposed 
consolidation of the District into IEUA will save taxpayer money and improve management of these financial resources. 
 
Executive Summary #3:  The proposed consolidation of CBWCD into IEUA will result in better integration of regional 
programs and transparency in government decision-making. 
 

This Plan for Service is one component of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency’s, A Municipal Water 

District (IEUA/Agency) application to consolidate with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District 

(CBWCD/District) as recommended by LAFCO staff in the Service Review on Water Conservation within 

the Valley Region.  The Plan evaluates the benefits, efficiencies and cost savings associated with the 

proposed consolidation of IEUA and CBWCD.  In agreement with the LAFCO Service Review, this 

document substantiates the benefits of the consolidation based on significant water management and 

financial efficiencies.   

CBWCD provides water conservation education and outreach within their service area in western San 

Bernardino County, which is fully encompassed within IEUA’s boundaries.  Once the proposed 

consolidation is approved, IEUA will continue to provide these services and activities.  IEUA continues to 

have a strong leadership role in water resource management within the Chino Basin and throughout the 

region, using an equitable and regionally-based approach in a cost-effective manner.  This same approach 

will be applied to CBWCD’s services, as they are integrated into IEUA’s programs. 

In conclusion, the proposed consolidation would result in a net financial gain of approximately $1,113,905 

annually due to the decrease in the current costs to provide the services currently budgeted by CBWCD.  

Additionally, ongoing revenues will be sufficient to finance all current CBWCD activities in the future.  As 

a result of verifiable efficiencies, the proposed consolidation will result in net annual savings of $1,083,905 

per year, above what would be required to continue CBWCD’s current services and activities.  

Based on the determinations included in this Plan for Service, IEUA strongly concurs with the LAFCO 

staff that the best option for continuing and enhancing the level of service offered for the entire west 

valley in a cost-effective, regionally integrated manner is to consolidate the Chino Basin Water 

Conservation District to consolidate into IEUA.    

As stated by LAFCO staff in its May 20, 2015 Service Review: 

Consolidation offers the greatest level of benefit for resource management, seamless 

operations, and standardized coverage… The redundancies for multiple elected and 

appointed officials as well as leadership staff would be eliminated.  It would be expected 

that a single agency could use resources more effectively, and water education activities 

could consolidate thereby resulting in a single, streamlined message.   

 



Montclair

Chino Hills

Chino

Ontario

Upland Rancho Cucamonga

Fontana
4TH

ARROW

EU
CL

ID
FOOTHILL

BASELINE

HOLT

CHINO

MISSION

MO
UN

TA
INCE

NT
RA

L

RIVERSIDE

CI
TR

US

EDISON

16TH

MI
LL

IK
EN

CA
MP

US

19TH

CH
ER

RY

ET
IW

AN
DA

VALLEY

RA
MO

NA

8TH
GR

OV
E

GRAND

SA
N 

AN
TO

NI
O

PHILADELPHIA

AR
CH

IB
AL

D

SAN BERNARDINO

CHINO HILLS

MILLER

VIN
EY

AR
D MERRILL

MI
LL

S

HA
VE

N

HIGHLAND

SIE
RR

A

MO
NT

E V
IS

TA

EA
ST

 E
ND

RIALTO

AR
CH

IB
AL

D
AR

CH
IB

AL
D

HA
VE

N

19TH

HA
VE

N

SIE
RR

A

O

|}þ71

Legend
CBWCD Service Area
IEUA Service Area

0 1 20.5
Miles

|}þ60

!"#$210

!"#$15

!"#$10

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
CBWCD Service Area and IEUA Service Area

Prepared by: IEUA // Date created: 08/10/16

Figure 1 - Consolidated Boundary Map



Figure 2 - CBWCD Facility Locations











Figure 3 – IEUA Facilities 
 
HEADQUARTERS BUILDING 
6075 Kimball Avenue 
Chino, CA 91708 
Tel: (909) 993-1600 
 
 
 
 
Leading by example, IEUA’s Board of Directors approved the use of LEED® design criteria for its 
headquarters (HQ) to showcase how an integrated, sustainable-designed building can create a better 
environment, conserve energy, improve productivity and contribute to the restoration of native 
landscapes. 
 
 HQ buildings, using inexpensive tilt-up construction were the first and largest public building to 

receive the Platinum rating from the United State Green Building Council’s Leadership in Energy 
and Environmental Design (LEED®). 
 

 The HQ complex is one of the largest public landscapes in southern California to use native 
plants and to have integrated state-of-the-art storm water management, including the 
restoration of natural drainage and creation of wetlands and riparian habitat, on the property.  
It serves as a 14-acre demonstration site for storm water capture, settling and treatment.  
Designed to capture a 25-year storm event onsite, and allow storm water to be treated naturally 
via swales, wetlands, and native vegetation planted specifically for that purpose.  This reduces 
pollutants in the urban run-off, which improves water quality and also reduces downstream 
flooding.   

 
 100% energy “self-sufficient” through a combination of energy conservation including a “cool 

roof” that reflects light and reduces the effect of heat absorption, a fleet of alternative fueled 
vehicles, on-site electric vehicle charging facilities, tire stops made from recycled milk 
containers, crushed high water consumption toilets used in the buildings’ foundation, and 
exterior light stay on-site, reducing light pollution. 
 

 Power is generated by solar panels located on the facility’s roof providing enough electricity to 
power 25% of office space, methane gas generated by the anaerobic digestion process at the 
wastewater treatment plant adjacent to the HQ. 
 

 Use of recycled water from IEUA’s treatment facilities and installation of high-efficiency 
plumbing fixtures, dual flush toilets and ultra-low flow urinals, reduces water consumption by 
73% compared to buildings using tradition fixtures. 
 

 Recycled water from IEUA’s treatment facilities meets irrigation and exterior non-potable water 
demands.  Over 10,000 native and drought tolerant trees, shrubs and bushes throughout the 
site further reduces water consumption; and rubber mulch is made from 100% recycled tires. 
 

 A combination of five different paving materials were used in the drive isles and parking lot to 
exhibit storm water capture and water reuse. 



 
 Extensive use of recycled materials throughout the interior and exterior HQ complex. 

 

 
 
REGIONAL PLANT NO. 1 
2662 E. Walnut St. 
Ontario, CA 91761 
Tel: (909) 947-4131 
 
Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) is located in the city of Ontario and has been in operation 
since 1948.  The plant has undergone several expansions to increase the design hydraulic domestic 
sewage (wastewater) treatment capacity to 44 million gallons per day.  The plant serves areas of Chino, 
Fontana, Montclair, Ontario, Rancho Cucamonga, Upland, and solids removed from RP-4, located in 
Rancho Cucamonga.  The plant treats an average influent wastewater flow of approximately 28 million 
gallons per day.  The plant is broken into two separate treatment section: liquids and solids. 
 
The liquid treatment section consists of preliminary screening and grit removal, primary clarification, 
secondary treatment by aeration basins and clarification, tertiary treatment by filtration and 
disinfection, and dechlorination.  Wastewater liquid is treated to California State Water Resources 
Control Board Title 22 Code of Regulations standards for disinfected tertiary recycled water. 
 
The solids treatment section begins with thickening the solids removed from the primary and secondary 
clarification processes.  The thickened solids are pumped to anaerobic digestion and then to the 



centrifuges for dewatering.  Wastewater solids are digested to a minimum Class B biosolids standard, as 
defined by the United State Environmental Protection Agency Code of Federal Regulations.  After 
dewatering, the biosolids are hauled to the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility in the city of 
Rancho Cucamonga for further treatment to produce Class A compost. 
 
 
REGIONAL PLANT NO. 2 
16400 El Prado Rd. 
Chino, CA 91708 
Tel: (909) 393-1056 
 
Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 2 (RP-2) is located in the city of Chino has been in operation since 
1960.  The plant operated both liquids and solids treatment sections, until 2002, when RP-5 was 
construction to handle the liquids treatment section portion of RP-2.  Solids are removed from Carbon 
Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) and RP-5 and treated at RP-2. 
 
The solids treatment section begins with thickening the solids removed from RP-5 and CCWRF primary 
and secondary clarification processes.  The thickened solids are pumped to anaerobic digestion and then 
to the belt processes for dewatering.  Wastewater solids are digested to a minimum Class B biosolids 
standard, as defined by the United States Environmental protection Agency Code of Federal Regulations.  
After dewatering, the biosolids are dewatered and hauled to the Inland Empire Regional Composting 
Facility in the city of Rancho Cucamonga for further treatment to produce Class A compost. 
 
The plant is within the flood zone upstream of the Prado Dam, on land leased from the US Army Corps 
of Engineers; the lease will expire in 2035.  The maximum operational water level upstream of the dam 
is anticipated to be raised to increase the available Orange County water storage.  Therefore, the lease is 
not expected to be renewed upon expiration.  The Agency plans to relocate the solids treatment to the 
RP-5 Solids Handling Facility, which is out of the flood zone. 
 
REGIONAL PLANT NO. 4 
12811 6th Street  
Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91729 
Tel: (909) 993-1755 
 
Regional Water Recycling Plant No.4 (RP-4) is located in 
the city of Rancho Cucamonga and has been in operation since 1997.  The plant 
has undergone an expansion to increase the design hydraulic domestic sewage (wastewater) treatment 
capacity to 14 million gallons per day. The plant serves areas of Fontana, Rancho Cucamonga, and San 
Bernardino County.  The plant treats the liquid portion of an average influent wastewater flow of 
approximately 10 million gallons per day. 
 
The liquid treatment section consists of preliminary screening and grit removal, primary clarification, 
secondary treatment by aeration basins and clarification, tertiary treatment by filtration and 
disinfection.  Wastewater liquid is treated to California State Water Resources Control Board Title 22 
Code of Regulations standards for disinfected tertiary recycled water.  The solids removed from RP-4 are 
conveyed by gravity through the regional sewer system to the influent of RP-1 for thickening, anaerobic 
digestion, and dewatering. 



 
 
REGIONAL PLANT NO. 5  
6068 Kimball Avenue  
Chino, CA 91708 
Tel: (909) 597-5759 or 5790 
 
Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) began operation in March 2004.  RP-5 treats 
domestic, commercial and light industrial wastewater from the cities of Chino, Chino Hills, and portion 
of Ontario.  In addition, Regional Plant No. 1 and Carbon canyon Recycling Facility have the capability to 
divert flows to RP-5. 
 
RP-5 is designed to treat a daily average flow of 15.0 million gallons per day (MGD) from RP RP-5’s 
service area, plus flows from the Regional Plant No. 2 lift station.  RP-5 includes several treatment 
processes that contribute to providing quality recycled water pursuant to the California State Water 
Resources Control Board Title 22 Code of Regulations standards for disinfected tertiary recycled water. 
 
  
CARBON CANYON WASTEWATER 
RECLAMATION FACILITY 
14950 Telephone Avenue 
Chino, CA 91708 
Tel: (909) 393-4826 
 
Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) is located in the city of 
Chino and has been in operation since 1992.  The design hydraulic domestic sewage (wastewater) 
treatment capacity is 11.4 million gallons per day.  The plant serves areas of Chino, Chino Hills, Montclair 
and Upland.  The plant treats the liquid portion of an average influent wastewater flow of approximately 
seven million gallons per day. 
 
The liquid treatment section consists of preliminary screening and grit removal, primary clarification, 
secondary treatment by aeration basins and clarification, tertiary treatment by filtration and 
disinfection, and dechlorination.  Wastewater liquid is treated to California State Water Resources 
Control Board Title 22 Code of Regulations standards for disinfected tertiary recycled water.  The solids 
removed from CCWRF are pumped to RP-2 for thickening, anaerobic digestion, and dewatering. 
 
 
DESALTER 
6905 Kimball Ave. 
Chino, CA 91708 
Tel: (909) 597-9331 
 
 
The Chino I Desalter commenced operation 2001, and was expanded in 2005 from 8.4 million gallons 
per day (MGD) to a 14 MGD facility.  It is operated by IEUA staff.  Groundwater is pumped from supply 
wells throughout the Chino Basin area to the Chino I Desalter.  The treatment processes include Reverse 
Osmosis (RO) and Ion-Exchange (IX) for removal of nitrate and total dissolved solids (TDS).  The Chino I 
Desalter also includes air stripping for removal of some volatile organic chemicals (VOC).  Approximately 



two  million gallons per day of brine, a byproduct of the reverse osmosis and ion exchange processes, 
which is transported by the Inland Empire Brine Line (IEBL) to Orange County and is subsequently 
discharged to the ocean.  The high-quality water is then pumped into the municipal water supply 
systems for the city of Chino, Chino Hills, and into the Jurupa Community Services District water system. 
 
The Chino II Desalter was initiated by the Chino Desalter Authority (CDA) to provide water deliveries to 
the cities of Norco, Ontario, Jurupa Community Services District and Santa Ana River Water Company.  
The treatment processes include Reverse Osmosis (RP) and Ion-Exchange (IX).  The Chino II Desalter 
became operational in 2006 and was expanded in 2010.  The Chino II Desalter produced an average 10.6 
MGD of drinking water in 2012.  It produces a little more than one MGD of brine that is transported by 
the Inland Empire Brine Line (IEBL) to Orange County and is subsequently discharged to the ocean.  
 
 
INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING FACILITY (IERCF) 
12645 6th Street 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91729 
Tel: (909) 993-1500 
 
The Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF) is the largest indoor 
composting facility in the United States.  Located in Rancho Cucamonga, California, the IERCF processes 
over 200,000 tons of recycled products to manufacture 230,000 cubic yards of high-quality compost each 
year. The entire composting process is completed within the 454,000 square foot facility. 

 
Recycled material is delivered in trucks and unloaded inside of the facility’s mixing building where it is 
blended into a compost recipe.  Recycled products such as biosolids, wood waste and yard trimmings are 
trucked into the facility, where they are weighed and logged in at the on-site, certified truck scales. Trucks 
then deliver the materials directly into the compost facility, where mixing equipment blends the materials 
together to make the initial compost recipe. 
 
In every compost pile microscopic bacteria break down the recycled materials, creating very hot 
temperatures of over 140°F.  Each day a compost pile is created made up of about 1700 cubic yards of 
material, or approximately 30 truckloads.  

 
After about 3 weeks the compost material has met regulatory requirements and is now “Class A 
Exceptional Quality” as defined by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  
 
 
CHINO CREEK WETLANDS AND EDUCATIONAL PARK 
15975 El Prado Road 
Chino, CA  91708 
909-993-1457 
 
 
The Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park (CCP) is located adjacent to the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency Headquarters in Chino. The 22 acre park opened in 2004 and was partially funded by a state 
grant from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). The Park was designed to restore native 
habitat and natural drainage, showcasing the environmental values of the Prado Basin, the largest 
freshwater habitat remaining in southern California. 



 
The park consists of 22 acres and 1.7 miles of trails landscaped with a wide variety of climate 
appropriate and low water use plants, and features a state-of-the-art irrigation management system. 
The park is open to the public throughout the year to enjoy at their leisure during daylight hours as well 
as providing an educational experience to students through the Water Discovery Field Trip Program 
(partially funded by a grant from the California Department of Parks and Recreation).  
 
Educational awareness is facilitated through a series of programs which provide tours and managing the 
interpretative wetlands and wildlife education center. Some of the key components of the Park are the 
community education elements that weave throughout the site. The Park serves as a demonstration 
area for the community on the value of conservation and the importance of wetlands in the structure of 
our environment, improving water supply, storm water treatment, and water efficiency. Additional Park 
features include wetlands and riparian habitat, trails, sampling stations, picnic area, visitor’s center, 
parking, bridges, and an amphitheater. 
 
  



ADDITIONAL IEUA FACILITIES INCLUDE: 
 
  San Bernardino Lift Station 
13707 San Bernardino Avenue 
Fontana, CA 92337 
 
Montclair Lift Station 
915 W. Philadelphia Street 
Ontario, CA 91761 
 
Philadelphia Lift Station 
1818 Philadelphia Street 
Ontario, CA 91761 
 
Prado Dechlor Station 
15300 Johnson Avenue 
Chino, CA 91710 
 
1630 RW Station 
1530 E. 6th Street 
Ontario, CA   

 
Upland Basin, College Heights East Basin & 
College Heights West Basin: 
2300 W. Arrow Route 
Upland 91786 
 
Brooks Basin 
200 Silicon Ave. 
Montclair 91766 
 
7th & 8th Street Basins 
1100 7th St. & 1200 8th St. 
Ontario  91764  
 
Ely Basins 1, 2 & 3 
1601, 1801 & 1951 Philadelphia St. 
Ontario  91761  
 
Turner Basins 1, 2, 3 & 4 
2350 4th St., Ontario  91764 (Turner 1 & 2), 
916 Archibald Ave., Ontario  91764 (Turner 3 & 
4) 

 
 
 
 
 

Lower Day Basin 
12099 Highland Ave.,  
Rancho Cucamonga 91739 
 
Etiwanda Debris Basin 
4600 East Ave. 
Rancho Cucamonga. 91739 
 
Victoria Basin 
13650 Victoria Ave.,  
Rancho Cucamonga 91739 
 
San Sevaine Basins 1, 2, 3 & 5: 
6000 Cherry Ave., 
Rancho Cucamonga. 91739 
 
Hickory Basin 
13000 Napa Ave. 
Fontana 92335 
 
Banana Basin 
14017 Whittram Ave. 
Fontana 92335 
 
Jurupa Basin 
13450 Jurupa Ave. 
Fontana 92337 
 
RP3 Basin 1 
11396 Beech Ave. 
Fontana 92337 
 
RP3 Basins 3 & 4: 
11610 Beech Ave. 
Fontana 92337 
 
Declez Basin 
13978 Philadelphia Ave. 
Riverside 92509 
 
 

  



Grove Basin 
1301 Grove Ave. 
Ontario 91761 

 
Turner Deer Creek RW Turnout 
1063 N. Turner Ave. 
Ontario 91764 
 
HFMM RW Turnout 
13000 Whittram Ave. 
Fontana 92335 
 

CB-20 Turnout 
480 E 18th St. 
Upland 91784 
 
CB-15 Turnout 
12000 Banyan St. 
Rancho C. 91739 
 
CB-18 Turnout 
¼ mile S of Baseline, south on Heritage 
Creek, along power line road 
Rancho Cucamonga

 
 



• The Montclair Basins receiv
runoff water and imported wa

• Weed abatement by outsid
bottom, steep slopes, and nui

• Weed abatement on perimet
slopes by District staff as
maintenance and small tree a

• Landscape maintenance by D

The District completed the Mont
as performed by an outside cont
the improvement of recharge ra
future improvements of monitori

College Heights East and West

• The College Heights basin
local run off and imported wa

• Weed abatement on perim
slopes by District staff.

• Weed abatement by outside 
and perimeter roads.

• The College Heights We
undergoing a landscape bea
Landscape will be defined 
Completion is scheduled for 

• Several thousand yards of so
2014 were staged at College
District tens of thousands o
screened, cleaned and remov
2015. 

Brooks Basin

• Brooks Basin receives storm
storm drains, imported water 

• Weed abatement on perimet
by District staff.

• Weed abatement on steep
trimming by outside contract

• Recycled water from Inland
(IEUA).

Facilities

Montclair Basins Numbers 1, 2, 2, 3, and 4

ve storm water, local
ater.

de contractor of the
isance water ponds.
ter roads and tops of
s well as irrigation

and shrub trimming.
District staff.

tclair Basins Improvement project of all four ba
tractor, improved the function of the Montclair

ates. Additionally, water sensor infrastructure w
ing recharge data.

t Basins

s receive storm waters,
ater.

meter roads and tops of

contractor of the bottom

est Basin is currently 
autification project along Monte Vista Ave. an
with sustainable drought tolerant design and 
early 2015.

oils spoils from the Montclair Basin restoration
e Heights East Basin. Staging these soils at the
of dollars in dumping fees. It is planned to 
ved by an outside contractor at no cost to the D

m water, local run off from
r and recycled water.
ter roads and tops of slopes

per slopes and large tree
tor.
d Empire Utilities Agency

sins. The project, 
r system through 
was installed for 

nd Arrow Route.
plant selections.

n project of 2013-
e Basin saved the 
have these soils 

District sometime 

College Heights East 

Montclair #4 

Figure 4 - CBWCD Facilities



Ely Basin No. 3

• Ely Basin No. 3 receives st
water and recycled water.

• Passed annual recycled wate
Ontario. The recycled wa
inspection and testing con
Department of Public Health

• Weed abatement on perime
slopes by District staff 
maintenance and small tree a

• Landscape maintenance trim
contractor. 

• Addition of mulch on perim
waste recycling contractor at
growth and assists in erosion

Turner Basin/4th Street Proper

The District owns approximate
associated with Turner Basin N
property parallels Fourth Street 
basin between Cucamonga Chan
on the east and extends south do
the basin. The District maintains
Fourth Street to the south sec
Cucamonga Channel and the hou
east. The landscaping covers ap
land. The remaining District 
maintenance road and a portio
Turner Basin No. 1. 

• Weed abatement on perimet
maintenance, irrigation maint

• District staff will be complet
2015, thereby eliminating pot

Grove Basin (San Bernardino C

The District and San Bernardin
whereby the Flood Control Distr
construction of the Basin, allo
conservation. As part of the agre
Grove basin and a portion of the 

• Grove Basin received storm w
• As noted above, District staf

basins slopes.

orm water, local runoff

er inspection by City of
ater use is subject to
nforming to the State
.
eter roads and tops of
as well as irrigation

and shrub trimming.
mming of larger trees and ground cover trim

meter slopes and landscapes was provided by a
t no cost to the District. This mulch application

n control while improving the landscape soils.

rty

ly four acres of property 
No. 1. The District owned 

on the north side of the 
nnel and Golden Oak Road 
own into the north slope of 
s the landscaping fronting 
curity fence between the 
using development on the 
pproximately one acre of 
property encompasses a 

on of the north slope of 

ter road and top of slope by District staff as w
tenance and small tree and shrub trimming.
ting a recycled water connection to irrigate the la
table water use for irrigation purposes.

County Flood Control District Owned)

no Flood Control District entered into an agr
rict, in exchange for financial participation by t
owed the bottom portion of the Basin to be
eement, the District performs weed abatement 
slopes.

water runoff.
ff maintains weed abatement on the bottom and

ming by outside 

and outside green
n minimizes weed

well as landscape 

andscape in early

reement in 2000 
the District in the 
e used for water 
on the bottom of 

d a portion of the

Turner Basin Landscape 



W
ild

er
ne

ss
 P

ar
k 

M
ul

ti
-U

se
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 

D
em

on
st

ra
ti

on
 P

ar
ki

ng
 L

ot
 

O
ve

r 
40

 t
yp

es
 o

f 
tr

ee
s 

w
it

h
in

te
rp

re
ti

ve
 s

ig
ns

Re
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
us

e 
75

% 
le

ss
 t

ur
f

th
an

 o
ri

gi
na

l;
 s

al
t-

to
le

ra
nt

an
d 

lo
w

-w
at

er
 t

ur
f

Ir
ri

ga
te

d 
w

it
h 

re
cy

cl
ed

w
at

er
D

og
gi

e 
w

as
te

 s
ta

ti
on

s
an

d 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

st
at

io
n

D
ec

om
po

se
d

gr
an

it
e 

pa
th

s
fo

r 
pe

rc
ol

at
io

n

Sh
ow

ca
se

s 
Lo

w
 Im

pa
ct

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

D
es

ig
ne

d 
fo

r 
10

0 
pe

rc
en

t 
on

-s
it

e
re

te
nt

io
n 

an
d 

pe
rc

ol
at

io
n:

 P
er

vi
-

ou
s 

pa
ve

m
en

ts
, 

ze
ro

 c
ur

bs
, 

tr
en

ch
dr

ai
ns

, 
an

d 
bi

os
w

al
es

 d
ir

ec
t 

an
d

co
lle

ct
 w

at
er

42
KW

 p
ho

to
vo

lt
ai

c 
ar

ra
y

O
ff

ic
e 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

er
so

nn
el

G
ar

ag
e 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

ve
hi

cl
es

St
or

ag
e 

ar
ea

 f
or

 E
ar

th
 D

ay
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

 s
up

pl
ie

s
La

th
 h

ou
se

 f
or

 p
la

nt
 p

ro
pa

ga
ti

on

Te
ac

hi
ng

 s
pa

ce
 f

or
 3

5 
st

ud
en

ts
So

la
tu

be
s 

an
d 

la
rg

e 
w

in
do

w
s 

br
in

g 
in

lig
ht

; 
si

te
 o

ri
en

ta
ti

on
 r

ed
uc

es
 h

ea
t 

ga
in

G
RE

EN
G

U
AR

D 
m

at
er

ia
ls

Ki
d-

fr
ie

nd
ly

 o
ut

do
or

 p
la

nt
in

g 
an

d
ga

rd
en

 s
pa

ce
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 b

ui
ld

in
g

H
ig

hl
ig

ht
s 

of
 t

he
 W

at
er

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ce

nt
er

 C
am

pu
s 

W
at

er
 W

is
e 

D
em

on
st

ra
ti

on
 

G
ar

de
n 

50
 p

er
so

n 
cl

as
sr

oo
m

, 
12

 p
er

so
n 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 r

oo
m

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l l

ob
by

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 d

es
ig

n 
ro

om
Ro

om
s 

de
si

gn
ed

 t
o 

co
nn

ec
t 

w
it

h 
ga

rd
en

Bu
ild

in
g 

is
 4

0 
pe

rc
en

t 
be

tt
er

 t
ha

n 
Ti

tl
e-

24
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

O
pe

ra
bl

e 
w

in
do

w
s,

 lo
w

 V
O

C 
pr

od
uc

ts
, 

ve
ry

 e
ff

ic
ie

nt
 H

VA
C

sy
st

em
, 

an
d 

pa
ss

iv
e 

co
ol

in
g 

to
w

er
H

ig
h 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 t

oi
le

ts
, 

w
at

er
le

ss
 u

ri
na

ls
, 

lo
w

 f
lo

w
 s

in
ks

Po
ck

et
 g

ar
de

ns
, 

na
ti

ve
 a

nd
 d

ro
ug

ht
-t

ol
er

an
t

pl
an

ts
, 

tu
rf

 c
om

pa
ri

so
n 

ar
ea

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
W

at
er

 W
is

e 
La

nd
sc

ap
in

g
Bi

os
w

al
es

, 
de

co
m

po
se

d 
gr

an
it

e 
pa

th
s,

m
ul

ch
in

g 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 w

at
er

 r
et

en
ti

on
an

d 
ca

pt
ur

e

W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ce
nt

er
 



Wilderness Park Multi-Use Building 

Education Building 

Demonstration Parking Lot 

Over 40 types of trees with
interpretive signs
Redesigned to use 75% less turf
than original; salt-tolerant
and low-water turf
Irrigated with recycled
water
Doggie waste stations
and recycling station
Decomposed
granite paths
for percolation

Showcases Low Impact
Development best practices
Designed for 100 percent on-site
retention and percolation: Pervi-
ous pavements, zero curbs, trench
drains, and bioswales direct and
collect water

42KW photovoltaic array
Office space for maintenance personnel
Garage space for District vehicles
Storage area for Earth Day and event supplies
Lath house for plant propagation

Teaching space for 35 students
Solatubes and large windows bring in
light; site orientation reduces heat gain
GREENGUARD materials
Kid-friendly outdoor planting and
garden space adjacent to building

Highlights of the Water Conservation Center Campus 

Water Wise 
Demonstration 
Garden 

50 person classroom, 12 person conference room
Educational lobby and public design room
Rooms designed to connect with garden
Building is 40 percent better than Title-24 requirements
Operable windows, low VOC products, very efficient HVAC
system, and passive cooling tower
High efficiency toilets, waterless urinals, low flow sinks

Pocket gardens, native and drought-tolerant
plants, turf comparison areas demonstrate
Water Wise Landscaping
Bioswales, decomposed granite paths,
mulching demonstrate water retention
and capture

Water Conservation Center 

Figure 5



1

2

3 4 5

6 7 8

9

1011

1213

Figure 6 - Chino Creek 
Wetlands and 
Educational Park 



Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park Legend  

 
1. Pipe Garden -  The pipe garden features recycled pipes illustrating how to use water wisely 

inside and outside the home. 
2. Garden in Every School® Demonstration Garden – The Garden in Every School® demonstration 

garden features low water use plants, butterfly gardens, California native plants, and vegetable 
gardens.   

3. Community Education Elements – Community education elements are weaved throughout the 
park that feature information on drought tolerant plants, water supplies, water use efficiency, 
and wetland habitat.   

4. Woodland Area  
5. Outlet -  Water exists the park and into the Santa Ana River and eventually makes its way down 

to the ocean. 
6. Observation Tower 
7. Amphitheater  
8. Education Center – Indoor classroom with hands-on activities and educational displays used 

during Water Discovery Field Trips. 
9. Picnic Benches 
10. Upside Down Boat Clarifier – The upside down boat clarifier serves as an entrance to the park 

and features water facts and a water history timeline of the Chino Valley.  
11. Watershed Bridge – The watershed bridge is a demonstration of how water flows from the 

highest point of the watershed (mountains) to the lowest point of the watershed (ocean). 
12. Sub-Surface wetlands 
13. Sub-Surface wetlands 

 



Figure 7 – Comparison of Audited Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2015   

Account
 IEUA               
As of                

June 30, 2015 

 CBWCD               
As of                

June 30, 2015 
 Combined 

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 86,311,686$             13,814,483$          100,126,169$         
Accrued Interest Receivable 50,781,052$             7,381$                      50,788,433$            
Accounts Receivable 687,783$                   26,269$                   714,052$                  
Property Taxes Receivable 346,159$                   37,625$                   383,784$                  
Other Receivables 223,341$                   223,341$                  
Inventory 1,660,129$               1,660,129$              
Prepaid Items 126,017$                   31,314$                   157,331$                  
Total  Current Assets 140,136,167$          13,917,072$          154,053,239$         

Restr icted assets 
Desposits held by governmental agencies 41,023,148$             41,023,148$            
Assets held with trustee/fiscal agent 3,967,175$               3,967,175$              
Total  Restr icted Assets 44,990,323$             -$                           44,990,323$            

Noncurrent Assets 
Capital assets -$                             
Land 14,067,874$             1,486,121$             15,553,995$            
Jobs in progress 45,211,138$             62,954$                   45,274,092$            
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciatio   585,063,217$          8,682,844$             593,746,061$         
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortiza  12,239,439$             -$                           12,239,439$            
Total  Capital  Assets 656,581,668$          10,231,919$          666,813,587$         

Other Assets 
Long-term agreements 45,577,499$             -$                           45,577,499$            
Long-term receiveables 3,814,580$               -$                           3,814,580$              
Advances to other funds 32,808,104$             -$                           32,808,104$            
Prepaid bond insurance 598,170$                   -$                           598,170$                  
Prepaid interest - SRF loans 2,288,110$               -$                           2,288,110$              
Total  Other Assets 85,086,463$             -$                           85,086,463$            

Total  Assets 926,794,621$          24,148,991$          950,943,612$         

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred loss on refunding 1,102,641$               -$                           1,102,641$              
Deferred outflow related to net pension liabili  8,354,702$               58,586$                   8,413,288$              
Total deferred outflows of resources 9,457,343$               58,586$                   9,515,929$              

Total Assets 936,251,964$    24,207,577$    960,459,541$   



Figure 7 – Comparison of Audited Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2015   

 

Account
 IEUA               
As of                

June 30, 2015 

 CBWCD               
As of                

June 30, 2015 
 Combined 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Accounts payable 25,556,171$             33,149$                   25,589,320$            
Accrued liabilties 3,724,495$               21,003$                   3,745,498$              
Compensated absences 1,606,386$               39,519$                   1,645,905$              
Retentions payable 964,656$                   45,645$                   1,010,301$              
Notes payable due within one  year 6,666,109$               -$                           6,666,109$              
Long-term debt, due withiin one year 5,810,000$               -$                           5,810,000$              
Interest payable 2,749,490$               -$                           2,749,490$              
Retention deposits and escrows 167,470$                   -$                           167,470$                  
Total Current Liabilities 47,244,777$      139,316$          47,384,093$     

Non-Current Liabilities 
Compensated absences 2,732,734$               2,732,734$              
Long-term debt, due in more than one year 200,127,428$          200,127,428$         
Notes payable, due in more than one year 112,434,954$          112,434,954$         
Advances from other funds 32,808,104$             32,808,104$            
Other noncurrent liabilities 267,184$                   267,184$                  
Net pension liability 36,707,778$             285,096$                 36,992,874$            
Net OPEB liability 1,291,524$               1,291,524$              
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 386,369,706$    285,096$          386,654,802$   

Total Liabilities 433,614,483$    424,412$          434,038,895$   

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred inflow related to net pension liability 7,929,085$               104,021$                 8,033,106$              
Total deferred inflows of resource 7,929,085$               104,021$                 8,033,106$              

Net Position 
Net Investment in capital assets 333,274,074$          10,231,919$          343,505,993$         

Restricted for: 
Capital Construction 41,023,148$             41,023,148$            
Recycled water conservation contribution program -$                             
Bond operating contingency requirement 19,447,814$             19,447,814$            
Total restricted 67,080,838$             -$                           67,080,838$            

Unrestricted 94,353,484$             13,447,225$          107,800,709$         

Total Net Position 494,708,396$    23,679,144$    518,387,540$   

Total Liabilities & Net Position 936,251,964$    24,207,577$    960,459,541$   



8-2 Personnel 

             IEUA Organizational Chart 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District
Organizational Structure

Eunice Ulloa
(Executive Director)

Eunice Ulloa
(Executive Director)

Vivian Castro
(Deputy Executive 

Director)

Vivian Castro
(Deputy Executive 

Director)

Drew Ready 
(Conservation Programs 

Manager)

Drew Ready 
(Conservation Programs 

Manager)

David Schroeder 
(Conservation 
Specialist II)

David Schroeder 
(Conservation 
Specialist II)

Angie Arellano (II)
Briana Romero (I)

(Conservation 
Technicians)

Angie Arellano (II)
Briana Romero (I)

(Conservation 
Technicians)

Rebecca Rittenburg 
(Community Programs 

Manager)

Rebecca Rittenburg 
(Community Programs 

Manager)

Gisela Lopez 
(Community Education 

and Outreach 
Assistant II)

Gisela Lopez 
(Community Education 

and Outreach 
Assistant II)

Silvia Segura 
(Community Education 
and Outreach Intern)

Silvia Segura 
(Community Education 
and Outreach Intern)

Francisco Sotomayor 
(Facility/Landscape 

Maintenance Supervisor)

Francisco Sotomayor 
(Facility/Landscape 

Maintenance Supervisor)

Roberto Sotomayor 
(Landscape/

Maintenance Worker II)

Roberto Sotomayor 
(Landscape/

Maintenance Worker II)

David Paglia
James Salcido
Juan Vazquez

(Landscape/ 
Maintenance Worker I)

David Paglia
James Salcido
Juan Vazquez

(Landscape/ 
Maintenance Worker I)

Vacant
(Administrative 

Assistant)

Vacant
(Administrative 

Assistant)

Judith Taylor
(Office Assistant I)

Judith Taylor
(Office Assistant I)

Figure 9 - CBWCD Organizational Chart



Agency Management

General Manager

Board Secretary/Office
Manager

New Position

Office Assistant (2) 
[CBWCD - Judith

Taylor]

One (1) new position will be 
added to one (1) existing 
position

Executive Assistant (2)

Administrative Assistant I

Special Advisor on
Conservation Issues & 

Programs
[CBWCD – Eunice Ulloa]

Figure 10 - Consolidated Organizational Chart



External Affairs

Manager of 
External Affairs

New Position
External Affairs Specialist II 

[CBWCD – Rebecca 
Rittenburg]

Three (3) new positions will be 
added to two (2) existing 
positions

External Affairs Analyst
Senior External Affairs 

Specialist

External Affairs Specialist I

External Affairs Specialist I (5) 
CBWCD – Gisela Lopez, 
Angie Arellano, Briana 

Romero]

Intern (2) CBWCD – Silvia 
Segura]

One (1) new position will be 
added to one (1) existing 
position



Planning and Environmental Resources

Manager of Planning and 
Environmental Resources

Source Control 
/Environmental Resources 

Supervisor 

Pretreatment & Source 
Control Inspector I (3)

One (1) new position will be added to 
one (1) existing position

Senior Pretreatment & 
Source Control Inspector

Pretreatment & Source 
Control Inspector II

Administrative Assistant II 
(2)

Supervisor – Environmental 
Compliance & Energy 

Senior Associate Engineer

Senior Environmental 
Resources Planner

Senior Associate Engineer - PE

Assistant Engineer

Deputy Manager of 
Planning and 

Environmental Resources

Senior Water Resources 
Analyst

Senior Engineer (2)

Senior Associate Engineer - PE

Environmental Resources 
Planner II

Senior Environmental 
Resources Planner  (2)

[CBWCD – Vivian Castro 
Assigned to Water 

Conservation Effects]



Contracts and Facilities Services

Manager  Contracts and 
Facilities Services

Supervisor of Contracts & 
Program Admin

Contracts Administrator II 
(5)

Records Management 
Supervisor 

Office Assistant

Records Specialist (3)

Facilities Program 
Supervisor

Facilities Specialist (2) 
[CBWCD – Drew Ready]

Facilities Specialist 
Landscape (2)

[CBWCD – Dave 
Schroeder]

Risk Specialist 

Supervisor of Contracts & 
Program Admin

Procurement Specialist I

One (1) new position will be 
added to one (1) existing 
position.

One (1) new position will be 
added to one (1) existing 
position.



Operations – Groundwater Recharge

Manager of Operations

RW Distribution Operator –
Groundwater Recharge (1)

Sr. Associate Engineer (1)
RW/Groundwater 
Operations and 

Maintenance Specialist (2)
(CBWCD – Francisco 

Sotomayor)

Groundwater Recharge 
Coordinator

One (1) new position will be 
added to one (1) existing 

position.



North Maintenance

Deputy Manager of 
Maintenance

Maintenance Supervisor (2)

Two (2) new positions will be 
created.

Plant Maintenance Worker 
(2)

[CBWCD – James 
Salcido, Juan Vasquez]



South Maintenance

Deputy Manager of 
Maintenance

Maintenance Supervisor (2)

Two (2) new positions will be 
created.

Plant Maintenance Worker 
(2)

[CBWCD – David Paglia, 
Roberto Sotomayor]



APPENDIX A 



Service Review for Water Conservation in 

the Valley Region 

May 20, 2015



Service Review for 
May 20, 2015 Water Conservation in the Valley Region 

1 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary .................................................................................................................................... 2 

Service Review Determinations............................................................................................................ 2 

Continued Monitoring of the Districts by LAFCO ............................................................................... 7 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................................ 9 

Service Review for Valley Region ........................................................................................................... 20 

Determination I. ................................................................................................................................... 21 

Determination II. .................................................................................................................................. 27 

Determination III. ................................................................................................................................. 29 

Determination IV. ................................................................................................................................. 77 

Determination V. ................................................................................................................................ 100 

Determination VI. ............................................................................................................................... 105 

Attachments ............................................................................................................................................ 122 



Service Review for 
May 20, 2015 Water Conservation in the Valley Region 

2 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 

In 2013 the Local Agency Formation Commission (“LAFCO”) for San Bernardino County 
initiated its second cycle service reviews undertaking them on a regional service 
perspective rather than the prior community-by-community approach.  This initiation 
included the development of a Fiscal Indicators database to be used in the service review 
analysis as well as placing the information on the LAFCO website to provide background 
information to the public.  The development of this program required sometime to complete 
and the service reviews did not move forward during this period.   

During the same time period, the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District 
initiated by Board resolution an application to amend its zero sphere designation and 
provide for a return to its prior sphere including the territory of the Santa Ana River easterly 
of the I-10/I-215 interchange.  Due to overlap and complexity on the subject of water and 
the submission of an application from the San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation 
District (hereafter shown as SB Valley WCD), the LAFCO service review schedule for the 
Valley Region has two service reviews on the water subject – one service review for water 
conservation and another service review for wholesale, retail, and recycled water.  The next 
service review scheduled will encompass wholesale, retail, and recycled water which will 
complement this water conservation service review. 

All communities and water agencies are facing increasing challenges and opportunities in 
their role as stewards of water resources in the region.  Increased environmental 
regulations, drought, and competition for water from outside the Valley Region have 
resulted in reduced supplies of imported water.  Although the rate of regional population and 
economic growth has slowed due to the declined economy, water demand is still projected 
to rise, but at a slower rate, thus putting an even larger burden on local supplies.  

Service Review Determinations 

LAFCO staff responses to the requirement for written statements of the determinations 
outlined in Government Code 56430 for a service review are summarized below and 
incorporate the districts’ responses and supporting materials. 

Determination I - Growth and population projections for the affected area 

Within San Bernardino County, the Valley Region is the most densely populated area, 
with 73% of the population within it, but accounting for only 2.5% of the county’s land 
area.  Based on these figures, the estimated population density of the Valley Region is 
approximately 2,977 persons per square mile, which is similar to neighboring Los 
Angeles and Orange Counties.   

The 2014 estimated population is 1.5 million, and projections identify the Valley to grow 
at a rate of 0.3% annually through 2020.  It is not until 2025 that the growth rate is 
projected to increase.  LAFCO uses a 30-year horizon for its population projections, and 



Service Review for 
May 20, 2015 Water Conservation in the Valley Region 

3 

its analysis in conjunction with Southern California Associated Governments (“SCAG”) 
projections provides a projected population of 2.1 million in 2045.  The 2045 figure 
would be roughly twice that of 1990, with presumably twice the density overall. 

The population projections do not include the heavy daily business, commercial, 
education and industrial activities.  Further, the transient traffic on Interstates 10 and 15 
(two of four interstates that exit Southern California to the east) has significantly 
increased in volume each decade and is anticipated to continue to do so.  All of this 
signals that the Valley Region is one of the most densely populated and traveled parts 
of the state and that conjunctive use of water resources will only intensify for the already 
impacted groundwater basins. 

Determination II - The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated 
communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence 

The Valley Region as defined by LAFCO contains 75 square miles of unincorporated 
territory (15% of the Valley Region).  Of that 75 square miles of unincorporated territory, 
32 square miles (or 43%) is classified as a disadvantaged community; although some of 
that area includes government-owned, open space, or park land. 

Determination III - Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public 
services, and infrastructure needs or deficiencies including needs and deficiencies 
related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection in any 
disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of 
influence 

Integration of flood and stormwater management strategies with recharge and 
conjunctive use opportunities contributes to water supply reliability in the region.  The 
San Bernardino Valley region has been significantly urbanized over the past several 
decades and the area continues to grow with numerous in-fill development projects.  As 
the amount of impervious surface increases with urbanization, the runoff, and, therefore, 
storm and flood flows are also increasing.  Without adequate flood control systems to 
capture and contain these surface waters for recharge, the opportunities for water 
supply, water quality, and environmental improvement are greatly lessened or lost.  
Therefore, formulating strategies to further capture storm runoff and use it for recharge 
of the groundwater basins will provide both flood management and water supply 
benefits to the region. 

As identified by the Department of Water Resources, the Chino Basin, Bunker Hill, and 
Riverside-Arlington basins have been designated as High Priority basins and the other 
basins as Medium Priority basins for future monitoring.  Within the Chino Basin, storm 
water recharge has declined significantly since FY 2010-11 (due to the drought), being 
less than the storm water recharge average during the previous 10 years.  Recycled 
water was first considered a recharge source to reduce reliance on imported water from 
the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California.  However, due to the current 
drought and restrictions placed upon the State Water Project, recycled water has now 
become a necessity for the basin.  In the San Bernardino Basin Area, groundwater 
storage is now at the lowest level in recorded history, easily surpassing the previous low 



Service Review for 
May 20, 2015 Water Conservation in the Valley Region 

4 

point in 1964, which took place at the end of a 20-year drought.  In turn, multiple 
recharge and recovery projects are moving forward to be able to capture and use as 
much of the local supply as possible in order to lessen reliance on the State Water 
Project. 

In response to efforts to reduce consumer consumption, the two water conservation 
districts in the Valley are neither 1) responsible for the demand reductions required by 
the Water Conservation Act of 2009 (10% demand reduction by 2015 and 20% by 
2020), nor 2) responsible for helping the retail agencies within their respective boundary 
achieve their water use reductions as the water conservations districts are not “urban 
wholesale water providers”.  The Inland Empire Garden Friendly program was 
developed by the four major water suppliers of western Riverside and San Bernardino 
counties with cooperation from a university institute, conservation district and local 
botanic garden.  The Inland Empire Garden Friendly program was created to assist 
consumers in locating and learning about climate-appropriate plants for the Inland 
Empire.   

Specific to the West Valley portion of the region, the Chino Basin WCD has long 
provided water conservation sustainability services to its constituents through 
demonstration and education and it provides this service well.  To further its 
demonstration and education service, it opened its Water Conservation Center campus 
in 2014.  However, the service of Chino Basin WCD is limited to within its boundary 
which encompasses only a portion of the Chino Basin.  Chino Basin WCD has received 
QWEL (Qualified Water Efficient Landscaper Board) and EPA certification as an adopter 
of the QWEL program and as an EPA WaterSense Labeled Professional Certification 
Program provider.  QWEL certification is a valuable tool for consumers to be able to 
select landscape and maintenance professional who understand and have value for 
water and resource conservation.  Seven district staff are QWEL certified and can teach 
the class to others.   

For the East Valley portion of the region, the SB Valley WCD currently budgets very 
limited funding toward conservation education and outreach efforts.  Instead, it focuses 
on water recharge efforts in cooperation with other agencies such as providing school 
and other outreach through Inland Empire Resource Conservation District.  Additionally, 
SB Valley WCD actively supports and helps fund the iEfficient initiative, leads a Basin 
Technical Advisory Committee subcommittee for landscape education for implementing 
the qualified water efficient landscaper program (QWEL), and has a certified trainer on 
staff. 

Determination IV - Financial ability of agencies to provide services 

The Chino Basin WCD has a high unassigned fund balance that seems disproportionate 
to the services the district provides.  MUNI had an unrestricted Net Position of $108 
million at June 30, 2013, a substantially high figure.  The Board of Directors has 
designated $18 million of this reserve to be retained for the purpose of self-insuring the 
district against any claims made against it.   



Service Review for 
May 20, 2015 Water Conservation in the Valley Region 

5 

SB Valley WCD has recently come out of a difficult financial time which began in 2008 
and continued through 2011.  This situation mirrored the overall economic slow-down; 
however, the effect on the district was more severe because all sources of its revenues 
were impacted at the same time.  Since this time the district has revised its financial 
structure, reduced costs and implemented various policies that will reduce the likelihood 
and severity of these occurrences in the future.  The district implemented cost 
reductions documented in the annual budgets including the reduction from seven to five 
divisions for the board of directors as allowed by special legislation (SB-235).  In 2011 
and 2012 the Groundwater Charge was increased by 25% and 15% respectively to 
allow the groundwater fund to raise adequate revenue to operate the facilities within its 
financial ability without subsidy from the district reserves or other enterprises.  The 
district has high liquidity, no long-term debt, and meets its service obligations (after 
capital projects).  Therefore, a high unassigned fund balance seems disproportionate to 
the services the district provides.  In response to the review of the draft staff report, SB 
Valley WCD has provided additional information that identifies that it has a counter-
cyclic revenue and expense cycle and that without accumulating this reserve rates 
would be highly variable.  The District has also identified that it is presently designing 
capital improvements which will use much of the reserve attributed to groundwater.  
Should the district desire to actively provide habitat management and enhancement 
(related to the Wash Plan) beyond its own properties, it would need to receive special 
legislation to expand the scope of its authorized activities as well as submit an 
application to LAFCO to request authorization to provide said service under the 
provisions outlined in Government Code Section 56824.10 et seq. 

Chino Basin WCD, IEUA, and MUNI are subject to an appropriations limit as outlined in 
the State Constitution.  San Bernardino Valley WCD is not subject to the appropriations 
limit as it was determined to be exempt due to its limited tax rate in 1977-78.  IEUA and 
MUNI annually adopt the limit as part of its budget process.  A review of the audits for 
IEUA and MUNI does not identify a review of the annual calculation of the limit as 
required by the Constitution.  LAFCO staff recommends that IEUA and MUNI include 
this requirement in future audits.  Chino Basin WCD established its appropriations limit 
on January 12, 2015 and has indicated it will be reviewed in future audits.   

Determination V - Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities 

Throughout the Valley Region there are numerous partnerships between Flood Control 
District, the municipal water districts, and the water conservation districts for storm water 
capture.  This symbiotic relationship produces both economies of scale and duplication 
of service.  As long as there are multiple agencies authorized to provide stormwater 
capture the opportunity to share facilities will remain.   

Determination VI - Accountability for community service needs, including governmental 
structure and operational efficiencies 

Within at least the past ten years, the two water conservation districts have not 
consistently yielded enough candidates for the board of directors to field competitive 
elections.  This has resulted in the majority of the seats being filled by appointments in 
lieu of election.  The elections for the Municipal Water Districts are more competitive:  



Service Review for 
May 20, 2015 Water Conservation in the Valley Region 

6 

IEUA has had an election for at least one board member in eight out of the last ten 
election cycles; and MUNI has had an election for at least one board member in seven 
out of the last ten election cycles.   

Given the determinations of this service review, LAFCO staff’s position is that one of two 
options should be supported by the Commission:  (1) the consolidation of the two Water 
Conservation Districts into a single Water Conservation District serving the entirety of 
the Valley region and bringing the educational opportunities to a much broader 
constituency, or (2) two water conservation districts should consolidate with its 
respective overlaying municipal water district.   

The first scenario of a single Water Conservation District encompassing the Valley has 
not been supported by any of the districts citing such concerns as separate basin 
activities and resources to the location of operations and governance.  While this 
scenario would provide direct control of the consolidation process by the Water 
Conservation Districts and provides for a means to extend the conservation educational 
elements to all of the urban valley region, it appears that it has been discounted by all 
involved in the study.  Without support from some quarter of the affected agencies, 
success would not be anticipated. 

Turning to option two, consolidation with the respective Municipal Water Districts, for SB 
Valley WCD, a proposed consolidation of the SB Valley WCD and the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District was denied by LAFCO on the basis that the financial and 
structural issues identified by staff were being addressed by the District and 
consolidation would not offer an assurance of the continued services.   During the 
processing of this service review, both the SB Valley WCD and MUNI have outlined their 
reluctance to consolidate given the contentious nature of the previous process and the 
deep and painful wounds that linger.  However, as a part of this service review these 
agencies, along with East Valley Water District, have submitted an outline to form a 
Groundwater Sustainability Council (“Council”) for stormwater capture, water import 
funding, and groundwater recharge which they are circulating to the east valley retailers.  
This effort proposes a means or mechanism  to coordinate key functions and shared 
services and facilities, absent formal consolidation.  The Council would be the 
responsible entity for ensuring adequate stormwater capture, imported water funding, 
and groundwater recharge efforts.  The Council would be composed of the general 
managers of the water producers from the basin.  While this scenario does not achieve 
consolidation it moves toward shared services and facilities, and it provides a means to 
move towards more efficient provision of this service in the East Valley area.  While not 
the preferred method for service provision, LAFCO staff would support this option 
absent a desire for consolidation by the agencies.  The one caveat with the structure is 
that the general managers form the council rather than elected officials which does not 
allow for a true functional consolidation as a joint powers authority would.  Given the 
proviso identified above, LAFCO staff supports this effort and in doing so recommends 
that the Commission modify LAFCO 3173 to evaluate the alternative of modifying the 
SB Valley WCD’s sphere of influence to be more in line with the Council’s proposed 
efforts. 



Service Review for 
May 20, 2015 Water Conservation in the Valley Region 

7 

For the West Valley, efforts and sentiments to dissolve the Chino Basin WCD date back 
to at least 1969 based on the reasoning that the district’s functions and services could 
be assumed by an overlying agency that has the same authorized functions and 
services (IEUA or Flood Control District).  Given the information gathered and the 
determinations of this service review, LAFCO staff’s position is that the best option for 
continuing the level of service currently offered for the entire West Valley would be for 
the Chino Basin WCD to consolidate with the IEUA.  Should these districts not desire to 
put forth an application to LAFCO, the formation of an alliance, joint powers authority, or 
council similar to that as being proposed in the East Valley, as identified above, would 
move towards achieving greater economies of scale.  Therefore, LAFCO staff 
recommends that the Commission initiate a sphere of influence proposal to evaluate an 
expansion of the Chino Basin WCD’s existing coterminous sphere. 

In order to address these recommendations, LAFCO staff is proposing that the 
Commission: 

 Initiate a sphere of influence review for the Chino Basin Water Conservation
District to include analysis of the following alternatives:

o Expansion of the sphere of influence to be coterminous with the sphere of
influence of IEUA;

o Expansion to include the whole of the Chino Basin; or,
o Designation of a zero sphere of influence.

 Modify LAFCO 3173 to include the analysis of the following alternatives for
consideration:

o Expansion of the sphere of influence to be coterminous with the sphere of
influence of MUNI,

o Include the whole of the Bunker Hill Basin, or
o The request initiated by the District to expand the sphere of influence

from its current zero sphere designation to include the district’s boundary
plus an additional 1,973 acres.

Continued Monitoring of the Districts by LAFCO 

This service review identifies areas where the districts fail to comply with the State 
Constitution, State Law, and generally accepted good-governance practices.  LAFCO 
staff recommends that the Commission determine that continued monitoring of the 
districts is warranted and that LAFCO staff be directed to return to the Commission 
every six months until all of the items below are satisfied. 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency and San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

Section 1.5 of the State Constitution reads that the annual calculation of the 
appropriations limit (Gann Limit) for each entity of local government shall be reviewed as 
part of an annual financial audit.  A review of the audits for IEUA and MUNI does not 
identify the annual calculation of the limit.  LAFCO staff recommends that these 
agencies include this requirement in future audits. 



Service Review for 
May 20, 2015 Water Conservation in the Valley Region 

8 

Chino Basin Water Conservation District 

Chino Basin WCD administers landscape and irrigation audits in partnership with IEUA 
and the eight member retail member agencies, and other agencies contract with the 
district to provide conservation programs on its behalf outside the Chino Basin WCD 
boundary.   

Pursuant to Government Code Section 56133, LAFCO is charged with the responsibility 
for reviewing and taking action on any city or district contract to extend service outside 
of its jurisdiction.  Even though the district’s parent act, Water Conservation District Law 
of 1931, does not explain this circumstance, Section 56133 subjects all those agencies 
under LAFCO purview to this requirement.  However, the law provides for exemptions 
and one such exemption is for contracts or agreements solely involving two or more 
public agencies where the public service to be provided is an alternative to, or substitute 
for, public services already being provided by an existing public service provider and 
where the level of service to be provided is consistent with the level of service 
contemplated by the existing service provider. 

Should it be necessary to request an exemption on the basis of two government 
agencies contracting for service, LAFCO staff recommends that the district submit an 
application to LAFCO requesting an exemption under Government Code 56133(e) in 
order to provide service outside of its jurisdiction. 



APPENDIX B 











APPENDIX C 















APPENDIX D 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

  
 
 Chino Basin Water 

Conservation District 
 

Policy and Procedure 
Manual 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

Table of Contents 
 

1. Subject: District’s Right to Revise 
2. Subject: Brown Act  
3. Subject: Business Ethics 
4. Subject: Conflict of Interest 
5. Subject: Acceptance of gratuities, gifts, and other items of  

   value 
6. Subject: Personal purchases from the District’s suppliers 
7. Subject: Loan or use of District equipment, materials, or  

   supplies 
8. Subject: Receipt and tagging of goods and materials   

   purchased by the District 
9. Subject: Disposal of surplus District Personal property,   

   materials, and equipment 
10. Subject: No-Smoking Policy 
11. Subject: Records Retention 
12. Subject: Federal Form W-9 Filing Requirements 
13. Subject: Expense reimbursements for conferences, seminars,  

  training, or meetings 
14. Subject: AB 1542 Expense Reimbursement Filing   

  Requirements 
15 Subject: Processing of Lawsuits received by the District or by  

   an employee/former employee 
16. Subject: Contract, Lease, or Agreement insurance verification 
17. Subject: Authority to Contractually Commit the District 
18. Subject: Signatory authorization for District Accounts 
19. Subject: Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
20. Subject: Bonding, insurance, and hold harmless language  

   requirements for District contracts and agreements 
21. Subject: Use and Insurance Requirements for Vehicles and  

   Equipment rented by the District 
22. Subject: Vehicle Use 
23. Subject: Automobile insurability requirements for current and  
    prospective employees 
24. Subject: Department of Motor Vehicle Records Verification  

   and Confidentiality 
25. Subject: Procedure to fill a vacant position 
25-1. Subject: Definitions 
26. Subject: Equal Employment Opportunity 
26-1 Subject: Management Rights, Progressive Discipline of 

 Employees, and Related Records and Procedures 
27. Subject:  Employment of Employee Relatives (Nepotism) 
28. Subject: Harassment Prohibition 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
 Table of Contents (continued) 

 
29. Subject: Original introductory employment  
30. Subject: Timesheet submittals and payroll-related employee  

   status changes 
30-1. Subject: Overtime 
30-2. Subject: Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 
30-3  Subject:  Alternative Work Week Written Disclosure 
31. Subject: Part-Time Employment 
32.                 Subject:   Director, Salaried and Full-time Employee Benefits 
33. Subject: Reimbursement for educational expenses related to  

   an employee’s current job classification 
34. Subject: Employment Separation Procedure 
35. Subject:  Reinstatement of Employment 
36. Subject:  Sick Leave  
37.   Subject: Absence for Personal Business 
38. Subject: Vacations 
39. Subject: Holidays 
40. Subject: Accommodation of Medical and/or Psychological  

   conditions 
41. Subject: Family and Medical Care Leave 
42. Subject:  Budget Amendments - O & M and Capital Projects 
43.  Subject: Sick Leave, Bereavement Leave, Jury Duty, and 

Absence for Military Duty 
44. Subject: Bidding and Contract Procedures 
45. Subject:  Workplace Violence 
46. Subject: Internship Program 
47. Subject: Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement, and 

Ethics Training 
48.  Subject: Mobile Phone Policy 
49.  Subject: Military Service 
50.  Subject:  Uniforms 
51. Subject:  Governmental Fund Balance Policy for the General 

Fund 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    1 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:  District’s Right to Revise 
 
Policy/Procedure  This manual contains the policies and procedures of the 
District as approved by the Board of Directors. The District’s Board of Directors 
reserves the right to revise, modify, delete, or add to any and all policies, 
procedures, work rules or benefits stated in this Manual or in any other document. 
However, any such changes must be in writing and must be signed by the 
President of the Board of Directors after adoption by the Board.  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    2 
Issue No.   3 
Effective Date:  9/19/05 
 
Subject:  Brown Act 
 
Purpose: To comply with the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act: Open 
Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies 
 
Policy/Procedure The District complies with all disclosure requirements of the 
Brown Act, including, but not limited to the following: 
1. All items heard, discussed or voted upon by a quorum of the District’s Board of 

Directors will be placed on a posted agenda no less than 72 hours before a 
regularly scheduled board meeting. The agenda will provide adequate 
descriptions of those items appearing on the agenda to be discussed or acted 
upon.  

2. Regularly scheduled meetings are set for the second Monday of every month, 
at 10:30 a.m., at District headquarters. 

3. Notice of meetings shall be given by posting as follows:  For a regularly scheduled board meeting, posting shall be made not less 
than 72 hours in advance of the meeting  For a special board meeting, written notice to each member will be provided, and, where requested, public notification via local newspaper, 
radio, or television, and a posted notice at least 24 hours before the time 
of the meeting set forth in the notice.   For an emergency meeting involving only matters that require urgent 
action, the presiding officer must provide at least one hour telephone 
notice of the meeting to a local newspaper, radio, or television station 
with notice of the meeting. No closed session is permitted at an 
emergency meeting.  

4. The Board of Directors shall not act upon any item that has not been properly 
posted on the agenda, unless there is a need for immediate action which 
comes to the attention of the District after posting of the agenda.  

5. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors will be kept on file at the 
District headquarters, and will be available for pubic inspection.  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    3 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   Business Ethics 
 
Purpose: To attain the highest standards of honesty and integrity in all District 
activities, and to be in compliance with all laws and regulations. 
 
Policy/Procedure   
1. All Officers and employees are expected to maintain the highest standards of 

honesty and integrity in all dealings with suppliers, vendors, contractors, and 
fellow officers and employees. 

2. All Officers and employees avoid any situation which might create or appear to 
create a conflict of interest. 

3. Officers and employees do not enter into any form of arrangement with 
suppliers, vendors, or contractors which might create or appear to create a 
conflict of interest. 

4. The District will not excuse any dishonest or illegal act even if it was directed by 
a supervisor, or if the deviation benefited or appeared to benefit the District. 

5. Officers and employees prepare paperwork to accurately show the true nature 
of every transaction. This applies to purchases, expense reimbursements, and 
every other type of business activity. 

6. Officers and employees who make decisions concerning the expenditure of 
District funds are responsible for using good judgment and ensuring that the 
District receives value for the money spent. Officers and employees who 
prepare or approve invoices or bills must have reasonable knowledge that the 
goods or services were received and that the amounts are proper. 

7. All equipment, facilities, services, supplies, and time paid for by the District are 
the property of the District. Officers and employees accept, or authorize others 
to accept company property or the use of company property only as specifically 
authorized by District policy.  Officers and employees, who incur meal, travel, or other business expenses on behalf of the District, pay for them directly and request 

reimbursement on an Expense Report.  Officers and employees who use personal vehicles for District business 
pay all expenses for the operation of the vehicles directly, and request 
reimbursement on a per mile basis on an Expense Report. 

8. The District does not allow the use of the District’s name, funds, property, or 
services for the support of political parties or political candidates or for any 
involvement in political elections. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    3 (cont.) 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   Business Ethics 
 

 
9. Officers and employees do not accept or solicit gifts or gratuities of any kind 

from vendors. (“Gifts” include loans, durable goods, or unusually lavish 
entertainment, but do not include normal entertainment or items of a general 
advertising nature, such as caps and pens.) 

10. Officers and employees are responsible for reporting any improper or 
questionable activity. Concealment or silence cannot be tolerated under any 
circumstances.  Officers and employees who become aware of any deviation from this 

policy, including conflict of interest, misrepresentation or any event of a 
questionable, improper, fraudulent or illegal nature, immediately report 
the circumstances.  Officers and employees do not willfully destroy, alter, hide, or steal any company record to conceal transactions. 

11. Officers and employees who fail to comply with this policy are subject to 
immediate termination. For purposes of this policy, the term “employee” 
includes all officers, employees, or agents of the district, whether temporary or 
regular, full-time or part-time. 

12. Officers and employees are to comply fully with all applicable provisions and 
reporting requirements of FPPC regulations, or other state laws regarding gifts, 
honoraria, and conflicts of interest. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    4 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   Conflict of Interest 
 
Purpose:  To ensure that business decisions are made in the best interest of the 
District. 
 
Policy/Procedure     
1. Officers and employees avoid any situations which create or might appear to 

create a conflict of interest. 
 

Conflict of interest means any situation where an officer or employee, or his 
immediate family or associates are likely to benefit from decisions or activities 
that are contrary to the best interest of the District. 
  Officers and employees avoid personal financial or contractual 

involvements with companies or individuals that deal with the District, or 
might reasonably be expected to deal with the District.  Except as provided below, officers and employees do not accept any personal gifts, loans, favors, or hospitality from companies or individuals 
that deal with the District, or that might deal with the District. This does 
not include reasonable business meals with customers and suppliers, or 
gifts and tokens of purely nominal value.  Officers and employees do not use information about the District or its 
activities for personal gain. 

 
2. Employees are responsible for reporting any improper or questionable activity 

or relationship.  An officer or employee who becomes aware of any deviation from this 
policy is expected to immediately report the circumstances.  Concealment or silence cannot be tolerated under any circumstances. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    5 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   Acceptance of gratuities, gifts, and other items of value 
 
Purpose: To set forth the District’s position regarding an officer or employee’s 
receipt of items of value from suppliers or contractors with whom the District has 
past, current, or potential future business relations.  
 
Policy/Procedures 
1. It is the policy of the District that the receipt by any employee of gifts, meals, 

entertainment, and other items of value from suppliers, contractors, or vendors, 
with whom the District has past, current, or potential business relations is 
expressly prohibited. The receipt of an item of value may involve the recipient 
(employee) and the District in a conflict of interest. Conflicts of interest may be 
(or appear to be) ethically compromising, and are potentially damaging to the 
reputations of both the District and employee. Both the fact and even mere 
appearance of a conflict of interest shall be carefully avoided at all times by all 
District employees. 

2. The District employs the highest ethical business practices in source selection, 
negotiation, determination of awards, and the administration of all procurement 
activities. All employees of the District must guard their integrity and that of the 
District by politely refusing any item of value from firms with which the District 
has or might conduct business. 

3. The following exceptions to the general policy are permitted, under 
circumstances where it is clear that no conflict of interest will result and where 
no implied or explicit obligation is given.  Items of nominal (up to $5.00) value may be accepted, when imprinted with advertising for a company’s product or service. Examples are 

inexpensive pens, letter openers, caps, coffee cups, etc.  Miscellaneous items left by suppliers during holidays for the 
consumption of staff, such as candy, popcorn, etc., may be accepted.  Seminars or informational meetings sponsored by suppliers may be 
attended, where attendance is open to large groups of persons, and 
where the agenda focuses on topics related to the District’s mission. 
Meals or snacks served incidental to these seminars may also be 
accepted.  Other exceptions may be appropriate. Employees may receive 
consideration for a deviation from the general policy by submitting a brief 
memorandum of explanation in advance of any action to the Board of 
Directors. The Board of Directors may give written approval in those 
cases where the requested exception is consistent with the spirit of the 
policy as enumerated above. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    5 (cont.) 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   Acceptance of gratuities, gifts, and other items of value 
 
 
4. Suppliers and contractors may provide items such as reference catalogs or 

other items which, because of their information content or utility, are of value to 
the District. These items may be accepted on behalf of the District by an 
employee when acceptance is:  Clearly in the best interest of the District;  Retained on District premises; and the item(s) become(s) the property of the District. 

5. There may be instances where a vendor invites an employee to meet over a 
meal, as in the case of a business lunch. In such cases, the employee will insist 
on paying for the cost of his or her own meal. If the subject of the meeting is 
District-related and participation in the meeting is consistent with the 
employee’s duties at the District, the employee may submit for reimbursement 
of expenses. 

6.  The District encourages all employees to anticipate situations in which they 
might be offered an item or service of value, and to take positive steps to avoid 
such situations before they actually arise. 

7.  All District officers and employees are required to fully comply with any and all 
reporting requirements or other applicable provision of FPPC regulations or 
other state laws regarding gifts, honoraria or conflicts of interest. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    6 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Personal purchases from the District’s suppliers 
 
Purpose: To set forth the District’s position regarding the use of discounts offered 
to the District by its suppliers, by District employees or their relatives, to make 
personal purchases. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. Employees of the District and their immediate relatives are not to utilize 

discounts offered to the District by the District’s suppliers, to purchase personal 
supplies, equipment, tools, services, etc. 

2. Employees of the District and their immediate relatives are not to utilize the 
employee’s position with the District to solicit discounts or other concessions 
from District suppliers to purchase personal supplies, equipment, tools, 
services, etc. 

3. This policy is not intended to prohibit employees of the District or their 
immediate relatives from utilizing discounts offered to the general public by 
District suppliers to purchase personal supplies, equipment, tools, services, etc. 

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    7 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Loan or use of District equipment, materials, or supplies 
 
Purpose: To mitigate any possible loss the District might incur by lending or 
allowing the use of District equipment, materials, or supplies to employees, 
volunteers, officers, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, private individuals, or 
other agencies. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. No person shall use or misappropriate any District funds, property, equipment, 

credit, or anything of value owned by the District for personal use or benefit, 
except as provided in this and other District policies. 

2. District employees are not to lend District equipment, materials, or supplies to 
any person, except as provided in this and other District policies. 

3. District employees are not to operate or supervise the operation of any district 
equipment on a contractor’s, subcontractor’s, supplier’s or private individual’s 
job. 

4. With prior approval of the Manager, District equipment, materials, or supplies 
may be lent to other governmental agencies, provided the following criteria are 
met:  The item is not needed by the District,  An individual from the borrowing agency is instructed on the proper use of said item(s)  A Waiver/Release of Liability form is executed by a responsible 

individual of the Agency, and  The Agency provides the District with proof of insurance. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.   8 Issue No.                8 
   Effective Date:        3/9/15   
 Subject:   Fixed Assets Capitalization and Inventory Control Policy 
 Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to insure that fixed assets are properly and consistently 
capitalized and contribute to accurate financial reporting in connection with GASB Statement No. 
34. Procedures are being established herein for the receipt, tagging, inventorying and Capitalization of goods and materials purchased by the District, and to maintain accountability and records for theft and insurance purposes. 
 The District's fixed asset capitalization policy stems from two (2) major objectives: 

1) Accounting and Financial Reporting – To accurately account for and report fixed assets in financial reports issued to external reporting agencies, granting agencies and the 
public. 

2) Safeguarding – The District has a fiduciary responsibility to establish systems and procedures to protect its (fixed) assets from loss or theft. 
In meeting the two objectives noted above, the District has established a Capitalization Policy and an Inventory Control Policy to provide specific guidance for determining which fixed assets are 
subject to separate accounting and reporting (i.e., Capitalization) and safeguarding, respectively. 
The District is responsible for, and has established, systems and procedures through which both objectives are met. These systems and procedures are used to identify, process, control, track and 
report District fixed assets. 
Capitalization Policy (Accounting and Financial Reporting) 
In general all fixed assets, including land, buildings, machinery and equipment, with an original cost of $5,000 or more, will be subject to accounting and reporting (capitalization). All costs associated with the purchase or construction should be considered, including ancillary costs such as freight 
and transportation charges, site preparation expenditures, professional fees, and legal claims directly attributable to asset acquisition. Specific capitalization requirements are described below: 
 The capitalization threshold is applied to individual units of fixed assets. For example, ten 

desks purchased through a single purchase order, each costing $1,000, will not qualify for 
capitalization even though the total ($10,000) exceeds the threshold of $5,000. 

 For purposes of capitalization, the threshold will generally not be applied to components of 
fixed assets. For example, a keyboard, monitor and central processing unit purchased as components of a computer system will not be evaluated individually against the capitalization threshold. The entire computer system will be treated as a single fixed asset. 

 Repairs to existing fixed assets will generally not be subject to capitalization unless it extends 
the useful life of the asset. In this case, it represents an improvement and is subject to the 
requirements described below.  

 Improvements to existing fixed assets will be presumed (by definition) to extend the useful life 
of the related fixed asset and, therefore, will be subject to capitalization only if the cost of the improvement meets the $5,000 threshold.  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 Capital projects will be capitalized as Construction-In-Progress until completed. Costs to 
be capitalized include direct costs, such labor and materials, as well as ancillary costs and any construction period interest costs as required by GASB Statement No. 34. 

Except for Real Property, Capital Assets shall be “straight line” depreciated per the following 
“depreciation schedule” representing the estimated useful lives of the identified items:  

Capitalized Items:                               Estimated Useful Life: 
Real Property                         N/A Office Buildings (building, amphitheater) 40 years 
Storage Buildings  (incl. shade house)  20 years Basin Structures & Conduits   75 years 
Machinery & Stationary Equipment  20 years Mobile Equipment     10 years Miscellaneous Improvements              20 years 
Landscape      15 years Office & Building Furnishings   10 years 
Vehicles & Truck         5 years Office Equipment          3 years  

Inventory Control Policy (Safeguarding) 
The District is responsible for safeguarding its fixed assets from theft or loss; however, 
management does recognize and acknowledge its responsibility to establish and maintain systems and procedures that enable employees to properly safeguard the District’s assets. 
In general, inventory control is applied only to movable fixed assets (generally these falling into the "General Plant Asset" category), and not to land, buildings, or other immovable fixed assets. The District’s Moveable Fixed Assets will be accounted for and inventoried at least once per fiscal 
year. 
Further, it is the policy of the District that all real property, furniture/ equipment and software, with a 
purchase value greater than $500.00, and a useful life of more than one year, shall be assigned an inventory number and be logged into the District’s inventory control records data base.  
Revision Changes  
Issue No. 1 –   1-10-96 (Original Policy) Issue No. 2 – 6 (Annual Reviews – Dates Unavailable) Issue No. 7 – 11-12-03 (Annual Review) 
Issue No. 8 –   3-09-15 (Annual Review & Revision to “Improvements” Verbaige  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    9 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:  Disposal of surplus District Personal property, materials, and 

equipment. 
 
Purpose: To establish a policy and procedure for the disposal of “surplus District 
personal property, materials, and equipment” in a manner to ensure the maximum 
return to the District from said items. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. Surplus District personal property, materials, or equipment shall be defined as 

all such items having no further use to the District. Such property could be 
scrap, surplus, broken, obsolete, abandoned, or unusable. 

2. Surplus District property may be disposed of either by trade-in, selling at public 
auction, selling through sealed bids, by prepriced sales, by negotiated sale, 
donating to another governmental agency or non-profit organization, or 
disposing of the item(s) as junk, only after documenting in writing the item(s) 
has no value, serves a public purpose, and its disposal is of benefit to the 
District. 

3. Prior to disposing of any surplus item(s), the District shall place a public notice 
in such newspaper(s), magazine(s), or other media that will best publicize the 
proposed sale or disposition to those parties most likely to bid or purchase the 
item(s), at least ten (10) days prior to said sale or disposition. This requirement 
may be waived in the event it is deemed in the District’s best interest to dispose 
of any item covered by this section through a negotiated sale or trade-in that is 
demonstrated to be reasonable. 

4. The sale of any “surplus District personal property, materials, or equipment” 
shall be subject to sales tax unless the purchase has a current resale permit 
number on file with the District. 

5. Sales of “surplus District personal property, materials, or equipment” may not 
be made to District employees or their immediate families. 

6. After any surplus item(s) has been disposed of, said item(s) shall be removed 
from the fixed asset inventory.  

7. All personal property, equipment and/or materials that are found on District 
property and not claimed within ten (10) days shall be turned over to the Police 
Department having jurisdiction.  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    10 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   No Smoking Policy 
 
Purpose: To protect employee health, and to conform to California Law, AB13. 
 
Policy: 
The District’s headquarters is a No Smoking building. Smoking is permitted only 
outside the building. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    11 
Issue No.    3 
Effective Date:   5/11/15 
 
Subject:   Records Retention and Destruction Policy 
 
 
I. DISTRICT RECORDS MANAGEMENT 
 
 The CBWCD has an obligation to create and maintain records and information in 
accordance with accepted records management practices and standards. 
It shall be CBWCD’s policy to maintain records in accordance with the following 
Records Retention Schedule.  Pursuant to Government Code section 60201, 
unless otherwise provided by state statute, all records not specifically mentioned in 
this policy shall be retained for a period of not less than two years. 
II. RECORD MANAGEMENT TASKS 
 

1. Schedule once a year, an eventful transfer of records to inactive storage. 
2. Develop a sound retention schedule. 
3. Designate areas for records storage. 
4. Control the purchase of file cabinets. New filing cabinets might signal 

that records are not being transferred to lower cost storage. 
5. Furnish staff with a Records Retention and Destruction Policy. 

 
III. LONG-TERM OBJECTIVES 
 

1. Improve information retrieval through better classification and filing 
systems.  

2. Destroy promptly those duplicate records and working papers that are no 
longer needed for administrative, legal, historical, or research purposes. 

3. Transfer inactive records from high cost office space to low cost Records 
Center storage. 

 
IV. RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION 
 

A. Accounting Records. All Accounting Records should be retained indefinitely 
in their original form until authorization for destruction is given by the District 
Treasurer. 

 
1. Any accounting record, except the Journal, Ledgers, and Tax Returns, 

which are more than seven years old may be authorized for destruction, 
provided that: 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    11 (cont.) 
Issue No.    3 
Effective Date:   5/11/15 
 
Subject:   Records Retention and Destruction Policy 
 
 

 
a. There is no continuing need for said record, i.e., long-term 

transactions, special projects, pending litigation, etc., and;  
b. There exists in a permanent file, an audit report or reports 

covering the inclusive period of said record, and that; 
c. Said unit report or reports were prepared pursuant to procedures 

outlined in Government Code Section 26909 and other State or 
Federal audit requirements, and that; 

d. Said audit or audits contains the expression of an unqualified 
opinion. 

 
2. Any accounting record created for a specific event or action may be 

destroyed upon authorization seven years after said event has in all 
respects terminated.  

 
3. Any source document detailed in a register, journal, ledger or statement 

may be authorized for destruction seven years from the end of the fiscal 
period to which it applies. 

 
4. The following may be destroyed at any time: 
 

a. Duplicates (original - subject to aforementioned requirements) 
b. Rough drafts, notes or working papers (except audit) 
c. Cards, listings, non-permanent indices, other papers used for 

controlling work or transitory files. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    11 (cont.) 
Issue No.    3 
Effective Date:   5/11/15 
 
Subject:   Records Retention and Destruction Policy 
 
 

 
B. Payroll and Personnel Records 
 

1. Unless otherwise noted, all payroll and personnel records should be 
retained indefinitely. Originals may upon authorization be destroyed 
after seven years retention, provided said records have been 
electronically recorded as provided for in Government Code Section 
60203. Payroll and personnel records include the following: 

 
a. Accident reports, injury claims and settlements 
b. Medical histories 
c. Applications, changes and termination of employees 
e. Insurance records of employees 
f. Performance or rating cards 
g. Earning records and summaries 
h. Retirements 
 

2. Any source documents detailed in a summary may be authorized for 
destruction five years from the end of the fiscal period to which it 
applies, including but not limited to: 

 
a. Injury frequency charts 
b. Timecards 
c. Job descriptions 
d. Requests relating to vacation, sick leave, and leave of absence 
 

3. Personnel Rules & Regulations and Employee Memorandum of 
Understandings should be retained indefinitely. Originals may, upon 
authorization, be destroyed after seven years retention, provided said 
records have been electronically recorded as provided for in 
Government Code Section 60203. 

 
4. The following personnel records may be destroyed after five years 

provided the employees’ personnel file contains current reports: 
 

a. Expired proof of insurance 
b. DMV Reports



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    11 (cont.) 
Issue No.    3 
Effective Date:   5/11/15 
 
Subject:   Records Retention and Destruction Policy 
 
 

 
C. Records Concerning Long-Term Debt 
 

1. Records of proceedings for the authorization of long-term debts, bonds, 
warrants, loans, etc., after issuance or execution may be destroyed if or 
after electronically recorded as provided for in Government Code 
section 60203. 

2. Terms and conditions of bonds, warrants and other long-term 
agreements should be retained until final payment, and thereafter may 
be destroyed in less than ten years if microfilmed as provided for in 
Government Code Section 60203. 

3. Paid bonds, warrant certificates and interest coupons may be destroyed 
after six months if detailed payment records are kept for ten years. 

 
D. Minutes 
 

1. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors are usually retained 
indefinitely in their original form. However, they may, upon 
authorization, be destroyed if said minutes are electronically recorded 
as provided for in Government Code Section 60203. 

 
E. Construction Records. 
 

1. Construction records, such as bids, correspondence, change orders, 
etc., should not be kept in excess of seven years unless they pertain to 
a project which includes a guarantee or grant, and, in that event, they 
should be kept for the life of the guarantee or grant plus seven years. 
As-built plans for any public facility or works should be retained as long 
as said facility is in existence. 

 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    11 (cont.) 
Issue No.    3 
Effective Date:   5/11/15 
 
Subject:   Records Retention and Destruction Policy 
 

 
F. Contracts 
 

1. Contracts should be retained for its life plus seven years. 
 

G. Property Records 
 

1. Property records, such as documents of title, should be kept until the 
property is transferred or otherwise no longer owned by the District. 

 
H. Miscellaneous Records 
 

1. The following types of construction and engineering records may be 
destroyed five years after a construction project is complete, or a 
engineering service has been performed, provided there is no ongoing 
litigation. If litigation is ongoing, such records shall be kept for a 
minimum of three years following the conclusion of the litigation. 

 
a. Unsuccessful proposals to perform services or construct a 

project 
b. Unsuccessful bids and proposals 
c. Requests for bids and proposals 
d. California Preliminary Notices 
e. Public Works - payroll reporting forms 
f. Bill of Lading and Material Delivery tickets 
g. Insurance Endorsements and Certificates of Insurance 
 

2. The following miscellaneous communications and forms may be 
destroyed five years after the end of the fiscal year, during which they 
were received or generated. 

 
a. Notice to remove or abate 
b. Expired auto insurance policies 
c. Job applications received from unsuccessful applicants (provided 

there is no ongoing litigation) 
d. Unsolicited Job Requests and “availability” communications 
e. Agenda packet materials 
f. Rental receipts and related communications 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

RETENTION SCHEDULE 
 
 
 

  DESCRIPTION RETENTION  
 
  ACCOUNTING RECORDS 
 
Miscellaneous invoices-accounts payable 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Miscellaneous invoices-accounts receivable 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Expense Reports 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Purchase Orders 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Cash Receipts 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Claims  5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Bank Statements 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Bank deposits 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Canceled Checks 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Petty Cash Records 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Various accounting authorizations taken   
 from Board minutes, resolution or contracts 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Check Register 5 yrs End of fiscal periods 
Schedule of Investments  Indefinite  
Lease - purchase records (equipment) 5 yrs 
Budgets  5 yrs 
Cash Receipts Journal Indefinite 
Accounts Receivable Journal Indefinite 
Accounts Payable Journal Indefinite 
Check Register Indefinite 
General Ledger Indefinite 
Financial Statements Indefinite 
Changes in Fixed Assets Indefinite 
Journal Entries Indefinite 
Closing Journal Entries Indefinite 
Long Term Debt Records Indefinite 
Inventory Records Indefinite 
Capital Asset Records Indefinite 
Annual Audits Indefinite 
Tax Returns Indefinite 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
  DESCRIPTION RETENTION  
 
PAYROLL AND PERSONNEL RECORDS 
 
Accident Report, injury claims  Length of employment plus 30 yr. 
Settlements  Permanent 
Medical histories  Length of employment plus 30 yr. 
Injury frequency charts  5 yrs. 
Applications, changes and termination   
 of employees  7 yrs. 
Unsolicited applications, resumes 30 days After receipt 
Insurance records of employees  Permanent 
Time cards  5 yrs 
Job descriptions  5 yrs 
Performance evaluations (personnel files)  2 yrs. After termination 
Earning records and summaries  7 yrs. 
Retirements  Permanent 
Vacation, Sick Leave, Personnel Leave, etc. 
 Requests  5 yrs 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT RECORDS 
 
Authorization of Long-Term Debts  
 (i.e. bonds, warrants, loans, etc.) Indefinite 
Agreements (terms and conditions) Indefinite 
Paid Bonds, warrant certificates, interest 
 certificates 10 yrs After full debt is paid 
 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECORDS 
  
Minutes  Indefinite 
Resolutions Indefinite 
District Correspondence - Misc./Relative  
 to Agreements/Projects 5 yrs After Life of Agreement 
Insurance Policies 3 yrs After expiration 
Agreements Plus 7 yrs After Life of Contract 
Contracts  Plus 7 yrs After Life of Contract 
Improvement District records Indefinite 
Law Suits - Litigated Indefinite 
Property Title Records 10 yrs After disposal 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 DESCRIPTION RETENTION  
 
CONSTRUCTION RECORDS 
 
Work Orders for Construction in Progress/ 
 Capital Projects Indefinite 
Work Orders for Construction in Progress/ 
 Maintenance Projects 10 yrs 
Bids, correspondence, change orders, etc. Indefinite 
Unsuccessful Bids 5 yrs  After Bid Date 
As-built plans for public facility Indefinite   Or as long as facility 
 exists         
 
VIDEO MONITORING 
 
Recordings of routine video monitoring  
       e.g. building security taping systems Minimum of one year 
 
Recording of Board of Directors meetings Permanent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
   
  
  Revision Changes: 
Issue No. 1 – 1-10-96 (Original Policy) Issue No. 2 – 2-07-97 (Update of verbiage) 
Issue No. 3 – 5-11-15 (Update of verbiage and timelines)   
  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.   12 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   Federal Form W-9 Tax Filing Requirements 
 
Purpose: To conform to Internal Revenue Service rules and regulations pertaining 
to Form W-9 and Form 1099 filing requirements.  
 
Policy/Procedure 
Non-incorporated vendors supplying services to the District will provide the 
appropriate Taxpayer Identification Number or Social Security Number via Form 
W-9 before payment is made for those services. Thirty-one percent of each 
payment will be withheld until a completed Form W-9 is received by the District, as 
required by Internal Revenue Service directives. 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    13 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  09/11/06 
 
Subject:   Expense payment or reimbursement for conferences, 

seminars, training, or meetings 
 
Purpose: To establish the guidelines for attendance and expense payments or 
reimbursements for conferences, training, seminars, or meetings, and to conform 
to Internal Revenue Service reporting requirements concerning record keeping. To 
record the five basic reporting requirements: 1) date; 2) cost; 3) place; 4) business 
purpose; and 5) for meals and entertainment, the names and business relationship 
of each person entertained.  For reference, in this policy Directors will also fall 
under the category of employees. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
Employees may pay all of their own business expenses and request 
reimbursement from the District on expense reports or expenses may be paid 
directly by the District, provided there is prior approval by the Board of Directors. 
Reimbursements for expenses are made only for those expenses which are 
individually itemized and explained. Employees will provide original receipts for all 
expenses whenever possible.  

 
It is the policy of the District that where budget allocations permit,  authorized 
officers and employees shall be reimbursed for reasonable out of pocket expenses 
incurred in the performance of official District business, when such expenditures 
are authorized in advance, and the employee’s attendance is deemed to be 
directly beneficial to the District.  
 
Authorization to Attend 
 District employees shall secure the approval of the appropriate level of 

management prior to attendance at conferences, training, seminars, or 
meetings. Due to the limited pool of funds, approval for local seminars and 
training attendance shall be given highest priority. Where possible, early 
application should be made to assure that adequate funds are available. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    13 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  09/11/06 
 
Subject:   Expense payment or reimbursement for conferences, 

seminars, training, or meetings 
 
Cost of Accommodations 
  Cost of overnight accommodations for conferences, training, seminars, or 

meetings may be reimbursed or paid directly by the District.  The expense 
shall be limited to the reasonable cost of adequate accommodations as 
determined by the Manager and/or the Board of Directors. Costs which are 
deemed to be unnecessary, unrelated or excessive may not be reimbursed 
or paid. The cost of meals, entertainment, and lodging on a hotel billing shall 
be reported separately, according to the itemized receipt. 

 
Transportation 
 Transportation to a conference, training, seminar, or meeting may be 

reimbursed or paid directly by the District.  To secure the most economical mode of transportation in keeping with 
availability, convenience, and propriety of the District, all meeting travel 
arrangements shall be made with the endorsement of the Manager.  When air travel is the most appropriate method of transportation, coach class shall be utilized.  A private automobile may be used when necessary. Reimbursement for 
such use shall follow the guidelines in District policy involving the use of 
private vehicles on District business.  A rental car may be used when appropriate public transportation is 
unavailable or more expensive. 

 
Registration 
 Registration and related fees may be reimbursed or paid by the District for 

all authorized attendance. 
 
Compensation for Conference/Meeting Attendance 
 Employees shall receive their regular compensation for attendance at 

approved conferences, training, seminars, or meetings that are held on their 
regularly scheduled workdays. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
 
No.    13 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  09/11/06 
 
Subject:   Expense payment or reimbursement for conferences, 

seminars, training, or meetings 
 
Other Expenses       
       Other Expenses may be reimbursed or paid directly by the District.  Except as otherwise provided, the guidelines for meal reimbursements, 

 including tax and tip, shall be a maximum of $75.00 per day. If the 
 guidelines are exceeded, written justification must be attached to the 
 expense claim form. Alcohol consumption and entertainment expenses 
 will not be reimbursed.  The employee shall submit the completed and signed Expense Report every month. Receipts are required, including those for meals and taxi or 

bus fares. All applicable receipts and/or invoices shall be attached. The 
employee shall forward this form to the Manager for approval. 

 
Entertainment Expense 

Entertainment Expense may be reimbursed or paid directly by the District 
for reasonable business entertainment expenses only when necessary to 
promote a specific public purpose of the District. All entertainment must be 
explained with the following details:  date  cost  place (name and location)  business purpose  type of entertainment (e.g., lunch, dinner)  business relationship of each person present: name, title, agency, 

company, etc. 
 

Officers and employees entertain fellow officers and employees only when 
this is the most efficient way to accomplish a specific business purpose and 
only with prior approval of the Board of Directors or the Manager. In all 
cases, the officers and employees avoid excessive expenses. The 
employee of senior rank pays the expense. 
 
District officers and employees do not entertain vendor representatives. 

  
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    14 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   AB 1542 Expense Reimbursement Filing Requirements 
 
Purpose:  To establish the reporting requirements and guidelines for compliance 
with AB 1542. 
 
Policy/Procedure  
AB 1542, effective January 1, 1995 requires that districts disclose, at least 
annually, each reimbursement paid to officers or employees for any expense which 
exceeds $100 for the immediately preceding fiscal year. All District officers and 
employees comply with all provisions of AB 1542, including but not limited to the 
following:  Any individual charge over $100 for services or product received is 

reportable  An “individual charge”, is defined as, for example, one meal, one day’s lodging, or a registration fee.  The disclosure requirement applies to all district employees and officers 
who receive reimbursement.  The same limits on honoraria and gifts are applied to officers as apply to 
legislators.  Disclosure is to be done at least annually, as of fiscal year-end, June 30.  

The District will include a separate listing by officer/employee outlining applicable 
charges in the Director’s Board Meeting package. The listing will be accessible as 
public record in conjunction with the regular Board Meeting materials. 

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    15 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:  Processing of Lawsuits received by the District or by an 

employee/former employee 
 
Purpose: To establish the process for the handling of lawsuits served on the 
District; how District employees, or former employees, are to request defense by 
the District against lawsuits arising out of their employment with the District; to 
establish responsibility for the acceptance of service of summons, complaints, and 
claims; and to improve communications between the District, its employees, an 
legal staff during the defense of a lawsuit. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
Pursuant to Section 825 of the California Government Code, an employee, or 
former employee, of the District can request that the District defend them against 
any claim or action against them for an injury arising out of an act, or omission, 
occurring within the scope of their employment as a public employee, provided 
said request is made in writing not less than ten (10) days before the day of trial. 
The employee, or former employee, shall reasonably cooperate in good faith in the 
defense of the claim or action, and shall notify the District immediately upon 
learning of any such claim or action. 
 
Every reasonable effort shall be made by the District to maintain open 
communications between the employee, former employee, the District, and the 
District’s Legal Counsel while defending all lawsuits. 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    16 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Contract, Lease, or Agreement insurance verification 
 
Purpose: To assure that proper and timely insurance documents are provided to 
the District by a supplier, contractor, or consultant prior to the issuance of a Notice 
to Proceed on any project. This procedure will provide the information necessary to 
verify the appropriateness of certificates of insurance and/or endorsements for 
each contract, lease, or agreement entered into by the District. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
Upon execution of any contract, lease, or agreement, the District shall obtain 
copies of applicable Certificates of Insurance for public liability and Workers’ 
Compensation (where applicable), and verify that the terms and limits are 
appropriate, as specified in the contract, and maintain copies in District files. All 
required insurance shall be carried with responsible insurance carriers, duly 
admitted to transact business in the State of California, and shall name as 
additional insureds the District, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents. 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    17 
Issue No.   3 
Effective Date:  1/12/09 
 
Subject:   Authority to Contractually Commit the District 
 
Purpose: To set forth the authority to execute contract and procurement 
commitments on behalf of the District.  
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. It is the policy of the District that all commitments (except as provided herein) 

involving the procurement of materials, equipment, supplies, leases, and 
services (including consultant services) shall originate by means of a purchase 
order or other contractual document. 

2. This policy shall not apply to petty cash procurements, or construction-related 
contracts. 

3. Internal approval limits are as follows:  The Administrative Assistant, Conservation Specialists II and III, and the 
Assistant General Manager may each approve the procurement of 
materials, equipment, supplies, leases, and services, with a total cost of 
$0.00 to $600.00.  The General Manager may approve, at the General Manager’s option, the procurement of materials, equipment, supplies, leases, and services, with a 
total cost of $0.00 to $25,000.00.  The procurement of materials, equipment, supplies, leases, and services 
with a total cost exceeding $25,000.00 must be approved by the Board of 
Directors. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.   18 
Issue No.  13 
Effective Date: 2/10/2014    
 
Subject:    Signatory Authorization for District Financial Accounts 
 
Purpose:  To establish the rights and responsibilities of District officers and 
employees as signatories on District accounts, and to protect District funds. 
 
Policy/Procedure  
This policy will cover the following District funds and accounts: 
 
1. General checking account and any “Special Bank Accounts” that may from time 

to time be authorized by the Board of Directors 
2. Petty Cash checking account 
3. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
4.   Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST), a joint powers authority offering a 

pooled investment program for local agencies in California 
 
General Checking Account 
The general checking account requires two signatures in any combination upon 
each check disbursement. The signatories may be assigned or reassigned by the 
Board of Director’s.  The signatories at this time are as follows: 
  Eunice Ulloa, Secretary/General Manager  Kati Parker, President of the Board of Directors  Paul Hofer, Vice President of the Board of Directors  Henry De Haan, Jr., Treasurer 
 
Upon authorization by the Board of Directors, set fund amounts may be transferred 
into the General Checking Account from the LAIF or CalTRUST funds by order of 
the Secretary/Manager.  
 
Petty Cash Account 
The Petty Cash account requires one authorized signature, at this time consisting 
of:  Eunice Ulloa, Secretary/General Manager   Sandi Woods, Administrative Assistant  Kati Parker, President of the Board of Directors  Paul Hofer, Vice President of the Board of Directors  Henry De Haan, Jr., Treasurer 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    18 (con’t.) 
Issue No.   13 
Effective Date:  2/10/2014 
 
Subject:    Signatory authorization for District Financial Accounts 
 
The intent of the petty cash fund is to allow the speedy purchase of relatively small 
items, generally totaling under $150.00, although exceptions to this rule may arise 
upon occasion in response to an urgent situation. Upon authorization by the Board 
of Directors, set fund amounts may be transferred into the Petty Cash fund from 
the General Checking Account by order of the Secretary/General Manager. 
 
LAIF and CalTRUST Funds 
  The Secretary/General Manager may transfer funds into the General Checking 
Account from LAIF or CalTRUST to cover Board authorized expenditures.  In the 
event the General Manager, the Board President or the Board Treasurer has 
approved a LAIF or CalTRUST withdrawal and/or deposit amount but is 
unavailable to do the transfer for payroll or accounts payable purposes, the 
Administrative Assistant, with written approval from the General Manager, Board 
President or Board Treasurer is authorized as a representative for the District to 
process the transfer(s). 2.  The Secretary/General Manager may transfer funds into the LAIF or CalTRUST funds without previous Board approval.  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    19  
Issue No.   9 
Effective Date:  2/14/11 
 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 
Purpose: To outline the policies for maximizing the efficiency of the District’s 
investment portfolio, for prudent investment of the District’s funds, and to provide 
guidelines for the selection of suitable investments. The objective is the 
enhancement of the economic status of the District while simultaneously protecting 
its funds.  
 
The District’s investment portfolio policies and procedures are designed to 
accurately monitor and forecast expenditures and revenues, thus enabling the 
District to invest funds to the fullest extent possible. The District shall attempt to 
obtain the highest yield, provided that all investments meet the criteria established 
for safety and liquidity. 
 
The investment policies and procedures of the District are based upon Federal, 
State, and Local law, and prudent money management. The primary goals of these 
policies are: 
 

1. To ensure compliance with all Federal, State, and Local laws governing 
the investment of monies under the control of the District’s Treasurer or 
manager.  

2. To protect the principal monies entrusted to this office. 
3. To generate the maximum amount of investment income within the 

parameters of this statement of investment policy, and to establish the 
guidelines for suitable investments. 

 
Policy/Procedure  
All monies entrusted to the District will be pooled in an actively managed portfolio. 
The investment portfolio will be referred to as the “Fund” throughout the remainder 
of this document.  
 
A.  Safety of Principal: 

 
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the District. Each investment 
transaction shall seek to preserve the principal of the portfolio, whether from 
institutional default, broker-dealer default, or erosion of market value of 
securities. The District shall seek to preserve principal by mitigating the two 
types of risk: credit risk and market risk. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    19 (con’t.) 
Issue No.   9 
Effective Date:  2/14/11 
 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 

Investments shall be undertaken in a manner which first seeks to ensure the 
preservation of principal in the Fund. The Treasurer or manager shall evaluate or 
cause to have evaluated each potential investment, seeking both quality in the 
issuer and the underlying security or collateral, and shall diversify the portfolio to 
reduce exposure or loss.  Pursuant to section 53653 of the California 
Government Code, to the extent local conditions warrant, a Treasurer may waive 
security  for such funds as are insured pursuant to Federal law; therefore, to the 
extent local conditions warrant and in accord with the provisions of Government 
Code section 53653, the District’s Treasurer is authorized to waive security for 
funds deposited or invested with Banks, Credit Unions, and Savings and Loan 
Associations to the extent such deposited or invested funds are fully insured 
pursuant to Federal law. 
 

1. Credit Risk. Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of an 
issuer of a security, shall be mitigated by investing only in very safe 
institutions, and by diversifying the Fund so that the failure of any one 
issuer would not unduly harm the District’s cash flow. 

 
a. For the purposes of establishing credit risk, a very safe institution is 

defined as a Bank, Credit Union, or Savings and Loan institution 
having net worth to net asset ratio higher than 3.0% and experiencing 
positive earnings records. 

 
b. For investments within Banks, Credit Unions, and Savings and Loan 

institutions having less than a 3.0% net worth to asset ratio or one 
that is experiencing a negative earnings record, the Treasurer shall 
limit deposits to $100,000. 

 
c. District investments with the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

may not, by state regulation, exceed the limit set by the Local Agency 
Investment Fund. District investments with the CalTRUST program 
may not exceed the limit which may be set from time to time by the 
CalTRUST Joint Powers Authority Board of Trustees.  Until otherwise 
directed by the Board of Directors, the Local Agency Investment 
Fund shall be the primary depository for District Funds. 

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    19 (con’t.) 
Issue No.   9 
Effective Date:  2/14/11 
 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 

 
d. Cash will be invested only in FDIC, NCUA, or FSLIC insured banking, 

credit union, or savings and loan institutions or in fully collateralized 
certificates of deposits. Excepting the LAIF and CalTRUST accounts, 
no more than 10 percent of the District portfolio, not to exceed 
$300,000 shall be invested in any one institution or in certificates of 
deposits.  The bank, credit union, savings and loan institution must 
meet the following criteria to be considered by the District: 

 
The District will not invest any more than $100,000 in any institution 
less than three years old.  

 
The bank, credit union, or savings and loan institution must be 
located in California. 

 
e. A General checking account shall be maintained for amounts under 

$300,000. During emergency situations this amount may be 
temporarily exceeded for up to a seven-day period. The minimum 
account balance should be $5,000 in order to meet unanticipated 
cash requirements. 

 
2. Market Risk. The risk of market value fluctuations due to overall changes 

in the general level of interest rates shall be mitigated by limiting the 
weighted average maturity of the District’s Fund to five years. 

 
NOTE:  Five years is the maximum maturity allowed by law for 

individual investments, unless specifically permitted 
the Board of Directors for a longer time. The preferred 
weighted average maturity should generally be set at 
a time less than five years in order to accommodate 
the District’s cash flow needs. 

 
B.  Liquidity: 
 

Liquidity is the second-most important objective. Investments shall be made 
whose maturity date is compatible with cash flow requirements, and which can 
be easily and rapidly converted into cash without substantial loss of value.  

 
C.  Return on Investment: 
 

Investments shall be undertaken to produce an acceptable rate of return after 
first considering safety of principal and liquidity.  

  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    19 (con’t.) 
Issue No.   9 
Effective Date:  2/14/11 
 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 
D. Prohibited Investments:   

 
Pursuant to Government Code section 53601.6, as may be amended from time 
to time, the District is prohibited from investing in inverse floaters, range notes, or 
mortgage-derived interest-only strips. The District also is prohibited from 
investing funds in any security that could result in zero interest accrual if held to 
maturity; however, any prohibited investments may be held until their maturity 
dates, and this limitation shall not apply to investments in shares of beneficial 
interest issued by diversified management companies registered under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 80a-1, and following) that are 
authorized for investment pursuant to subdivision (k) of Section 53601 of the 
California Government Code. 

 
NOTE: If any of these prohibited investments were purchased prior to 

enactment of SB 866, the District may hold them until maturity. 
 
Government Code 53637 prohibits the legislative body of a local agency and the 
treasurer or other official of the local agency having legal custody of the money are 
prohibited from investing local agency funds, or funds in custody of the local 
agency, in negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a credit union if a member of 
the legislative body of the local agency, or any person with investment decision 
making authority in the administrative office, manager’s office, budget office, 
auditor-controller’s office, or treasurer’s office of the local agency also serves on 
the board of directors, or any committee appointed by the board of directors, or the 
credit committee or the supervisory committee of the credit union issuing the 
negotiable certificates of deposit. 
 
E.  Reporting Requirements (Government Code Sec. 53646): 

 
NOTE:   If a local agency has placed all of its investments in the Local 

Agency Investment Fund, created by Section 16429.1 through 
16429.3 of the Government Code, or in Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation-insured accounts in a bank, in National Credit Union 
Association insured credit union accounts, or in Federal Savings 
and Loan Insurance Corporation accounts in savings and loan 
associations, or any combination of these, the Treasurer or 
manager may comply with Government Code Section 53646 by 
supplying to the District’s Board of Directors, manager, and auditor 
the most recent statement(s) received by the District. For any other 
combination of investments, the requirements below apply. 

 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    19 (con’t.) 
Issue No.   9 
Effective Date:  2/14/11 
 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
  The report must be given at least quarterly, within 30 days 

after quarter-end. However, the Board of Directors may elect 
to require the report, as specified in Sec. 53646, to be made 
on a monthly basis instead of quarterly.  

  Contents of the report must include: 1. The type of investment 
2. The issuer 
3. The date of maturity par and dollar amount invested in 

all securities 
4. A description of any of the District Funds, investments, 

or programs that are under management 
5. The market value weighted average, investments and 

monies held by the agency as of the date of the report. 
This includes any Funds, investments or programs, 
including loans that are under the management of 
contracted parties. 

6. The report must also state compliance of the Fund with 
the statement of investment policy, or the manner in 
which the Fund is not in compliance.  

7. Any additional information required by the Board of 
Directors. 

  Include a statement denoting the ability of the District to meet 
its expenditure requirements for the next six months, or an 
explanation as to why sufficient money will not or may not be 
available. A subsidiary ledger of investments may be used in 
accordance with accepted accounting practices.  The Treasurer or manager shall report whatever additional 
information or data may be required by the Board of Directors. 

 
F. Policy Review:  
 

State Law requires that Special Districts perform an annual review of their 
investment policy for compliance with changes in the law. The District will 
endeavor to perform this annually, in May of each year.  

 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    19 (con’t.) 
Issue No.   9 
Effective Date:  2/14/11 
 
Subject:   Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures 
 
G. Delegation of Authority: 
 

Implementation of this policy is the responsibility of the District Treasurer. By 
law, the Board of Directors is empowered to only delegate investment authority 
to the Treasurer for a one-year period, renewable annually subject to review. 
When the Treasurer has investment-related questions, he may seek the advice 
of the Finance Committee. Actions taken by the Finance Committee must be in 
general compliance with this policy. The Finance Committee shall assist the 
Treasurer in making the annual policy review required by State law, and make 
recommendations for changes to said policy. Neither the Treasurer nor the 
Finance Committee are empowered to make investment decisions which are 
not in accordance with this policy.  

 
Under the direction and supervision of the Treasurer, the daily administration of 
this policy is hereby delegated to the General Manager and Administrative 
Assistant. 
 

H. Brokers and Dealers: 
 

Brokers and dealers shall only be utilized by approval of the Board of Directors. 
When Brokers and Dealers are used, the scope of their services and details 
pertaining to investment strategies, objectives, and guidelines shall be covered 
by separate Board resolution.  

 
      As relates to the money invested by the District with “Smith Barney,” the              
      directive of the Board of Directors is for the District to utilize a “buy and    hold  
      until maturity” strategy.  As each of these current investments mature, the  
      District’s staff shall reinvest the money in the District’s LAIF account and/or the 
 District’s CalTRUST account. 
 
I. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest: 
 
 Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from 

personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the 
investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial 
investment decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose to the 
President of the Board any material financial interests in financial institutions 
that conduct business within this jurisdiction, and they shall further disclose any 
large personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of the District, particularly with regard to the time of purchases and 
sales. 

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    20 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   Bonding, insurance, and hold harmless language 

requirements for District contracts and agreements 
 
Purpose: To standardize the bonding, insurance, and hold harmless language 
utilized in all District contracts and agreements, in order to transfer risk control to 
those parties providing services to the District. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. Prior to the issuance of any Request for Proposal (RFP) or bid package, the 

District shall verify:  The appropriate levels of insurance that are required in the contract or 
agreement that will ultimately be entered into by the District.  If materials and/or performance bonds are required in the proposal or bid package.  Approval of any deviations to the District’s standard hold harmless language 
that will be included in the contract or agreement that will ultimately be 
entered into by the District. 

2. The Manager shall require levels of insurance sufficient to adequately transfer 
risk control to those parties providing services to the District. 

3. Unless specifically approved, all contracts and agreements for services shall 
include insurance language. 

4. The District may require lower limits of insurance if it is found to be in the best 
interest of the District. 

5. Unless specifically approved, all contract and agreements for services shall 
include hold harmless language. 6.  If required, all requests for proposal or bid packages shall include bonding . 7.  All required insurance shall be carried with responsible insurance companies, 
duly admitted to transact business in the State of California, and shall name as 
additional insured the District, its elected officials, officers, employees and 
agents.



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    21 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/12/97 
 
Subject:   Use and Insurance Requirements for Vehicles and Equipment 

rented by the District 
 
Purpose: To establish a policy regarding the rental of vehicles and equipment by 
the District, and insurance requirements for said rentals. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. It is the policy of the District to allow the rental of vehicles and equipment by 

authorized district employees, to conduct official District business. 
2. All rental vehicles and equipment are covered under the District’s general 

liability insurance policy. Liability insurance is not to be purchased when renting 
vehicles or equipment. 

3. It is the policy of the District, when renting any vehicle or when renting 
equipment with a replacement value greater than $10,000, that the employee 
renting said item shall purchase a collision damage waiver at the time of the 
rental. Costs for the waiver shall be reimbursed by the District.  

4. For the purposes of this policy, equipment shall be defined as “any piece of 
equipment with a replacement value greater than $10,000.” 

  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    22  
Issue No.   6       
Effective Date:  8/13/03   
Subject:    Vehicle Use 
 
Purpose: To identify the eligibility and reporting requirements of District employees 
provided car allowance and/or mileage reimbursement by District funds and to 
establish guidelines relative to the use of both employee vehicles and the vehicles 
and other mobile equipment used or owned by the District.  
 
Policy/Procedure  
1. The District manager shall receive a monthly car allowance at a rate of 

$450/month (effective July 1, 2000 increased to $500.00 per month), to be 
adjusted upon the direction of the Board. The monthly car allowance will be 
included on annual W2 reporting, in accordance with Internal Revenue Codes 
and guidelines. 

2. While operating any vehicle or other mobile equipment for District business, all 
employees shall possess a valid California driver’s license, and shall comply with 
all requirements of the California Vehicle Code and local regulations. In addition, 
all employees shall maintain a driving record deemed acceptable by District 
management, and District insurance carriers. 

3. Except for the District Manager, the District’s employees and Directors shall be 
reimbursed for the business use of personal vehicles at a rate equal to the 
mileage reimbursement rate allowed by the United States Internal Revenue 
Service.  In December of each year District staff will complete an "Expense 
Reimbursement" form for each Director to execute, that will enable each of the 
Directors to be compensated for the previous 12 months of use of their personal 
vehicles to attend Board meetings and attend to authorized business for the 
CBWCD. The District Manager shall only be reimbursed for the business use of 
his personal vehicle when his/her “monthly” business related mileage use 
records reflect that such vehicle has been operated for District purposes in 
excess of 200 miles.  Under such circumstances, the District’s Manager shall be 
reimbursed at the stated rate for only those miles driven that are in excess of 200 
miles per month.  

4. The employee's private vehicle insurance is the primary insurance on the 
employee’s private vehicle, and the District shall not be responsible for the 
replacement or repair of any private vehicle, not otherwise owned, rented, or 
leased by the District, used to conduct District business, if said vehicle is 
damaged or destroyed during the course of such use. 

5. Employees, while performing work for the District, are not nor shall they be 
required to operate their private vehicle off-highway, i.e. off-of-paved 
thoroughfares available for use by the general public. 

6. Employees while operating owned, rental, or leased vehicles and other mobile 
equipment shall not permit “non-employees” to ride thereon or therein unless 
such non-employees are conducting business for or on behalf of the District or 
unless a life threatening medical emergency exists for such non-employee. 

 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    22 (cont.)  
Issue No.   6       
Effective Date:  8/13/03   
Subject:    Vehicle Use 
 
 
7. District owned, rental, or leased vehicles and other mobile equipment shall only 

be utilized to conduct District business and no personal business or activity 
shall be conducted therein or thereon.  Securing personal meals is not District 
business. 

8. Should a District owned, rental, or leased vehicle or other mobile equipment 
become significantly damaged an investigation shall be conducted to determine 
the facts, circumstances and cause of the incident.  The Manager and one 
other full-time employee shall conduct such investigation.  In the event the 
Manager was the operator of the damaged vehicle or equipment the 
investigation shall be conducted by two other full-time employees.  In the event 
the operator is determined to be legally responsible for the damage to District 
owned, rented, or leased vehicles or other mobile equipment, then such 
operator may be disciplined. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    23 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:   Automobile insurability requirements for current and 

prospective employees 
 
Purpose: To enumerate standards to be utilized by the District in determining the 
automobile insurability of current and prospective employees of the District, under 
the District’s self-insured automobile liability program. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. All District employees shall be informed of this policy, and shall acknowledge 

his/her understanding of the potential effects of said policy. 
2. Job descriptions, or other formally adopted employment policies of the District 

shall state that District employees must continue to meet District-established 
automobile insurance standards, and shall clearly indicate if the position 
requires the operation of a District-owned vehicle. 

3. Automobile insurance standards shall be enforced consistently and fairly 
among all current and prospective District employees who are, or will be, 
working in employment classifications where driving of a District-owned motor 
vehicle is required. 

4. All employees of the District must possess and maintain an appropriate and 
valid California driver’s license for the type of vehicle(s) they operate in the 
course of their employment with the District, e.g., “Class C” for automobiles. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.     24 
Issue No.    2 
Effective Date:   3/9/15 
 
Subject:   Department of Motor Vehicle Records Verification and 

Confidentiality 
 
Purpose: To ensure the timely and accurate review of prospective employees’ 
driving records, verification regarding their insurability, prior to and during their 
employment with the District, and to ensure the confidentiality of all Department of 
Motor Vehicle records. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. Prior to commencing employment with the District, all prospective employees 

whose positions require the possession of a valid California driver’s license as 
an essential function of the position, shall provide a copy of their Department of 
Motor Vehicles “Driver’s License Information Request Report” to the District. 

2. All “Driver’s License Information Request Reports” shall be obtained from the 
Department of Motor Vehicles. Reports shall be submitted directly to the District 
no earlier than ten (10) calendar days nor later than three (3) calendar days 
prior to commencing employment with the District. 

3. All costs incurred to obtain a prospective employee’s “Drivers License 
Information Request Report” shall be borne by the prospective employee. 

4. A prospective employee whose position requires the possession of a valid 
California driver’s license as an essential function of the position, and who is 
found to be uninsurable under the District’s automobile insurance program, 
shall not be further considered for employment with the District. 

5. Employee driver’s license information shall be verified at least once each 
calendar year, or more often, through enrollment in the Department of Motor 
Vehicle’s (DMV) Pull Notice program, as might be necessary to determine an 
employee’s insurability under the District’s automobile insurance program.   

  
6. Employee enrollment in a Defensive Driving Class is required at least once 

every four years. 
7.  The original “Driver’s License Information Request Report” for prospective 
 employees whose positions require the possession of a valid California driver’s 
 license as an essential function of the position shall be maintained in their 
respective  application package in the District files. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.     24 (cont.) 
Issue No.    2 
Effective Date:   3/9/15 
 
Subject:   Department of Motor Vehicle Records Verification and 

Confidentiality 
 
 
8. All current employees’ driving records shall be maintained in the Risk 

Manager’s driving record files. All files that contain driving records shall be 
maintained in a locked file cabinet. 

9. Except as provided in this policy, no employee of the District shall disclose any 
information contained in a prospective or current employee’s driving record to 
any individual, business, or firm. Information contained in a prospective or 
current employee’s driving record may only be released by the District to the 
respective District Counsel of Board of Directors, law enforcement agency, or 
as directed by the court. 

10. All questions or problems regarding a prospective or current employee’s driving 
record shall be directed to the Manager for resolution. All inquiries to the 
Department of Motor Vehicles regarding a prospective or current employee’s 
driving record shall be made only by specifically designated employees. 

11. All obsolete driving records shall be destroyed to ensure confidentiality. 
 
Revision Changes 
 
Issue No. 1 – 1-10-96 (Original Policy 
Issue No. 2 – 3-09-15 (Delete Item 6 Verbiage) 
  
   
  
   
  
   
  
   
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 No.    25 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Procedure to fill a vacant position 
 
Purpose: To establish the method by which vacant positions within the District are 
to be filled, and to hire the most qualified employees.  
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. Once a vacancy occurs, the following information is obtained:  Date of Vacancy  Person Replaced  Salary Range  Job Title  Hours  Reason for vacancy (resignation, termination, etc.)  Status (regular, replacement, full-time, part-time, etc.)  Remarks 

 
2. For each employee hired, the Manager ensures that all necessary forms are 

completed and on file in the District’s offices: 
  District Employment Application  Employment Eligibility Verification (form I-9)  Employee’s Withholding Allowance Certificate (form W-4)  Application for Group Employee Benefit Plan (Blue Cross)  Emergency Information 

 
3. Prior to being hired by the District, qualified and selected applicants shall be 

required to undergo a pre-employment physical examination and evaluation 
performed by a physician selected by the District.  

 
4. The Manager verifies that employees who are less than eighteen years old and 

have not yet graduated from high school possess a valid California work permit. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    25-1 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date: 3/12/97 
 
Subject:    Definitions  
 
NOTE:  The singular of any terms shall include the plural and the plural shall 
include the singular. The masculine, feminine or neuter shall be mutually inclusive 
as it may apply. 
 
Purpose: To establish clear definitions of employment terms utilized throughout 

this policy manual. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. "Regular Full-Time Employee" shall mean an employee who has successfully 

met the requirement of the probationary period in a full-time position. 
 
2. "Probationary Employee" shall mean an employee who is hired by the District in 

a full-time position who has been employed and performed work for less than 
six continuous months of service. 

 
3. "Part-Time Employee" shall mean an employee who works a regular schedule 

of less than forty hours per week or less than twelve months per year. A Part-
Time employee is not entitled to the benefits and such enjoyed by regular Full-
Time employees. 

 
4. "Temporary Employee"  shall mean a worker hired for a limited time only with 

completion the particular task or at the end of the particular time period for 
which he was hired. His status as a "Temporary Employee" may be renewed 
for a new task or additional time period at the District's sole discretion. A 
Temporary employee is not entitled to the benefits and such enjoyed by regular 
Full-Time employees. 

 
5. "Probation Period". An employee shall not attain the status of a regular full-time 

employee until he has completed a probationary period of six (6) month's 
continuous service in a regular full-time position with the District. The term 
continuous service as used in this provision means uninterrupted service with 
the District, which service may not be interrupted by unauthorized absences, or 
interruption of service due to illness, or authorized leaves of absence. Such 
interruptions or absences may result in the extension of the six month's 
probationary period, termination of employment, or the commencement of a 
new probationary period based on the specific circumstances. During the 
probationary period the individual may be terminated by the District for any 
reason with or without cause. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    25-1 (cont.) 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date: 3/12/97 
 
Subject:    Definitions  
 
 

 
6. "Termination". The employment status and continuous service status of an 

employee shall be terminated upon the happening of any of the following 
events: 

 
a.   The voluntary quitting or retirement of the employee. 
 
b. Discharge of an employee.  
 
c. Failure of the employee to notify the District within two (2) working days 

after recall to work from layoff of his intention to report for work, or failure 
to actually report for work within five (5) working days after recall to work. 

 
d. Failure of the employee to report for work following the conclusion of an 

approved leave of absence.  
 
e. An employee is on a Leave of Absence and accepts employment 

elsewhere.  
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    26 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Equal Employment Opportunity 
 
Purpose:  To establish the District’s commitment to provide and maintain a work 
environment free from any unlawful discrimination and to establish procedures 
regarding the implementation and enforcement of the District’s Equal Employment 
Opportunity policy. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. It is the policy of the District to provide equal employment opportunity to all 

applicants and employees. The District will not unlawfully discriminate against 
any applicant or employee on the basis of sex, race, color, religion, national 
origin, age, ancestry, physical or mental disability, marital status, sexual 
orientation, veteran status, or any other consideration made unlawful by 
Federal, State or Local Laws. 

2. The District is committed to taking those actions necessary to identify, prevent, 
and correct any behavior that violates this policy or State of Federal law, so as 
to provide a work environment free of discrimination. 

3. For the purposes of this policy, unlawful discrimination shall be defined as a 
difference in the treatment of a District employee based on the person’s sex, 
race, color, religion, national origin, age, ancestry, physical or mental disability, 
marital status, sexual orientation, or veteran status. 

4. All individual officers and employees are responsible to refrain from actions that 
discriminate against other employees, and to report any such conduct 
witnessed. 

5.  Whenever possible, employees or other involved parties who feel that they are 
encountering discrimination, are encouraged to inform the responsible 
individual that his/her behavior is unwelcome or discriminatory. If this does not 
resolve the situation, the affected individual must promptly report the alleged 
discrimination to the employee’s immediate supervisor, the manager, or to the 
Board of Directors.  Complaints of discrimination will be promptly investigated.  6.  If practical, all investigations of alleged discrimination shall be investigated by the District within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the complaint. If an 
investigation cannot be completed within ten (10) working days, the District 
representative shall inform the employee/applicant, the Manager, and the 
Board of Directors when it is anticipated that the investigation will be 
completed.



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    26 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Equal Employment Opportunity 
 
7. If it is determined that discrimination occurred against an employee, the District 

will advise the affected employee, in the presence of the employee’s supervisor 
and the Board of Directors, as to the final disposition of the complaint, including 
any remedial action to be taken. The District will advise the affected applicant, 
by certified mail, as to the final disposition of the complaint, including any 
remedial action to be taken. 

8. All job applicants shall be informed of this policy by way of a letter to be 
included with each employment application, and by the printing of the statement 
“Equal Opportunity Employer” on all applications, all internal and external job 
listings, and all job announcements and advertisements. 

9. Any employee of the District who violates this policy shall be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

10. The District shall maintain records of all complaints filed against the District, 
and corrective and/or disciplinary actions taken for violations of this policy, for a 
period of three years. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    26-1 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/8/00 
 
Subject:   Management Rights, Progressive Discipline of Employees, 

and Related Records and Procedures 
 

 
GENERAL STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

 
"General Statement." The employment policies and rules and regulations for the 
administration of employer/employee relations and all additions, amendments, and 
revisions that may be made are for the guidance of the management and the 
employees of the District and their employee organizations. These policies and 
rules and regulations shall be subject to the following limitations, conditions, 
constructions and interpretations: 

 
1. Certain of the policies and rules and regulations may be changed at any 

time and from time to time by the Board of Directors of the District in 
accordance with the "meet and confer" provisions of the Government Code 
of the State of California.  

2. The policies and rules and regulations shall not be construed as a contract 
with any union or employee organization or as an unalterable relationship 
with any employee. District employment is employment at will as per 
California Labor Code Section 2922. The employee may thus resign at any 
time and conversely his employment may be terminated at any time. 
Nothing in these policies and rules and regulations or in any District 
document or statement, whether oral or written, shall limit the right of the 
employer to terminate at will employment. 
 

 "Management Rights." The exclusive rights of the District shall include, but not be 
 limited to, the right:  to determine the organization of the District and the purpose and mission of its constituent agencies,  to set standards of service to be offered to the public, and through its 

management officials to exercise control and discretion over its organization and 
operations,   to establish and effect administrative regulations and employment rules and 
regulations consistent with law and the specific provisions of this manual to direct 
its employees,   to take disciplinary action for just cause,  to relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons, 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    26-1 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/8/00 
 
Subject: Management Rights, Progressive Discipline of Employees,  and 

Related Records and Procedures 
  to determine whether goods or services shall be made, purchased, or contracted 

for,  to determine the methods, means and personnel by which the District's services are to be provided, including the right to schedule and assign work and overtime, 
and  to otherwise act in the interest of efficient service to the community. 

 
"Employee Conduct, Dress, Appearance, and Personal Hygiene." All 
employees, in order to safeguard the best interests of themselves, the District and 
the public are expected to comply with standards of conduct on the job at a 
minimum equivalent to those all citizens must meet in private life. 
 
In performing their work, employees will probably come into contact with the public, 
which judges the quality of the District service by the appearance and behavior of 
its employees and has the right to expect appropriate clothing, neat appearance, 
good manners, and service. Therefore, all employees should attempt to keep 
themselves as well groomed as possible under the circumstances. They should 
start their work day bathed and in clean clothes. 
 
All employees having long hair or wearing a mustache or beard must keep them 
clean, trimmed, combed, and otherwise groomed so as not to interfere with work 
safety or be offensive to other employees or the general public. 
 
Those employees who normally do not wear a beard or mustache and who 
normally shave must keep themselves clean shaven unless they inform the 
General Manager ahead of time that they are starting a mustache or beard.  
 
Employees must dress in a manner that affords them safety from unnecessary risk 
of injury.  In keeping with these requirements, when working in the field, 
employees must not wear perforated jerseys, sandals, thongs, slippers, or unsafe 
footwear. Likewise, the office employee must keep in mind the impression he/she 
makes as a representative of the District and must not inappropriate clothing. 
 
When, on occasion, employees have to deal with discourteous persons, it is 
especially important for them to maintain their friendly attitude. Continuing courtesy 
on the part of employees will do much to promote an excellent relationship 
between the District and the community. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    26-1 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/8/00 
 
Subject: Management Rights, Progressive Discipline of Employees,  and 

Related Records and Procedures 
 
DISCIPLINE/PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE/RECORDS AND DEMOTION 
 
A. DISCIPLINE 
 
"Disciplinary Policy." The discipline policy of the District is not an item which the 
District will discuss with its employees under "meet and confer", but rather is a 
subject which the District considers as being within its "management rights". It is 
intended that discipline be imposed for corrective purposes and to address 
deficiencies in work performance and behavior modification. The District expects 
its employees to carry out District policies and instructions from management 
without criticizing or undermining those policies and instructions to District 
personnel, customers or the general public. Derogatory comments about the 
District, its policies, activities, personnel or governing body while on duty will not be 
condoned and may constitute the basis for discipline, demotion or discharge. 
Although an employee may have grounds for disagreement, such disagreement 
must not be insubordinate, slanderous, libelous, or bear untruths. 
 
"Disciplinary Acts". Acts by an employee which may constitute a basis for 
discipline up to and including discharge include: 
 

1. Engaging in unsafe horseplay, scuffling, or throwing things. 
2. Disorderly or immoral conduct or indecency while on District premises or 

business..  
3. Abusive behavior towards others, including harassing, threatening, 

intimidating, coercing, interfering with fellow employees. 
4. Provoking or instigating a fight on District property. (Protection of self will 

be given special consideration.) 
5. Being tardy without verifiable excuse or absent without authorization.  
6. Contributing to unsanitary conditions or unsafe or unhealthy 

housekeeping. 
7. Abuse or misuse of District tools and equipment and operating, using, 

or possessing machines, tools, or equipment to which the employee has 
not been trained. 

8. Unauthorized gambling activities such as dice playing, craps, cards, etc., 
on District premises unless approved by management. 

9. Violating a safety rule or safety practice. 
10.  Carelessness affecting personal safety. 
11.  Leaving the job during the work shift without permission.  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    26-1 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/8/00 
 
Subject: Management Rights, Progressive Discipline of Employees, and 

Related Records and Procedures 
 
12. Willful failure to follow or refusal to follow job instructions, verbal or 

written. 
13. Misusing, destroying, or damaging any District property or property of 

any employees. 
14. Reporting for work obviously under the influence of alcohol or non-

prescription drugs. 
15. Consumption of any alcoholic beverage or the use of drugs on the 

premises or on District time. [Consumption of alcoholic beverages at a 
District sponsored event shall not be grounds for discipline.] 

16. Sleeping on the job during working hours.  
17. Insubordination.  
18. Receipt by the District of a wage assignment or garnishment against 

employee's wages 
19. Falsifying District records or other records useful to or used by the 

District. 
20. Possessing firearms or explosives on District premises without 

authorization. 
21. Smoking in prohibited areas. 
22. Theft of any District or employee property. 
23. Unauthorized removal or use of District property without authorization. 
24. Failure to keep supervisor aware of one's whereabouts during duty time 

when availability may be required. 
25. Abuse of sick leave.  
26. Incompetence   
27. Dishonesty     
28. Violation of District rules. 
29. Documented unsatisfactory work performance 
30. Inappropriate dress. Failure to exercise acceptable personal hygiene 

practices. 
 
This list is not to be construed as all-inclusive, but merely the more common 
causes for disciplinary action. 
 
"Just Cause." Application of this section shall be equally applied to all employees, 
and it is the express policy of this District to discipline only for just cause. The 
elements of just cause are:  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    26-1 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/8/00 
 
Subject: Management Rights, Progressive Discipline of Employees,  and 

Related Records and Procedures 
 
 

1 The employee had forewarning or foreknowledge of possible or probable 
disciplinary consequences for violation of the District rule or managerial 
order or the basis if discipline is so obvious that forewarning or 
foreknowledge can be inferred. 

2. The rule or managerial order violated was reasonably related to the 
orderly, efficient, and safe operation of the District.  

3. Determination by the General Manager before administering discipline 
that the employee did in fact violate the rule or order of management. 

4. The investigation into the charge was conducted fairly and objectively. 
5. A preponderance of evidence indicates that the employee has violated a 

District rule or order of management. 
6. The degree of discipline may be increased or tempered if mitigating or 

aggravating factors are present. 
 

These factors include such circumstances as: 
 
a. Employee's prior record. 
b. Prior progressive discipline within a reasonable period of time for 

the same or similar violation. 
c. Extenuating circumstances. 
d. Employee's length of service. 
e. Provocation leading to a violation. 
g. Gravity of the consequences of the violation. 
h. Impact of violation on District customers of the District's efficient 

operation. 
i. Attitude of employee (desire and ability to learn from mistakes). 
 

B.  PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE 
 
"Progressive Discipline Procedure." When an infraction occurs, the General 
Manager shall consider the elements of just cause and administer discipline as 
appropriate. The following steps are not mandatory, and if the infraction is deemed 
to be sufficiently serious, the General Manager may recommend and impose more 
severe discipline. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    26-1 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/8/00 
 
Subject: Management Rights, Progressive Discipline of Employees, and 

Related Records and Procedures 
 
 
"Oral Warnings."  An oral warning may be given to the employee regarding his 
failure to comply with the rule(s) or managerial order and very clearly state what is 
expected in the future.  

1. The General Manager shall keep a record of the date, time, and particulars 
of the conversation;  

2. The employee shall be advised that a record of the verbal warning is being 
kept, and that another warning may lead to more severe action. 

 
"Written Warning/Instruction." The particulars of the verbal warning (date of 
warning, rule violated, highlights of instructions, etc.) may be stated under "Reason 
for Warning". The General Manager may stress again verbally, what is expected 
and what the consequences may be if there is no improvement. 
 
"Suspension Without Pay." Any single or combination of disciplinary action may 
be considered as a major infraction. Certain actions by an employee after the 
elements of just cause have been considered may be so serious as to constitute a 
major infraction. Suspension without pay may be imposed. However, an 
employee's rights to a grievance on such action are not impaired. 
 
"Discharge." Discharge will be considered for major infractions, and/or failure to 
respond appropriately to prior disciplinary action. Should events compel the 
General Manager to take immediate action where discharge appears to be 
necessary, the employee may be immediately suspended for a specific period of 
time pending an investigation of the circumstances and a hearing based on the 
findings. 

 
C. RECORDS 
 
"Disciplinary Records." Disciplinary records shall be kept as follows: 

1. An Oral Warning shall not be placed into a personnel file and shall remain 
with the General Manager. 

2. All other levels of discipline shall be included in the employee's file. 
 

D. DEMOTION 
 
"Demotion." Demotion to a position having a lower salary range may be imposed 
for disciplinary purposes. (Demotions resulting from employee's inability to perform 
required duties, organizational changes, and layoffs are not disciplinary.) 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    26-1 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/8/00 
 
Subject: Management Rights, Progressive Discipline of Employees,  and 

Related Records and Procedures 
 

GRIEVANCE  DEFINED AND PROCEDURES 
 
"Grievance."  A grievance is defined as a disagreement between District 
Management and a District Employee concerning the interpretation, application, or 
violation of these personnel guidelines and policies. 
 
"Purpose." A grievance procedure has been established for the following purposes: 

1. To promote improved employer/employee relations by establishing an 
appropriate means for determining the validity of grievances; i.e., claims by an 
employee that the District has violated, misinterpreted or misapplied an 
obligation to the employee as such obligation is expressed and written in the 
District's Rules and Regulations. 

2. To provide a method of resolving such claims as closely as possible to the 
date of origin and as informally as possible. 

3. To encourage free communication between management and employees. 
 

"Grievance Procedure Steps." 
1.   Step One: General Manager 
 Employees who have a grievance shall first take it up informally with the 

General Manager within fifteen (15) working days after they knew or 
reasonably should have known of the occurrence of the cause of the 
grievance. 

2.   Step Two: President of the Board of Directors 
 If the grievance is not resolved within five (5) working days after its submission 

in Step One, the employee may submit a detailed written presentation of the 
grievance in a sealed envelope to the President of the Board of Directors 
through the General Manager within five (5) working days thereafter. The 
President shall meet with the employee within five (5) working days after 
submission of the grievance and shall deliver his answer in writing to the 
employee within five (5) working days after such meeting. 

 At this and all subsequent steps in the grievance procedure, the employee has 
the right to present his grievance with or without a representative, at his 
option. 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    26-1 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/8/00 
 
Subject: Management Rights, Progressive Discipline of Employees, and 

Related Records and Procedures 
 
3.   Step Three: Personnel Committee 
If the grievance is not resolved in the Second Step, the aggrieved employee 
may submit it in writing to the Personnel Committee within five (5) working  
days  after  the  President's  answer  is  received  by submitting the request in 
a sealed envelope to the General Manager for delivery to the Personnel 
Committee. The Personnel Committee shall meet with the employee within 
five (5) working days after receiving the grievance and shall deliver their 
answer in writing five (5) working days after such meeting. These time limits 
may be extended to a definite date by mutual agreement of the employee and 
the General Manager. 

 
 "General Provisions." 

1. If appeal is not made by the employee within the time limits indicated, the 
grievance will be considered to be settled on the basis of the last decision 
rendered. Any grievance not responded to by the District within the 
prescribed time limits shown will have automatically been advanced to the 
next higher step unless the time limit is extended by mutual agreement. 

2. All grievance materials, correspondence and decisions shall be placed in 
the personnel file of the grievant. 

3. Employees are assured freedom from reprisal for using the grievance 
procedure. 

 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    27 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  9/19/01 
 
Subject:    Employment Practices 
 
Purpose:  To establish guidelines regarding the employment practices of the 
District and the employment of relatives of elected or appointed officials and/or 
employees of the District hired, transferred, and/or promoted after the adoption of 
this policy. 
 
Policy/Procedure 

1. For the purpose of this policy, “relative” shall mean: 
 Spouse                         Half-brother 
 Child Half-sister 
 Step-child Mother-in-law 
 Grandchild Father-in-law 
 Parent Aunt 
 Step-parent Uncle 
 Grandparent Niece 
 Brother Nephew 
 Sister Ward 
 Step-brother Guardian 
 Step-sister 

2.  Relatives of elected or appointed officials and/or of employees (regular 
full-time, probationary, limited term, and/or part-time) of the District shall 
be eligible for employment in any position/classification at the District, 
provided said employment:  Will not have the potential for creating an adverse impact on safety, security, or morale of other employees of the District.  Does not place an employee in a position where he/she will directly or 

indirectly supervise or be supervised by his/her relative.  Does not place an employee in a position where he/she will maintain or 
have access to the personnel and/or payroll records of his/her relative.  Does not place an employee in a position where he/she will audit, 
verify, receive, or be entrusted with monies or other valuables (i.e.; 
inventory, bonds, etc.) handled by his/her relative. 

3.  Officials and employees of the District shall not participate, in any manner, 
in the selection process when his/her relative is being considered for 
employment with the district, regardless of the position or Department for 
which the individual is being considered. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
 
No.    27 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  9/19/01 
 
Subject:    Employment Practices 
 

4.  An employee whose immediate family-member status may change as a 
result of marriage may continue employment with the District, provided 
that his/her continued employment does not create an adverse impact on 
supervision, safety, security, or morale, as outlined above. The District 
reserves the right to modify work assignments to minimize any potential 
conflicts caused by a change in such status.  

5.  When a vacancy occurs in a full-time position and/or when the Directors 
elect to create a new full-time position at the District, the Manager shall 
consult with the members of the Personnel Committee to review the need 
for the position, the essential duties and qualifications for the position, 
wages, and other working conditions.  The recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee shall be considered by the Board of Directors before 
the Manager either advertises the vacant position or fills the vacancy 
through promotion, transfer, or otherwise.  In filling all such vacant 
positions, the Manager shall follow the established procedures and 
policies of the District related to Equal Employment Opportunity, 
Nepotism, and such. 

6.  When a vacancy occurs in a part-time position, the Manager or his 
designee shall consult with the members of the Personnel Committee to 
review the need for the position, the essential duties and qualifications for 
the position, wages, and other working conditions and options.  The 
Manager may immediately act upon receipt of the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee.  The members of the Personnel Committee shall 
report their findings and actions at the next regular meeting of the Board of 
Directors.  Following the established procedures and policies of the 
District governing Equal Employment Opportunity, Nepotism, and such, 
the Manager may, if authorized by the members of the Personnel 
Committee, either advertise the vacant position or fill the vacancy through 
promotion, transfer, or otherwise. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    28 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Harassment Prohibition 
 
Purpose: To establish the District’s commitment to creating and maintaining a 
work environment free from harassment, and to establish procedures regarding 
the implementation and enforcement of the District’s Harassment Prohibition 
Policy. 
 
Policy/Procedure 

1. It is the policy of the District to provide a workplace that is free from 
harassment, whether intentional or unintentional, for all applicants, 
employees and individuals conducting business at the District. 

2. The District is committed to taking those actions necessary to identify, 
prevent, and correct any behavior that violates this policy, so as to provide 
a work environment free from harassment. 

3. The District will not tolerate sexual or any other type of harassment by 
insiders or outsiders. Sexual harassment, or any other type of 
harassment,  (including third-party) on the basis of sex, race, color, 
religion, national origin, age, ancestry, physical or mental disability, marital 
status, sexual orientation, or veteran status, includes, but is not limited to: 
unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal 
or physical conduct of a sexual nature when 1) submission to such 
conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an 
individual’s employment 2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by 
an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting the 
individual, or 3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably 
interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment. Third party 
includes outside service people, family, friends or acquaintances of 
employees. 

4. Harassment includes, but is not limited to:  Verbal Harassment - For example, derogatory comments or slurs. This might include inappropriate sexually-oriented comments on 
appearance, including dress or physical features, or race-oriented 
stories.  Physical Harassment - For example, assault, impeding or blocking 
movement, with physical interference of normal work or movement. 
This could be conduct in the form of pinching, grabbing, patting, leering 
or the making of explicit or implied job threats or promises in return for 
submission of physical acts.  Visual Harassment - For example, offensive posters, notices, bulletins, 
cartoons, drawings, cards, or photos.  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    28 (cont.) 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Harassment Prohibition 
 

  Sexual Favors - Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual 
favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature which is 
conditioned upon an employment benefit, unreasonably interferes with 
an individual’s work performance, or creates an offensive work 
environment.  Retaliation for having reported or threatened to report harassment. 5. All supervisory and management personnel are responsible to ensure that 

the work environment for which they are responsible is free from all types 
of harassment, and to take prompt action to avoid and minimize incidents 
of harassment. 

6. All individual employees are responsible to refrain from actions that harass 
other employees. 

7. Any alleged harassment against an employee is to be immediately 
reported to a supervisor, the Manager, or member(s) of the Board of 
Directors, either by the employee or by the offended party that witnessed 
the alleged harassment. Complaints of harassment shall be promptly 
investigated. 

8. If practical, all investigations of alleged harassment shall be investigated 
within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the complaint. 

9. Any employee of the District who violates this policy shall be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

10. The District shall maintain records of all complaints filed against the 
District, and corrective and/or disciplinary actions taken for violations of 
the District’s harassment prohibition policy. Said records shall be 
maintained three (3) years, or until final disposition of the complaint, 
whichever is longer. 

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.     29 
Issue No.    2 
Effective Date:   9/14/15 
 
Subject:     Introductory Employment 
  
Purpose: To establish an introductory period of employment during which the 
employee and the District can determine the employment is a good match and 
meets the needs of the District.  
 
Policy/Procedure 

1. All newly hired employees or rehired employees will serve an introductory 
period of one year (2,080 hours). 

2 Introductory employment employees accrue vacation and sick leave, but 
may not use the accrued time during the introductory employment period, 
or extension thereof. 

3. Pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 
(COBRA), an original probationary employee may elect, at his/her cost, to 
continue for up to eighteen (18) months, District-offered health insurance 
that is in effect at the time of his/her termination. 

  
   
Revision Changes:  
Issue No. 1- 1-10-96 (Original Policy) Issue No. 2- 9-14-15 (Change length of introductory period & delete #3 entirely)  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    30 
Issue No.   3 
Effective Date:  3/1/98 
 
Subject: Timesheet submittals and payroll-related employee status 

changes 
 
Purpose:   To establish the procedures and time frames/deadlines for 
submission of payroll timesheet and personnel actions which affect the 
processing of the District’s biweekly payroll.  
 
Policy/Procedure To enable the District to process an efficient and timely 
biweekly payroll, the following deadlines have been established: 
  Effective on March 1, 1998, the District pays salaried and hourly 

employees on a bi-weekly basis, with payroll cutoff at 11:59 p.m. 
Saturday. (Pay periods run for fourteen consecutive calendar days.)  On their last workday of each bi-weekly pay period, each hourly employee will complete, sign, date and submit their timesheet to their supervisor for 
approval.   The District will process paychecks and issue them to all employees within 
seven days following the cutoff date.  Transactions received before the cutoff will be processed in the current 
pay period. Transactions received after the cutoff will be processed in the 
following pay period. These transactions include, but are not limited to: 
1. Merit increases 
2. Promotions/demotions 
3. Insurance changes that affect premium amounts 
4. State and/or Federal Income Tax withholdings (W-4 Changes) 
5. Deferred compensation withholding changes 
6. Terminations, resignations and retirements 
7. Cost of living adjustments 

  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    30-1 
Issue No.   3 
Effective Date:   3/9/09 
 
Subject:    Overtime – Alternative Work Week 
 
Purpose: To establish the guidelines under which overtime is defined and 
administered by the District. 
 
Policy/Procedure: 
This policy shall apply to full time permanent employees, currently scheduled to 
work a traditional 40 hour per week work schedule. CBWCD has determined 
through communications with its employees that the 9/80 work week would be 
the Alternative Work Week most agreeable to its employees, and therefore to the 
District.  In a scheduled two week, 80 hour pay period, employees will work eight 
nine hour days and one eight hour day and have one eight hour work day off 
every two weeks. 
 
1. Employees on an Alternative Work Week earn overtime differently than those 

who are entitled to overtime pay after only eight hours per day.  Employees 
on Alternative Work Weeks are owed time and a half for all work performed in 
any workday beyond the schedule established by the Alternative Work Week 
agreement, up to 12 hours a day, or for all work performed in any week 
beyond the schedule established by the Alternative Work Week agreement 
for that week.  Thus, the employee will be paid time and a half for hours 
worked in excess of nine hours a day on a scheduled nine hour work day or in 
excess of eight hours on that employee’s scheduled eight hour day or for all 
work performed in any week in excess of the schedule established by the 
Alternative Work Week agreement for that week.  Double time is owed for all 
work performed in excess of 12 hours per day, or in excess of eight hours on 
an unscheduled workday. 

 
Overtime must be required by the General Manager, and will be computed to 
the nearest one-quarter (one-quarter) hour. All employees will be expected to 
work overtime under specific circumstances which shall be defined by the 
General Manager. Refusal to work, after requested to do so under those 
circumstance, will be grounds for disciplinary action. 

 
2. "Overtime Criteria". Management and employees exempt from the overtime 

requirement of the Fair Labor Standards Act will not be entitled to overtime 
compensation except in special cases where the Board of Directors 
determines that the circumstances warrant extra compensation. In such 
circumstances, the Board of Directors, shall, in its sole discretion, determine 
the amount of such compensation to be given. 

 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.     30-2 
Issue No.    4 
Effective Date:  7/14/14 
 
Subject:    Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 
 
Compensation 
1. "Compensation Policy". As a public entity, the District is committed to 

rendering the highest level of service possible at a fair and reasonable cost. 
The District's ability to achieve this objective is affected by a number of 
factors, one of which is the quality performance of District employees. In order 
to attract and retain highly competent employees, promote continuous 
superior performance, and give full recognition to District financial constraints, 
the following criteria will be considered in establishing employee 
compensation: 
A. The impact of compensation on the cost of services, financial position of 

the District, and overall operational cost. 
B. Compensation paid for similar work in other similar public and private 

organizations. 
C. The relative worth or value of individual employee's services to the 

success of the District. 
D. The general and specific performance of employees. 
E. Status of the labor force, economic conditions, recruitment and retention, 

experience and other factors influencing the maintenance of a stable and 
efficient work force. 
 

2. "Job Description". Job descriptions define essential duties than an employee 
is required to perform in each classification as a condition of continued 
employment. They are not intended to limit the work which may be performed 
since other tasks may be assigned that are similar in nature. 

 
3. "Employee Paycheck". Each employee's check stub indicates total gross 

earnings, net earnings, or "take-home pay", deductions, and other important 
information. The check stub should be examined and retained for personal 
records. 

 
During the course of employment, changes effecting payroll status will 
probably occur from time to time. Examples are changes of dependents and 
changes required to adjust an excessive or insufficient tax withholding 
situation. Questions concerning these changes should be directed to the 
General Manager.  

 
 
 
 

 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.     30-2 (cont.) 
Issue No.    4 
Effective Date:  7/14/14 
 
Subject:    Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 

 
The District will provide for payroll deduction of the following amounts in 
addition to the normal federal and state tax withholdings and benefit 
payments required by law: 
A. Amounts necessary to adjust jury duty payments received by employees 

or similar payments received by the employee for periods previously 
compensated by the District, upon verification of payment by the court. 

B. Appropriate sums shall be withheld from the pay checks of District 
employees for: 
1. Medicare  
2.  OASDI 
3. CA SDI 
4. Social Security 

 
4. "Wage Garnishment". Employee wage garnishments created additional work 

on the office staff. Discharge because of multiple garnishments is permitted 
by law. Therefore, the District policy is that wage levies for multiple 
garnishments shall be considered grounds for dismissal. 

  
5. "FLSA Non-exempt Employees" shall be paid at their respective wage rate on 

the basis of time cards turned in. Any time cards not turned in by the day after 
the end of the pay period may be grounds for discipline. Each employee is 
responsible for preparing an individual time card. This includes work days, 
time on sick leave, time off due to work-related injury, authorized holidays and 
vacations. 
A. Employees paid hourly working an Alternative Work Week are owed time 

and a half for all work performed in any workday beyond the schedule 
established by the Alternative Work Week agreement, up to 12 hours a 
day, or for all work performed in any week beyond the schedule 
established by the Alternative Work Week agreement for that week.  

B.  Employees paid hourly working an Alternative Work Week are owed 
double the employee's regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 
12 in any workday and for all hours worked in excess of eight hours on the 
seventh consecutive day of work in a workweek. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.      30-2 (cont.) 
Issue No.     4 
Effective Date:   7/14/14 
 
Subject:    Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 

 
Work Schedule / Records and Reports 
1. "Normal Work Week”.  CBWCD has determined through communications with 

its employees that the 9/80 work week would be the Alternative Work Week 
most agreeable to its employees, and therefore to the District.  In a scheduled 
two week, 80 hour pay period, an employee will work eight nine hour days 
and one eight hour day and have one eight hour work day off every two 
weeks. 

 
2. "Flex Time". Flex time for District Employees is subject to prior approval of the 

General Manager.  For FLSA non-exempt employees, flex time must be 
confined to a work week as defined above. For FLSA exempt employees it 
should occur within the pay period. Prior written approval from the General 
Manager shall be obtained no later than the conclusion of the previous work 
shift. 

 
3. “Normal Work Day”. In a scheduled two week, 80 hour pay period, an 

employee will work eight nine hour days and one eight hour day and have 
one eight hour work day off every two weeks. 

 4. "Secondary Employment". Employees must notify the District of all secondary 
employment. All employees are prohibited from any secondary employment 
that interferes with their normal job duties or which creates a conflict of 
interest in regard to their primary employment. Interference is not limited to an 
actual conflict in hours of employment or conflict of interest, but also includes 
the ability of the employee to devote his full attention to District 
responsibilities; to be fit for duty, not to be tired from a second job while on 
duty; and not having to switch hours with other employees for the purpose of 
performing a second job.  

 Any employee who engages in after or before hours work at a secondary job 
must accomplish the following: 
A. Receive the written permission of the General Manager prior to accepting 

secondary employment;  
B. When requested by the General Manager, obtain from the secondary 

employee a waiver of liability for the District from the secondary employer;  
C. It is incumbent on the employee to make it clear to the secondary 

employer that he, the employee, is not performing any duties as a 
representative of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District; and 

D. When engaging in secondary employment, the employee is prohibited 
from wearing any uniform of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District 

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.     30-2 (cont.) 
Issue No.    4 
Effective Date:  7/14/14 
 Subject:    Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 
 
5. "Meal and Rest Periods". Under California labor law a 30 minute unpaid meal 

break is provided to all employees who work more than five hours. An 
employee has the option to waive this lunch period provided that s/he has not 
worked more than six hours with supervisor approval.  As such, this waiver 
does not apply to CBWCD employees who will be working regularly 
scheduled nine and eight hour days.  Employees are provided with a net 10-
minute paid rest period for every four hours worked or major fraction thereof. 
Insofar as is practicable, the rest period should be in the middle of the work 
period.   The Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (DLSE) considers 
anything more than two hours to be a “major fraction of four.”  A rest period is 
not required for employees whose total daily work time is less than three and 
one-half hours.  The rest period is counted as time worked and therefore, the 
employer must pay for such periods. 

 6. "Personnel File". The accuracy of personnel records is essential for the proper 
handling of many items of great importance to employees, including the 
emergency notification of family, income tax deductions, insurance coverage, 
and other fringe benefits from the District. It is the employee's responsibility to 
keep the District updated on personal information so that the District may 
effectively handle those programs and tasks which are for the employee's 
benefit. Realizing the personal nature of the data in the personnel records, 
the District respects the employee's confidentiality and will not disclose this 
information without written approval, or as required by law. An employee may 
request to review his personnel file by submitting a written request twenty-four 
hours in advance to the General Manager. 
 
In order that the District may keep complete and current records, it is 
mandatory that the employee notify the District office immediately whenever 
there is a change in the employee's: A. Address 
B. Telephone Number 
C. Person to notify in the event of an emergency. 
D. Name, through marriage or otherwise. 
E. Marital status 
F. Number of Dependents 
G. Insurance Beneficiary 
H. Military Status 
I. Driver's License Number and date of expiration when a condition of 

employment. 
J. Proof of automobile insurance, if required. 

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.     30-2 (cont.) 
Issue No.    4 
Effective Date:  7/14/14 
 Subject:    Compensation/Work Schedule/Records and Reports 

 
7. “Newly Hired Employees”.  All new employees must furnish the District office 

with:  Documentation that establishes identity and employment eligibility (I9)   Valid Social Security card  For positions that will operate motor vehicles: o A Department of Motor Vehicles report demonstrating valid driving 
status and a good motor vehicle driving record as evidenced by 
freedom from multiple or serious traffic violations or accidents for at least two years duration. o A valid California driver’s license with picture. o In order for an employee to operate their personal vehicle for company 
business the employee will need to provide proof of auto insurance 
demonstrating coverage determined by the district.  Results of fingerprint research performed by local police department. All 

successful candidates new to the district must be fingerprinted at the 
employee’s expense, and cleared by the Department of Justice prior to 
beginning employment. No person shall be employed if they have been 
convicted of any sex offense, a controlled substance offense or any violent 
or serious felony.  Results of pre-employment physical examination and drug screen.  
Employee must pass a physical exam including a screening for the use of 
illegal substances to meet the district’s zero tolerance policy.  California Fair Political Practices Commission Form 700, if applicable  IRS Form #W4 

 
 Revision Changes: 
 Issue No. 1 – 1-10-96 (Original Policy) Issue No. 2 -  3-08-00 (Establish Overtime Guidelines) 
Issue No. 3 – 3-09-09 (Alternative Work Week Written Disclosure) Issue No. 4 – 7-14-14 (Meal and Rest Period DLSE Clarification)  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    30-3 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date: 4/13/09 
 
Subject:    Alternative Work Week Written Disclosure 
 
Purpose: To The purpose of this document is to support and establish the 
creation of an Alternative Work Week.  
 
Policy/Procedure:   
Chino Basin Water Conservation District Alternative Work Week Written 
Disclosure: 
 
1. Introduction: CBWCD has investigated moving from a traditionally 

scheduled forty hour, five day work week to an Alternative Work Week.  An 
Alternative Work Week is defined as any regularly scheduled work week that 
requires an employee to work more than eight hours in one 24 hour period. 
 

2. Purpose: The purpose of this document is to support and establish the 
creation of an Alternative Work Week.  The benefits realized by such a 
schedule may include, but are not limited to:  increased productivity  decreased absenteeism  improved customer service  enhanced employee morale  improved work/life balance  and/or lower operating costs 

 
3. Eligibility: This policy shall apply to full time permanent employees, currently 

scheduled to work the standard forty hour per week work schedule.  
Probationary employees accrue vacation and sick leave, but may not use the 
accrued time during the introductory employment period, or extension thereof. 
 

4. Policy: CBWCD has determined through communications with its employees 
that the 9/80 work week would be the Alternative Work Week most agreeable 
to its employees, and therefore to the District.  In a scheduled two week, 80 
hour pay period, employees will work eight nine hour days and one eight hour 
day and have one eight hour work day off every two weeks.  Pay periods 
begin at 12:00 PM on designated Fridays and extend through 11:59 AM on 
alternating Fridays. 

 
5. Disclosure: 

A. Wages: There will be no changes to the employee’s rate of pay as a result 
of changing to an Alternative Work Week.  An employee who works under 
the Alternative Work Week will see no changes in that employee’s 
paycheck from that of a standard work week.   



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    30-3 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date: 4/13/09 
 
Subject:    Alternative Work Week Written Disclosure 

 
B. Overtime: Employees on an Alternative Work Week earn overtime 

differently than those who are entitled to overtime pay after only eight 
hours per day.  Employees working an Alternative Work Week are due 
time and a half for all work performed in any workday beyond the schedule 
established by the Alternative Work Week agreement, up to 12 hours a 
day, or for all work performed in any week beyond the schedule 
established by the Alternative Work Week agreement. Thus, the employee 
will be paid time and a half for hours worked in excess of nine hours a day 
on a scheduled nine hour work day or in excess of eight hours on that 
employee’s scheduled eight hour or for hours in any week in excess of the 
schedule established by the Alternative Work Week agreement.  Double 
time is owed for all work performed in excess of 12 hours per day, or in 
excess of eight hours on an unscheduled workday. 

C. Lunch & Break Periods:  Under California labor law a 30 minute unpaid 
meal break is provided to all employees who work more than five hours. 
An employee has the option to waive this lunch period provided that s/he 
has not worked more than six hours with supervisor approval.  As such, 
this waiver does not apply to CBWCD employees who will be working 
regularly scheduled nine and eight hour days.  A ten minute rest break is 
provided for every four hours of work.  These lunch and break periods will 
not be affected by the change to the Alternative Work Week. 

D. Sick Pay:  The number of sick days and rate of accrual will remain 
unchanged by the Alternative Work Week schedule.  However, the rate of 
usage will change slightly as an employee who calls in sick on a day 
scheduled for nine hours will have those nine hours deducted from that 
employee’s sick time, instead of the eight hours that would have been 
deducted under a traditional work schedule or the 9/80 Alternative Work 
Week scheduled eight hour day. 

E. Holiday Pay: If a District observed holiday falls on an employee’s 9/80 
Alternative Work Week scheduled day off, the employee will accrue eight 
hours of holiday time.  If an observed holiday falls on the employee’s eight 
hour work day, the employee will be credited with eight hours of holiday 
pay.  If an observed holiday falls on the employee’s nine hour work day, 
the employee may elect to use one hour of vacation or floating holiday 
leave accrual to supplement the eight-hour holiday pay. 

F. Vacation: The number of vacation days and rate of accrual will remain 
unchanged by the Alternative Work Week. However, the rate of usage will 
change slightly.  If an employee takes a one-week vacation the week s/he 
is scheduled to work five days, 44 hours vacation will be deducted from 
the employee’s vacation accrual for that week.  If an employee takes a 

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    30-3 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date: 4/13/09 
 
Subject:    Alternative Workweek Written Disclosure 
 

one-week vacation during the week scheduled for a 9/80 day off, 36 hours 
will be deducted from the employees vacation accrual balance.  If an 
employee takes one day of vacation leave at a time, vacation time off will 
be deducted at the rate of nine hours for nine hour workdays and eight 
hours for eight hour workdays. 

 
6. Flexibility:  Management reserves the right to temporarily revert the schedule 

to a traditional work week in order to accommodate training, special events, or 
other pressing circumstances.  Management reserves the right to return to a 
traditional work schedule any time the needs of the District require it or for other 
work-related reasons.  An employee working an Alternative Work Week who 
receives an unsatisfactory performance evaluation may be returned to the 
traditional work schedule if the supervisor determines the employee’s 
performance is negatively impacted by the Alternative Work Week. 
 

7. Benefits:  The health coverage enjoyed by the permanent full-time employees 
of the District will not be affected by the Alternative Work Week. 

 
The District will include a separate listing by officer/employee outlining applicable 
charges in the Director’s Board Meeting package. The listing will be accessible 
as public record in conjunction with the regular Board Meeting materials. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    31  
Issue No.    6 
Effective Date: 1/12/09 
 
Subject:    Part-Time Employment  
 
Purpose:   To establish the guidelines under which part-time   
   employees’ status and benefits are administered by the  
   District. 
 
Definitions: A temporary part-time employee is defined as any employee 

working less than forty (40) hours per week for  less than 6 
months. 
A regular part-time employee is defined as any   

 employee consistently working less than forty (40) hours 
 per week. 

 
Policy/Procedure 
Retirement Plan:  

The retirement plan provided by the District is through CalPERS.   The 
District pays the employee (7%), as well as the employer portion of the 
plan which is provided for all part-time staff who work 1,000 hours or more 
each year. The District administers the plan pursuant to the CalPERS 
rules and regulations. 

 
Medical Benefits:  A regular part-time employee working one thousand (1,000) or more hours within a fiscal year (July 1 through June 30), will become eligible 

for a maximum District contribution of $350.00 per month towards 
his/her privately purchased health insurance premium.  If the part-time 
employee elects to secure his/her own basic medical insurance 
coverage and desires reimbursement through the District, the 
employee shall provide a receipt or other acceptable proof of payment 
in accordance with the auditor’s guidelines.  The District will then issue 
a reimbursement check to the employee.  The District will only pay that 
portion of the insurance premium covering the employee; it does not 
pay insurance premiums for a part-time employee’s spouse or family 
members. Regular part-time employees working less than one 
thousand (1,000) hours in a fiscal year are not eligible for this benefit, 
unless such employee has prior service credit.  Part-time employees are not eligible to participate in any ACWA benefit 
plans. 

 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    31 (cont.) 
Issue No.   6 
Effective Date: 1/12/09 
 
Subject:    Part-Time Employment  

  An employee changing status from regular full-time to regular part-time 
may not participate in District group health benefits. The District will 
contribute a maximum of $350.00 per month toward the monthly 
premium for his/her health insurance premiums as provided for all 
eligible part-time employees. 

 
Other Benefits:  Accrual of sick and vacation leave shall be effective on the date of placement of a part-time employee into a regular full-time or salary 

position. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    32 
Issue No.   8 
Effective Date:   3/9/09 
 
Subject:    Director, Salaried, Hourly Employee Benefits 
 
Purpose: To establish and set forth benefits provided to Director, salaried and 
hourly District employees.                                    
 
Definitions:  
Director – A publicly elected or appointed member of the District’s Board of 
Directors. 
   
Salaried employee – An exempt employee who works a minimum of 80 hours 
during a scheduled Alternative Work Week. 

 
Full-time hourly employee - A non-exempt, hourly employee who works a 
minimum of 80 hours during a scheduled Alternative Work Week  receiving the 
same vacation, sick, and medical benefits as a salaried employee. 
 
Part-time hourly employee – A non exempt hourly employee not working a full 
time hourly schedule. 
 
Policy/Procedure:   
Retirement Plan:  
The retirement plan provided by the District is through CalPERS and applies to 
salaried and hourly employees meeting plan requirements. The District pays the 
employee (7%), as well as the employer portion of the plan which is provided for 
all salaried and hourly staff who work 1,000 hours or more each year. The District 
administers the plan pursuant to the CalPERS rules and regulations. 
 
Medical Benefits:   
Salaried and full-time hourly employees are eligible for medical benefits covering 
the employee, spouse, and qualified family members as of the first of the next 
month after the date of employment with the full premium paid by the District.  
 
As of the first of the next month after the date a Director is “sworn-in” as a 
Director for this District, individual Directors may elect to utilize a basic health 
care plan of their own choosing, which is comparable in monthly premium 
amounts and benefits to that offered to all District salaried or full-time employees. 
If a Director elects to secure his/her own basic medical insurance coverage and 
desires reimbursement through the District, the Director shall provide a receipt or 
other acceptable proof of payment in accordance with the auditor’s guidelines. 
The District will then issue a reimbursement check to the Director. The District 
will only pay that portion of the insurance premium covering the Director; it does 
not pay insurance premiums for a Director’s spouse or family members.  

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    32 (cont.) 
Issue No.   8 
Effective Date:  3/9/09 
 
Subject:     Director, Salaried and Full-time Employee Benefits 
 
Dental Benefits:   
Salaried or full-time hourly employees are eligible for dental benefits as of the 
first of the next month after the date of employment.  Directors are not eligible for 
dental benefits. 
 
Car Allowance:   
The District Manager receives a monthly car allowance which is delineated within 
District Policy #22. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    33 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/12/97 
 
Subject:   Reimbursement for educational expenses related to an 

employee’s current job classification. 
 
Purpose: To establish procedures for the reimbursement of educational 
expenses that are directly related to an employee’s current job classification with 
the District, or as otherwise provided for under this policy, subject to the 
availability of budgeted funds. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. The reimbursement of educational expenses is to assist employees in 

enhancing their current job knowledge and skills, by providing reimbursement 
for certain expenses related to the maintenance or improvement of job-related 
skills, and/or is required to obtain/renew a certificate/license in order to legally 
perform the essential functions of their job classification, or when they are 
pursuing/renewing a job-related optional/voluntary certification. Costs for 
general education courses are not reimbursable.  

2. Employees are eligible for the reimbursement of costs associated with 
educational expenses for registration fees, tuition, books, required 
course/program materials, and parking fees, provided:  They are a regular full-time employee of the District working forty (40) 

hours per week.  The selected course/program is directly related to his/her current job 
classification with the District and/or is required to obtain/renew a 
certificate/license in order to legally perform the essential functions of 
his/her job classification, or he/she is pursuing/renewing a job-related 
optional/voluntary certification.  They have obtained approval from the Manager prior to registration.   They did not or will not receive duplicate financial assistance from any 
student aid, scholarship, or grant program. Any financial assistance 
received from non-District sources is to be disclosed. Reimbursement 
provided for under this Policy shall be limited to those expenses not 
covered by the non-District funding.  They show proof of a passing grade of "C" or better. 3. Reimbursements will be made according to the procedure for expense 

reporting requirements.  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    34 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/12/97 
 
Subject:    Employment Separation Procedure 
 
Purpose: To establish the guidelines under which employment separations shall be 
processed. 
 
Policy/Procedure: An employment separation can be the result of any of the 
following events: 

1. Retirement 
2. Resignation 
3. Termination 
4. Lay Off 
5. Failure of the employee to report for work following the conclusion of an 

approved leave of absence. 
6. An employee is on leave of absence and accepts employment elsewhere. 

 
Upon determination of an upcoming separation, the following shall be completed by 
the District: 

1. Final Payroll Check Authorization.  The employee advise the District in 
writing as to how he/she would like his/her final payroll check handled (i.e. 
mail, pick-up). 

2. Deferred Compensation Financial Transaction Request. If the employee 
was enrolled in the District’s deferred compensation programs, he/she 
may elect to withdraw his/her contributions. If he/she would like to leave 
the money on deposit, no action is required. 

3. Return of District-issued Tools/ Computers/ Materials. If 
tools/computers/materials were issued to the employee, these items must 
be returned to the District, and the transaction recorded and signed for by 
both the employee and the District representative.  

4. Return of District-issued Keys. The employee’s supervisor is responsible 
for retrieving all District-issued keys from the employee, and the 
transaction recorded and signed for by both the employee and the District 
representative. 

5. COBRA Continuation. The District shall provide instructions to eligible 
employees for completion of COBRA continuation forms for health and 
dental insurance.  

All documents that are processed as a result of an employment separation shall be 
filed in the employee’s personnel file. Once all documents have been completed, the 
personnel file shall be placed in the “inactive employees” file cabinet and shall be 
maintained in accordance with the District’s records’ retention schedule. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    35 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Reinstatement of Employment 
 
Purpose: To establish guidelines for the restoration of a former regular employee 
to District employment. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. Reinstatement of employment is the restoration, without completing the 

normal hiring process, of a former regular employee to a classification in 
which the employee previously served as a regular, non-introductory period 
employee. 

2. To be eligible for reinstatement of employment with the District, the individual 
must have:  Been a regular employee, in good standing, of the District in the twelve 

(12) month period preceding the date of application;  Voluntarily terminated his/her employment with the District, or have been laid off by the District, due to economic/operation reasons 
beyond the individual’s control;  Formerly served as a regular, non-introductory period employee in the 
classification for which he/she is applying;  The ability to perform the essential functions of the position for which 
he/she is applying; and,  Possession of, or ability to obtain, any necessary licenses and/or certifications required of the position for which he/she is applying, prior 
to reinstatement. 

3. An individual who meets the requirements above shall not be automatically 
reinstated to District employment. 

4. For an individual to be considered for reinstatement, he/she must meet all of 
the requirements provided for in this policy, and be recommended for 
reinstatement by the manager prior to commencing the competitive 
examination process with other qualified candidates. A former District 
employee shall not be eligible for reinstatement, pursuant to this policy, after 
the normal hiring process has commenced with the filing of formal 
applications. 

5. Recommendations for reinstatement of employment shall be made in written 
form, and shall delineate the benefits to the District of employing an individual 
without utilization of the normal hiring process. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    35 (cont.) 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Reinstatement of Employment 
 
 
6.  The introductory employment period for an individual who is reinstated in 

accordance with this Policy shall be as follows:   An individual, who is reinstated within six months of his /her 
separation date, shall be required to serve a six month skills 
evaluation period.  An individual, who is reinstated anytime between six and twelve months of his /her separation date, shall be required to serve a new 
six month introductory employment period. 

7. Credit for seniority, leave time and/or benefits shall be as follows:  An individual who is reinstated within six months of his/her separation 
date, shall receive full credit for any seniority, leave time, and/or any 
benefits which he/she had accrued, or was entitled to, during his/her 
former employment, excluding those items which the individual was 
compensated for when he/he left the District.  An individual who is reinstated within six and twelve months after 
his/her separation date, shall not receive credit for any seniority, leave 
time, and/or any benefits which he/she had accrued, or was entitled to, 
during his/her former employment with the District, and shall be 
considered a new employee.  Nothing in this policy shall prohibit the re-employment of any individual who was previously employed by the District, who does or does not 
meet the conditions of reinstatement, who has satisfactorily passed all 
phases of the competitive examination process and who was not 
terminated for cause and who left the District in good standing. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    36 Issue No.    4 
Effective Date:   7/13/15 
 Subject:  Sick Leave  
 Purpose: To establish guidelines for the usage of sick leave by District employees and 
to adhere to AB1522 “Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014”; and to provide affected employees with monetary compensation during an absence from work due to 
an injury, illness, or disability;  to establish the method by which employees receive monetary compensation during an extended absence from work due to an injury, illness, or disability;  to establish how employees who are injured, ill, or disabled on the job 
supplement regular sick leave benefits with compensation received from the District’s Workers’ Compensation program and the State Disability Insurance Fund.   
 Policy/Procedure: 

 1. All salaried and hourly full-time employees accrue sick leave at the rate of eighty (80) hours per year.  Unused sick leave may be carried forward to a maximum accrual of 
one hundred seventy-six (176) hours. Employees are eligible to use accrued sick leave on the 90th day of employment.  Salaried and full time hourly employees who are ill on 
a holiday will receive holiday pay.  2. Except in emergencies or when the employee has previously provided a written off-
work order from his/her treating physician(s), an employee who utilizes sick leave shall be responsible, each and every day sick leave is utilized, to notify the Manager 
or a supervisor prior to his/her scheduled start time.  3.   A District part-time, temporary or intern (employee) who, on or after July 1, 2015, 
works for thirty (30) or more days within a year from the commencement of employment shall accrue paid sick days at the rate of one hour for every 30 hours 
worked; such employee is entitled to use accrued sick days beginning on the 90th day of employment; and the District limits such employee’s use of paid sick days to 24 hours or three (3) days in each year of employment. 

 4. It is the employee’s responsibility to be aware of how much sick leave has been 
earned and used.  In accordance with AB1522, if the employee separates from the   District and is rehired within one year from the date of separation, previously accrued and unused paid sick days shall be reinstated.  The employee shall be entitled to use 
those previously accrued and unused paid sick days and to accrue additional paid sick days upon returning. 

 5. Employees on sick leave who are eligible for disability benefits are required to apply 
for them, and the employee’s pay while on sick leave is reduced by the amount of   any disability benefits awarded. The employee sends the notice of award or a copy of the first disability check to the District as soon as it is received. 

 6.  Sick leave is not paid to employees upon termination, whether voluntary or 
involuntary.   



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    36 (cont.) Issue No.    4 
Effective Date:   7/13/15 
 Subject:   Sick Leave 
 7. At no time shall the employee’s total compensation received from the District’s 

Workers’ Compensation program and the utilization of sick leave, vacation leave be greater than his/her regular total compensation received from the District. 
 8. The use of sick leave or vacation leave to supplement benefits received from the District’s Workers’ Compensation program, or the Long-Term Disability program shall 

be limited to those amounts earned by the employee prior to or accrued during any absence covered by either of those programs.  
 9. Employees who utilize the value of sick leave or vacation leave, to supplement the 

difference between the employee’s regular District compensation and the benefits received from the District’s Workers’ Compensation program are required to submit to the District a copy of all checks received from said programs within five (5) 
working days of receipt of any compensation check.  

10. Upon receiving from the employee a copy of his/her compensation check from the District’s Workers’ Compensation program the District shall credit the employee’s leave accounts for any sick leave or vacation leave utilized to supplement the 
difference between the employee’s regular District compensation and benefits received from the District’s Workers’ Compensation program. 

 11. Upon returning to work following an absence due to an injury or illness, an employee shall present to the General Manager a medical release form identifying "limitation", if 
any, to his ability to perform the regular duties of his position without further injury or at a reduced efficiency.  If the medical release form contains limitations which, in the 
District's sole opinion, are incompatible with its operations and the normal work assignments of the employee, the District may refuse to let the employee return to work.  In such an event, the employee shall continue his absence as identified before 
his attempt to return to work with incompatible restrictions, unless and until he is released to return to work without restrictions or until other provisions of these rules, 
such as those relating to leave of absence and such come into play.  Workers’ Compensation: The District abides by all laws and regulations pertaining to 

the Workers’ Compensation system established by the State of California. Revision Changes 
  
  Issue No. 1 –   1-10-96 (Original Policy) 
Issue No. 2 -    3-12-97 (Annual Review) Issue No. 3 –   3-09-09 (Alternative Work Week) 
Issue No. 4 –   7-13-15 (AB1522 Legal Update)   



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    37  
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Absence for Personal Business  
 
Purpose:  To allow the granting of time off from work to employees when 
personal situations arise that do not fall under normal time off policies. 
 
Policy/Procedure    
The Manager may, at his discretion, grant an employee time off from work to 
attend to personal business not specifically covered in any other policy on 
vacations, sick leave, leave of absence, absence to appear a court of law, jury 
duty, or funerals, not to exceed 8 hours per year. 
 
Time off granted to attend to personal business is considered leave with pay. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.   38 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Vacation  
 
Purpose: 
 
Policy/Procedure   
Full time employees earn vacation time according to the following schedule: 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Manager:  120 hours accrued per year. 
Full-time Employees:  80 hours accrued per year, years 1 through 5.  120 hours 
accrued per year after 5 years, or 8 hours for each year of service, up to a 
maximum of 160 hours.  Part-Time Employees:  Not eligible for vacation. 
 
1. Employees are eligible to use accrued vacation time after six months of 

continuous employment. 
2. When considering vacation requests, the Manager may schedule vacations 

as necessary to minimize the effect of the vacation schedule on District 
operations. 

3. Employees are encouraged to use their vacation time every year. However, 
an employee may carry forward vacation earned but not used up to a 
maximum of 200 hours. Employees will not accrue additional vacation time 
until the total accrued hours is reduced below 200 hours.  

4. The Manager is responsible for seeing that all vacation time used by 
employees is reported. 

5. Upon termination after six months of continuous employment, an eligible 
employee is paid for vacation accrued through the date of termination, 
computed at the employee’s straight time then in effect. 

6. Vacation hours shall be accrued on a pro rata basis calculated with each pay 
period. 

Full Time Staff Vacation 
Accrual Formula 

Years 
employed 

Hours 
p/year 

Hours 
accumulated 
p/paycheck 

1-5 yrs 80 3.08 
6  yrs 120 4.62 
7  yrs 128 4.92 
8  yrs 136 5.23 
9  yrs 144 5.54 
10  yrs 152 5.85 
11 - forward 160 6.15 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

     
No.    39 
Issue No.   4 
Effective Date:  1/1/10 
 
Subject:    Holidays 
 
Purpose: To provide salaried and full-time and part-time hourly employees 
holiday time off with pay, or equivalent compensation. 
 
Policy/Procedure: 
1. The District pays full-time employees for twelve holidays per year:  New Year’s Day  Martin Luther King Day  President’s Day  Memorial Day  Independence Day  Labor Day  Veteran’s Day   Thanksgiving Day  Day after Thanksgiving  Christmas Eve   Christmas Day  New Year’s Eve  

 
For the purpose of this policy, a holiday is defined as a day off with pay. 

 
2. If the holiday falls on Saturday, employees will have the preceding Friday off. 

If the holiday falls on Sunday, employees will have the following Monday off. 
 

3. If a District observed holiday falls on an employee’s 9/80 Alternative Work 
Week scheduled day off, the employee will accrue eight hours of holiday pay.   

 
4. If an observed holiday falls on the employee’s eight hour work day, the 

employee will be credited with eight hours of holiday pay.  
 
5. If an observed holiday falls on the employee’s nine hour work day, the employee may elect to use one hour of vacation or floating holiday leave 

accrual to supplement the eight-hour holiday pay.  
 
6. At the start of each year, the District designates 12 days as holidays and 

posts a list of those days.  
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    40      
Issue No.  2 
Effective Date: 4/14/04 
 
Subject:  Accommodation of Medical Condition and Return to Work  
   Program for Employees Injured on the Job 
   
Purpose: The District shall comply with all applicable provisions of the American 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12101 et seq.).  Further, to the 
extent not otherwise prohibited by law, the District hereby adopts the “Return to Work Program” set forth in Appendices A through H, inclusive, of the Guideline to 
Creating a Return to Work Program (“ the Guidelines”) attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference.  Unless otherwise provided by law, the 
District’s “Return to Work Program” shall be implemented in a manner consistent 
with the processes and procedures contained in the Guidelines. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Guidelines 
   Appendices A-H  
 
 

































Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    41 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Family and Medical Care Leave 
 
Purpose: The District complies with all applicable provisions of the Federal and 
State Family and Medical Care Leave Act. 

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    42 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  1/10/96 
 
Subject:    Budget amendments - O & M and Capital Projects 
 
Purpose: To establish the procedure for amending the Adopted Fiscal Year 
Budget for changes in appropriations.  
 
Policy/Procedure 
1. All proposed amendments which would increase the amount of District funds 

appropriated in any give Fiscal Year’s Adopted Budget must be reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Directors. Only then will the items be made a part of 
the Fiscal Year’s Amended Budget. 

2. Following the Board of Directors’ approval, the proposed amendment 
becomes an approved amendment. The Board Secretary will then ensure that 
the approved amendment is incorporated into the Fiscal Year’s Adopted 
Budget. 

  



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    43 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/9/09 

 
Subject: Bereavement Leave, Jury Duty, and Absence for Military 

Duty 
 
Policy/Procedure: 
"Regular Pay Status". Salaried and full-time hourly employees must be in a regular 
pay status to accrue and receive benefits. When a regular salaried or full-time 
hourly employee has been placed on "long-term disability" status or leave of 
absence, vacation, sick leave, and holiday pay shall not continue to accrue; 
however, Worker's Compensation benefits are not affected.  
 
1. Bereavement Leave: 

"Qualifications to Use Bereavement Leave". In the event of a death in a regular 
salaried or full-time hourly employee's immediate family (spouse, son, daughter, 
mother, father, brother, sister, half-brother, half-sister, father-in-law, mother-in-
law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, grandmother, grandfather), 
the employee may take a maximum of  40 hours leave without loss of pay for 
the purpose of making necessary arrangements and attending the funeral. 
 
An additional limited amount of time off to attend funeral services outside the 
State of California may be authorized with pay under special circumstances. 
The General Manager is vested with full discretion to evaluate the 
circumstances and make the determination. 
 
In deference to the memory of past directors, employees, and consultants, a 
limited amount of time off to attend funeral services may be authorized with pay 
under special circumstances. The General Manager is vested with full discretion 
to evaluate the circumstances and make the determination. 

 
2. Jury Duty Leave:   

"Jury Duty or Witness Leave". Documented time off without loss of pay (80 
hours) shall be granted to regular full-time employees called for jury duty. (The 
Board of Directors reserves the right to provide its regular full-time employees 
additional paid time off when they are required to perform jury duty service in 
excess of the 80 hours provided herein before. Under such circumstances the 
employee shall make a written request through the Secretary to the Board for 
payment of wages for the excess days and shall accompany the request with 
proof of the period served on jury duty.)  All regular, full-time employees 
required to serve on jury duty or subpoenaed as a witness shall be paid the 
difference between his/her regular pay and the amount of the jury fee or witness 
fee received for such duty. For the purpose of this calculation, the jury fee does 
not include any mileage allowance. Employees released from jury duty or 
witness testimony prior to the end of a scheduled work day must report back to  
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    43 (cont.) 
Issue No.   2 
Effective Date:  3/9/09 

 
Subject: Bereavement Leave, Jury Duty, and Absence for Military 

Duty 
 
work within one hour after being released, unless there is less than two hours 
remaining in the employee's work day at the time of release. 

 
3. Absence for Military Service:  

"Absence Due to Military Service". Provisions of the Military and Veterans Code 
of the State of California, Section 395-395.5 shall govern military leave.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    44 
Issue No.   3 
Effective Date:  01/12/09 
 
Subject:   Bidding and Construction Contract Procedures 
 
Purpose: The following procedures have been approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District to promote uniformity in 
the processing of bids and contracts for public works, construction projects within 
the Chino Basin Water Conservation District.  
 
Policy/Procedure   
These procedures are established to provide authority, guidance and direction for 
the staff and the Board in procuring public works, construction services on behalf 
of the District.  
 
DEFINITIONS: 

a. District - The Chino Basin Water Conservation District, or the General 
Manager as delegated by the Board of Directors herein. 

b. Minor Project - A construction project required by the District which is 
estimated to cost less than $5,000 to complete. 

c. Major Project - A construction project required by the District which is 
estimated to cost in excess of $5,000 to complete. 

d. Sole Source Contractor - A contractor or consultant that has been 
evaluated to provide a proprietary, unique or specialized service which 
cannot be obtained from other contractors. Such designation shall be 
approved by the Board of Directors.  
 

NO SEPARATION OF PROJECT. No construction project shall be split or 
separated into smaller work orders for the purpose of evading the provisions of 
these Contract Procedures.  
 
FORMAL BIDDING.  Contracts for the construction of any building, structure, or 
other public improvement, when the cost exceeds $5,000 shall be contracted for 
and let to the lowest, most responsible bidder.  If two or more bids are the same 
and the lowest, the Board of Directors may accept the one it chooses. 
 
NO BID SUBMITTALS.  If after advertising and/or otherwise soliciting bids for a 
project the District should not receive any bids, the District Board of Directors 
may elect to "sole" source out the work to be performed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    44 (cont.) 
Issue No.   3 
Effective Date:  01/12/09 
 
Subject:   Bidding and Contract Procedures 

 
 

AWARD OF CONTRACT.   All bids received on a project shall be opened in 
public at the time and place designated in the notice. The bids shall be evaluated 
for compliance with the notice and requirements of the District. The District shall 
determine from the bids received on a project the contractor which is considered 
to be the lowest responsible bidder. Thereafter, the District shall indicate that a 
contract will be executed according to specific terms to be negotiated by the 
General Manager. If terms cannot be negotiated, the General Manager may be 
delegated to terminate negotiations and open negotiations with the next lowest 
responsible bidder.  

 
MINOR CONTRACTS.  The Board hereby delegates to the General Manager the 
authority to negotiate and award contracts for minor projects of the District.  

 
EMERGENCY CONDITIONS. In cases of emergency conditions determined by 
the District or when a state of emergency has been declared, repair or 
replacement necessary to permit the continued conduct of the operation or 
service of the District, or to avoid danger to life or property, contracts may be 
awarded without application of these procedures. The District hereby delegates 
to the General Manager the authority to execute contracts under emergency 
conditions, subject to ratification by a 4/5ths vote at its next meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.   45 
Issue No.    1 
Effective Date: 3/14/05 
 
Subject:  Workplace Violence  
 
Purpose:  To establish the District’s position and response to matters involving 
workplace violence.  A copy of the policy shall be signed and dated by each 
District employee to acknowledge his or her receipt. 
 
Policy/Procedure 
The safety and security of employees and customers are very important to the 
CBWCD.  Threats, threatening behavior, acts of violence, or any related conduct 
that disrupts another’s work performance or the CBWCD’s ability to execute its 
daily business will not be tolerated. 
 
Any person who makes threats, exhibits threatening behavior, or engages in 
violent acts on CBWCD property may be removed from the premises pending the 
outcome on an investigation.  Threats, threatening behavior, or other acts of 
violence off CBWCD property, but directed at CBWCD employees, CBWCD 
members or the public while conducting business for the CBWCD, is a violation 
of this policy.  
 
Off-site threats include, but are not limited to, threats made via telephone, fax, 
electronic or conventional mail, or any other communication medium.  Violations 
of this policy will lead to disciplinary action that may include dismissal, arrest, and 
prosecution.  In addition, if the source of such inappropriate behavior is a 
member of the public, the response may also include barring the person(s) from 
CBWCD property, termination of business relationships with that individual, 
and/or prosecution of the person(s). 
 
Employees are responsible for notifying his or her supervisor or manager of any 
threats that they have witnessed, received, or have been told that another person 
has witnessed or received.  Employees should also report any behavior they 
have witnessed which they regard as threatening or violent when that behavior is 
job related or might be carried out on CBWCD property or in connection with 
employment. 
 
Each employee who received a protective or restraining order that lists CBWCD 
premises as a protected area is required to provide the General Manager with a 
copy of such order. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.   46 
Issue No.  1 
Effective Date: 04/10/06 
 
Subject:  Internship Program 
 
Purpose:  The purpose of this policy is to establish the process under which the 
District will employ interns. 
 
Policy/Procedure     

A. Interns shall be currently enrolled in college as an undergraduate or 
graduate student, or have graduated within the last two years from an 
accredited college/university with substantial course work in plant science, 
agriculture, horticulture, irrigation science, engineering, environmental 
science, water/wastewater management, business administration or a field 
of study related to the specific intern job requirements. 
 

B. Interns shall have a working knowledge of the methods and techniques of 
plants, soils, landscaping, irrigation, research, and report preparation. 
 

      Interns shall have the ability to communicate clearly and concisely, to 
establish and maintain effective relationships with co-workers, elected 
officials and members of the public, operate standard office equipment, 
and understand computer applications such as word processing and 
spread sheet programs. 

 
 Interns shall, when required, possess or have the ability to obtain before 

employment, a valid Class “C” California driver’s license. 
 
 Interns shall maintain physical conditions appropriate for the performance 

of assigned duties and responsibilities, which may include walking, 
standing or sitting for extended periods of time, maintain effective audio-
visual discrimination and perception, and maintain the mental capacity 
necessary for making sound decisions. 

 
C. Interns shall work under the direct supervision of qualified staff and shall 

participate and receive training in the operation of a California Water 
Conservation District by working on special projects, performing routine 
administrative assignments and related duties as assigned by his or her 
supervisor. 
 

D. With the approval of the General Manager and the direct supervisor, 
interns may be employed in any area of the District. 
 

E. Internships at the District are limited to a maximum of 960 hours per fiscal 
year.  Internships may be extended with the approval of the General 
Manager. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.   46 (con’t) 
Issue No.  1 
Effective Date: 04/10/06 
 
Subject:  Internship Program 
 

F. Interns shall be considered part-time employees of the District and shall 
receive only those benefits provided for in District Policy Number 31. 

 
G. Interns shall be compensated within the parameters as set forth by the 

direction of the Board of Directors to the General Manager. 
 
H. No individual shall be employed as an intern without completing and 

Application for Internship (available at the District), passing a physical 
exam and a background investigation. 

 
I. At the end of an individual’s internship, or as might be required through 

the intern’s educational institution, he or she shall receive an Internship 
Performance Appraisal (available at the District), or on forms provided b 
the educational institution.  A copy of the appraisal(s) will be placed in the 
intern’s personnel file. 

 
J. To be employed as an intern, the individual is not required to have any 

prior experience. 
 
K. Scheduling of the intern’s work hours shall be at the mutual agreement of 

the intern and their respective supervisor.  Under no conditions, shall an 
intern work less than two hours or no more than eight hours on any given 
day or 40 hours in any work week (Sunday-Saturday). 

 
L. The number of interns employed at the District at any given time may not 

exceed the Board approved level. 
 
M. Overall daily administration, application and period review of this Policy 

shall be the responsibility of the General Manager and respective 
supervisors. 

 
EXHIBITS 
 

A. Application for Internship 
 

B. Internship Performance Appraisal 
 

 
 

 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

CHINO BASIN WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT’S 
APPLICATION FOR INTERNSHIP 

 
Department Desired: ____________________________________________________________ 
 Name:___________________________________ ____________ Telephone 
No.____________      Print last,             first,                  middle  
Current address:_______________________________________________________________
_            Number & street                  City       State Zip  
Have you previously held an internship position?       Yes       No  
If yes, with who & when  _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 Are you currently enrolled in school?            Yes       No 
  If yes, at what institution ________________________________Standing 
__________________                           (Fresh, Soph, Junior, Senior 
etc.)  
Education History:  Please provide the educational information requested.  
 School Name/Location Course of Study/Major Diploma/Degree      Yes/No 
College/University  
 

  

Graduate/Professional 
  

  

 Have you ever pled guilty or “no contest” or been convicted of a misdemeanor or felony? 
(excluding marijuana related offenses with a sentence of less than two years)       Yes     
    No  
If yes, please provide dates and details   
_____________________________________________________________________________  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 Person/professional references:  Please list three individuals who know you well.  Do not 
list previous employers or family members.  
Name 

 
Address 

Telephone 
Number 

Nature of 
Relationship 

    
 
 

   
     
 Employment History:  Please list the names of your present and/or previous employers 
in chronological order, beginning with your current or most recent employer, for the last 5 years. 
 
Present/most recent 
employer   

Employed 
From:  

Job Title or Position: 

Street Address  
 

To: Responsibilities/duties: 

City, State, Zip Code 
  

Starting 
Pay:  
 Ending Pay: 

Telephone No.  
Supervisor’s Name & Title   

Reason for leaving: 

Previous employer  
 

Employed From: 
 

Job Title or Position: 

Street Address 
  

To: Responsibilities/duties: 

City, State, Zip Code   
Starting Pay:  
 Ending 
Pay: 

Telephone No.  
Supervisor’s Name & Title  
 

Reason for leaving: 

Previous employer 
  

Employed 
From:  

Job Title or Position: 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

Street Address 
  

To: Responsibilities/duties: 

City, State, Zip Code   
Starting Pay:  
 Ending 
Pay: 

Telephone No.  
Supervisor’s Name & Title  
 

Reason for leaving: 

 
May we contact your current employer?      Yes       No 
 If no, please 
explain_______________________________________________________________________ 
  
 
 
 ______________________________________________________________________
_______ 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

APPLICANT’S STATEMENT AGREEMENT 
 In the event of my employment as an Intern for the CBWCD, I will comply with all rules 

and regulations of the CBWCD.  I understand that the CBWCD reserves the right to require me to submit to a test for the presence of drugs/alcohol in my system prior to my 
employment, and at anytime during my employment, to the extent permitted by law, and I hereby consent to such drug/alcohol testing.  I hereby consent to the disclosure of the results of any drug/alcohol test to the CBWCD’s General Manager and/or Administrative 
Assistant. I understand that should I decline to sign this consent or decline to take a requested drug/alcohol test, my application for employment may be rejected or my 
employment may be terminated. 
I understand and agree that, in connection with this application and at anytime during my employment, CBWCD may contact my previous employers and/or educational 
institutions and I authorize those employers and/or institutions to disclose to CBWCD all records and information pertinent to my employment or attendance with them.  In 
addition to authorizing release of my information regarding my employment/attendance, I hereby fully waive any rights or claims I have against my former employers/institutions, 
their agents, employees, and representatives, as well as other individuals who release information to CBWCD and release them from any and all liability, claims or damages that may directly or indirectly result from the use, disclosure, or release of any such 
information by any person or party, whether such information is favorable or unfavorable to me. I authorize the persons named as personal references to provide CBWCD with 
any information they may have regarding myself.  I understand and agree that in connection with this application, and at any time during my employment, CBWCD may investigate my driving and criminal history.  I hereby state that all information that I 
provided on this application or any other documents filled out/filed in connection with my employment and in any interview is true and correct.  I have withheld nothing that would, 
if disclosed, affect my application unfavorably.  I understand that if I am employed and any such information is later found to be false in any respect, I may be dismissed.  I understand if selected for employment, it will be necessary for me to provide satisfactory 
evidence of my identity and legal authority to work in the United States, and that Federal Immigration laws require me to complete an I-9 Form.  I further understand that all 
internships at CBWCD are “at will” positions, and that if employed I can be terminated without written notice or reason at anytime during my internship.  
If you have any questions regarding this statement on what you are agreeing/consenting to, please contact the CBWCD’s Administrative Assistant (909) 626-2711 before signing.  
DO NOT SIGN UNTIL YOU HAVE READ THE ABOVE STATEMENT AND AGREEMENT. 
I hereby acknowledge that I have read the above statement and understand the same. 
 ___________________________________                    ____________________ 
    Signature of Applicant             Date Signed  
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

CBWCD 
INTERNSHIP PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL 

 
Name:_____________________________________  Employee No.:___________ 
 Department:__________________ _______________Review Period: __________ 
 Rate the intern on the factors indicated below by placing an “X” under the appropriate rating.  Not all factors may apply. 

 Factor 
 Interacts well with others 

Improvement Required 
   

  Meets Standards 
   

 Exceptional 
   

Outstanding 
    Understands requirements of the 

position          
Requires limited supervision           Keeps the supervisor informed of 
work progress          Has good verbal skills          
 Written communication skills are 
clear & concise          Completes assignments in a 
timely manner          
Able to understand written & oral instructions 

             
Interested and successful in obtaining new skills & knowledge         
 Work is consistently accurate and well organized          Makes suggestions to maximize 
efficiency          Maintained satisfactory 
attendance          
Successfully handled the internship & school                       Overall Performance         



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

  Supervisor’s comments (required)____________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________          
 
 
_________________________                                 _____________________ 
 Supervisor’s Signature                                               Date 
 
 
 
Intern’s comments (optional)________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________                  
 
 
______________________________                                  ________________ 
  Intern’s Signature                                                                  Date   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.     47 Issue No.     4 
Effective Date:    3/9/15  
Subject:   Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement, and Ethics 

Training  Purpose: To ensure compliance with AB1234 and to establish policies with respect to 1) 
Board member compensation, 2) Board member reimbursement, and 3) Board member 
ethics training.  
Policy/Procedure 
 
1.   COMPENSATION  

A. Amount.  The amount of Board member compensation by the District shall be 
determined in accordance with all applicable requirements to the California Water 
Code.  The Board shall set the rate of such compensation for a day’s service and shall set the maximum number of day’s service for which a Board member may receive compensation each month from the District, by adoption of a separate 
ordinance. B. Day’s Service.  Meetings.  The term “day’s service” is defined as attendance or participation of a Board member, in person or via teleconference, at a meeting with one or 

more other parties for the performance of official duties on behalf of the District.  A “meeting” is defined as any meeting listed on Exhibit A, Category 
A.  Where the meeting is a District Committee meeting, only appointed committee meeting members shall qualify for compensation.  Daily Limitation. If a Board member attends or participates in multiple 
meetings in a single day, the Board member shall be eligible for compensation for only one meeting on that day. C. Procedure. To receive compensation for attendance or participation at the 

meetings listed in Exhibit A, it is suggested that the Board member submit to the 
District’s office staff a payment request on the attached Expense Report (Exhibit B) on a calendar-month basis at the first Board meeting following the end of the calendar month being reported.  If the meetings listed by the Board member on 
the Expense Report satisfy this policy for expenditure of public resources, then the District’s General Manager is authorized to approve the payment request.  If 
any of the meetings identified by the Board member on the Expense Report for the calendar month are not included in the list of pre-approved meetings listed in Exhibit A, or if the payment request fails to expressly comply with this policy, then 
the District’s General Manager shall include the payment request on the agenda for the next regular meeting, at which time the Board will consider approval. D. Report.  Board members shall provide brief reports on all meetings for which 
they receive compensation from the District at the next regular meeting of the Board.  Reports may be made orally, in writing, or by reference to any minutes 
included in the agenda materials.   

 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.        47 (cont.) 
Issue No.     4 Effective Date:    3/9/15 
 Subject:   Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement, and Ethics 

Training  2.   REIMBURSEMENT 
 

The District shall reimburse Board members for reasonable costs incurred related to 
attendance or participation at approved meetings.  Directors may pay all of their own business expenses and request reimbursement from the District on expense reports. Expenses may be paid directly by the District, provided there is prior approval by the 
Board of Directors.   
Reimbursements for expenses are made only for those expenses which are individually itemized and explained. Receipts are required, including those for meals 
and taxi or bus fares. Directors will provide original receipts for all expenses whenever possible.  Directors shall submit the completed and signed Expense Report every month. All applicable receipts and/or invoices shall be attached. 

 A.  Eligible Expenses.  Expenses eligible for reimbursement shall be limited to:      
1)registration or tuition costs, or other charges for participation at the meeting; 2) 
transportation to and from the meeting, including airfare, car rental, or mileage for use of a Board member’s own automobile, and other miscellaneous 
transportation costs (shuttle, taxi, parking, etc.); 3) lodging at the single-room rate; and 4) reasonable costs of meals, not including alcohol. (See Section 2.D) B.  Rates.    Registration, Tuition, and Meeting Charges.  Registration and related fees may be reimbursed or paid by the District for all authorized attendance.  Transportation o Transportation to a conference, training, seminar, or meeting may be 

reimbursed or paid directly by the District. o To secure the most economical mode of transportation in keeping with availability, convenience, and propriety of the District, all meeting travel 
arrangements shall be made with the endorsement of the Manager. o When air travel is the most appropriate method of transportation, coach 
class shall be utilized. o A private automobile may be used when necessary. Reimbursement for such use shall follow the guidelines in District policy involving the use of 
private vehicles on District business. o A rental car may be used when appropriate public transportation is 
unavailable or more expensive. C.  Lodging. Cost of overnight accommodations for conferences, training, seminars, 

or meetings may be reimbursed or paid directly by the District.  The expense 
shall be limited to the reasonable cost of adequate accommodations as determined by the Manager and/or the Board of Directors. Costs which are 
deemed to be unnecessary, unrelated or excessive may not be reimbursed or paid. The cost of meals, entertainment, and lodging on a hotel billing shall be reported separately, according to the itemized receipt. 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.       47 (cont.) 
Issue No.       4 
Effective Date:       3/9/15 
 
Subject:      Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement, and Ethics 
Training  D.  Meals. Except as otherwise provided, the guidelines for meal reimbursements, 

including tax and tip, shall be a maximum of $75.00 per day. If the guidelines are exceeded, written justification must be attached to the expense claim form. 
Alcohol consumption will not be reimbursed. E.  Entertainment Expense.  Entertainment Expense may be reimbursed or paid 
directly by the District for reasonable business entertainment expenses only 
when necessary to promote a specific public purpose of the District. All entertainment must be explained with the following details:  date  cost  place (name and location)  business purpose  type of entertainment (e.g., lunch, dinner)  business relationship of each person present: name, title, agency, company, etc. 

 Officers and employees entertain fellow officers and employees only when this is the most efficient way to accomplish a specific business purpose and only with 
prior approval of the Board of Directors or the Manager. In all cases, the officers and employees avoid excessive expenses. The employee of senior rank pays the 
expense. District officers and employees do not entertain vendor representatives. F.  Ineligible Expenses.  Board members shall not be eligible for District 
reimbursement of any expenses incurred by any person traveling or attending a meeting as a guest of the Board member.  No Board member shall be eligible for District reimbursement of any expense for personal services not related to 
District business. G.  Report.  Board members shall provide brief reports on all meetings for which 
they receive compensation from the District at the next regular meeting of the Board.  Reports may be made orally, in writing, or by reference to any minutes included in the agenda materials.   3.   ETHICS TRAINING 

 A.  Requirement.   Under Assembly Bill 1234, District officials must receive training 
in ethics laws no later than one year from the first day of service with the District.  
Thereafter, each District official must receive such training at least once every two years.  

 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.       47 (cont.) 
Issue No.       4 
Effective Date:       3/9/15 
 
Subject:      Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement, and Ethics 
Training  B.  Application.    District Official.  The term “District official” means all Board members and 

all executive staff of the District.  Ethics Laws.  The phrase “ethics laws” includes, but is not limited  to, the 
following: o Laws relating to personal financial gain by public servants, including, but not limited to, laws prohibiting bribery and conflict-of-interest laws; o Laws relating to claiming prerequisites of office, including, but not limited to, gift and travel restrictions, prohibitions against the use of 

public resources for personal or political purposes, prohibitions against gifts of public funds, mass mailing restrictions, and prohibitions against acceptance of free or discounted transportation 
by transportation companies; o Government transparency laws, including, but not limited to, financial 
interest disclosure requirements and open government laws; and o Laws relating to fair processes, including, but not limited to, common law bias prohibitions, due process requirements, incompatible offices, 
competitive bidding requirements for public contracts, and disqualification from participating in decisions affecting family 
members. C. Agency Responsibilities.  Records.  The Agency shall maintain records indicating the dates that the 

District officials satisfied the requirements of this policy and the entity that provided the training.  The District shall maintain these records for at least 
five years after District officials receive the training.  These records are public records subject to disclosure under the California Public Records 
Act.  Notice.  The District is required to provide information on training 
available to meet the requirements of this policy to its officials at least once every two years.    4.   REVIEW OF POLICY ON ANNUAL BASIS.   

Each year the Board shall review this Policy to determine its effectiveness and the 
necessity for its continued operation.  The District’s General Manager shall report to the Board on the operation of this Policy, and make any recommendations deemed appropriate, including proposals to amend the Policy.  Upon conclusion of its review, 
the Board may take any action it deems appropriate concerning this Policy.  Nothing shall preclude the Board from taking action on the Policy at times other than upon 
conclusion of the annual review.   

 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CATEGORY A – Meetings directly associated with CBWCD require no pre-
approval and for which no additional reporting is required since minute action for 
these agency meetings meets the reporting requirement of AB 1234.  CBWCD Board of Directors  CBWCD Personnel Committee  CBWCD Education Committee  CBWCD Finance Committee  CBWCD Ad Hoc Committees  CBWCD Recycled Water Committee  CBWCD Facilities Committee  CBWCD Basin Landscape Committee 

 
CATEGORY B – Meetings of organizations or associations where CBWCD is a 
member; and conferences or organized educational activities conducted in 
compliance with subdivision (c) of Section 54952.2, including, but not limited to, 
ethics training  require  no pre-approval to attend but do not qualify for 
compensation unless specifically approved by the Board of Directors.  However, 
if a fee is paid to attend or associated expenses are incurred, these fees and 
expenses are reimbursable, and do meet the reporting requirement of AB 1234.  Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA)  Association of the San Bernardino County Special District (ASBCSD)  California Groundwater Coalition (CGC)  California Special Districts Association (CSDA)  Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC)  Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA)  Local Agency Formation Commission  (LAFCO)  Southern California Water Committee (SCWC)  Southern California Water Committee Storm Water Task Force  Urban Water Institute (UWI)   Water Education Foundation (WEF) 

 
Revision 
 
Issue No. 1 –   1-10-96 (Original Policy) 
Issue No. 2 –   7-08-13 (Annual Review, Added Three Committees to  
                   Category A) 
Issue No. 3 –   10-13-14 (Annual Review, Major Revision) 
Issue No, 4 –   3-09-15 (Add WEF Membership to Category B) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
 

No.    48 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  4/13/09  
 
Subject:  Mobile Phone Policy 
 
Purpose: To establish the usage policy for District provided mobile phones. 
 
Policy/Procedure: The District makes available for employee use during 
business activities mobile phones for field employees.  The purpose of these 
phones is to provide employees in the field with “Push to Talk” technology to 
effectively communicate business needs and safety concerns to each other.   
 
Mobile phones are the property of the District.  Phone usage should be limited to 
District business needs and emergency situations.  Personal use of District 
phones is prohibited.    At the end of the work shift mobile phones are to be 
placed in their charger at the District office to be ready for their next use. 
 
 All electronic communications are official District records and are the property of 
the District. The District reserves the right to access and disclose all messages 
sent through its system for any purpose. 
 
Messages transmitted over the mobile phone system should be those involved in 
the District business activities for the accomplishment of business related tasks 
or any communication directly related to District business, administration, or 
practices.  
 
The California Public Records Act (CPRA), Government Code Section 6520, 
requires the District to make all public records available for inspection and to 
provide copies upon request. 
 
As a result, employees should be aware that no mobile phone message 
transmitted on the District’s Mobile Phone System is private or confidential. 
Employees should have no expectation of privacy with respect to any use, 
including storage, business or personal, of the District’s Mobile Phone Systems. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    49 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  6/08/09 
 
Subject:  Military Service 
 
Policy/Procedure:  It is the intention of the District to work closely with its 
employees to ensure that the District and its employees are in compliance with 
all laws related to military service.  This District Policy is to answer some of the 
most common questions about military leave contained in the Uniformed Service 
Employment and Re-Employment Act of 1994 (USERRA).   
 
“Service” is defined as duty on a voluntary or involuntary basis including:  Active duty;   Active duty for training;  Initial active duty for training; inactive duty training;  Full-time National Guard duty; and  Absences for examinations to determine fitness for duty. 
 
Duration USERRA extends the length of leave time for military duty to five years.  This five 
year leave is the cumulative length of all absences from employment due to 
military service. 
 EMPLOYEE OBLIGATIONS 
 
Notice and Documentation 
All employees must provide advance written or verbal notice of the need for 
military leave, unless prevented from doing so by military necessity or if providing 
notice would be impossible or unreasonable. 
 
Notice of Intention to Return to Work; (if employee is deployed)  
The employee is not required to decide in advance of leaving their civilian 
position at the District whether he/she will seek reemployment, but he/she must 
notify the District of his/her intention to return to work on returning from military 
service.  The notice requirements are time sensitive, each one depending on the 
length of the employee’s military service.   If the absence is for a period of 30 days or less, then the employee must report to work on the next full, regularly scheduled workday, plus eight 

hours.   If the absence lasted between 31 and 180 days, then the employee must 
notify the District of his or her intention to return to work within 14 days 
following the end of military service.  

If the returning veteran employee suffered a “service-related injury” and is either 
hospitalized or convalescing from it, these notice periods are extended until the 
end of the veterans’ recovery from the injury, not to exceed 2 additional years.  
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    49 (cont.) 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  6/08/09 
 
Subject:  Military Service 
 
If the employee fails to timely report for work or apply for reemployment, he or 
she does not automatically forfeit USERRA reemployment rights and benefits, 
but instead becomes subject to the District’s generally applicable policies and 
practices pertaining to absences. 
 
An employee whose period of service was more than 30 days must provide, in 
connection with his/ her application for re-employment, documentation to 
establish that:   The reemployment application is timely,  The employee has not exceeded the five year limit on duration of service (unless subject to an exception),  The employee’s separation or dismissal from service was not disqualifying 

(dishonorable discharge).  
 
If the documentation does not exist or is not readily available, the District may not 
delay or deny reemployment but, for employees whose service was longer than 
90 days, need not treat such an employee as having had continuous service for 
pension purposes until the documentation is provided.  If the documentation is 
received after reemployment, and it shows that the employee is not entitled to 
reemployment, the District may terminate employment and any rights or benefits 
the employee was granted.     
 

EMPLOYER OBLIGATIONS 
 
Pay  
To the extent provided by applicable law, an employee who is on leave of 
absence from the District for duly-ordered military or naval duties shall be entitled 
to receive his or her salary or compensation from the District for the first thirty 
(30) calendar days of any such absence.  The purpose of this policy is to comply 
with the legal requirements to which the District is subject and is not intended to 
create any employee benefits greater or less than that which the employee is 
entitled under applicable law.  Consequently, this policy shall be interpreted, 
construed, implemented, and applied by the District in a manner consistent with 
all requirements, restrictions, limitations, conditions, and provisions of otherwise 
applicable law. 
  
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.    49 (cont.) 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  6/08/09 
 
Subject:  Military Service 
 
Health Benefits 
Once an employee begins a military leave of absence, he or she must be allowed 
an opportunity to continue receiving benefits under the District’s health care plan 
in a COBRA-like manner with the employee paying the cost of benefits.  If the 
period of service, and thus the absence, is less than 31 days, then the employee 
may only be charged the usual employee contribution amount for the coverage. 
The District must allow an employee an opportunity to have his or her health care 
coverage extended for up to 24 months from the date of military departure. If the 
time period of service goes beyond 31 days, the employee may be charged no 
more than 102 percent of the full premium cost associated with the coverage.  If 
the coverage is discontinued (i.e. the employee declined the extension when he 
or she departed on leave, or the subsequent 24 month period has expired), on 
return from military duty, the employee and his or her dependents cannot be 
subject to any exclusionary period or limitations based on a preexisting condition, 
if those exclusions would not have applied if the military leave had not accrued.  
 Pension Benefits 
 If the employee timely returns to the District following military service, the District 
is required to consider the time the employee was absent as accrued work time.  
The District may make its pension contribution after the employee returns to 
work.  Similarly, the returning veteran, if the plan so provides, is allowed to make 
his or her employee contribution to the plan on return from military leave.  In 
cases where the District also makes the employee contribution to the pension 
plan that contribution will be made after the employee returns to work. 
 Reinstatement of Employee  
USERRA requires the District to promptly re-employ individuals returning from 
military service, applying the so-called “escalator principle”, as follows:  
 Escalator Principle  
In many cases, the position the veteran would have held, had employment not 
been interrupted by the period of military service, will be the same as the position 
held when the period of service began. When there would have been a change, 
however, the “escalator principle” requires that the veteran receive any change in 
position or benefits to which he would have been entitled had he remained 
continuously employed.  
For example, the returning employee must be granted seniority for the leave 
period. Similarly, the veteran must receive all other “perquisites of seniority,” 
such as seniority-tied increases in vacation and sick-day accrual rates, pay 
raises based on longevity, and promotions based on longevity or length of 
service the veteran was reasonably certain to have achieved. 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
No.    49 (cont.) 
Issue No.   1 
Effective Date:  6/08/09 
 
Subject:  Military Service 
 
Also, if a veteran is laid off while on military leave, and would have received 
severance pay had he been actively employed at the time of the layoff, he is 
entitled to that severance pay on his return. Moreover, if the veteran was laid off 
and on a recall list at the time he entered military service, he must be returned to 
the recall list on completion of his service.  
 
Fewer than 91 days of service   
The employee is entitled to be reemployed in the position in which he/she would 
have been employed had there been no interruption for military service if the 
individual is qualified to perform the job.  If the individual is not qualified to 
perform that job, the District will make reasonable efforts to qualify him/her.  If 
those reasonable efforts fail, the District must reinstate the person to the position 
he/she held at the time of beginning of military leave. This means that if the 
individual would have been promoted had he/she not been on military leave, the 
individual is entitled to the position to which he/she would have been promoted 
unless unqualified in that position even after reasonable training.   
 
More than 90 days of service    
The employee is entitled to be reemployed in the position in which he/she would 
have been employed had there been no interruption for military service, or a 
position of like seniority, status and pay if the individual is qualified to perform 
one of those jobs.  If the individual is not qualified to perform that job, the District 
will make reasonable efforts to qualify him/her.  If those reasonable efforts fail, 
the District will reinstate the person to the position he/she held at the time of 
beginning of military leave or a position of like seniority, status and pay. Also, if a 
veteran is laid off while on military leave, and would have received severance 
pay had he been actively employed at the time of the layoff, he is entitled to that 
severance pay on his return. Moreover, if the veteran was laid off and on a recall 
list at the time he entered military service, he must be returned to the recall list on 
completion of his service.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.   50 
Issue No.  1 
Effective Date: 12/14/09 
 
Subject:  Uniforms 
 
Purpose:  To establish a policy and procedure for the use of District supplied 
uniforms. 
 
Policy/Procedure     
The District will pay one hundred (100%) percent of uniform rental, up to a 
maximum of eleven sets of uniforms, for all employees working outdoors.  This 
may include the following job classifications: Gardener, Caretaker, Maintenance 
Specialist, Conservation Technician and Conservation Specialist.  All employees 
receiving uniforms are required to wear them during working hours, unless 
attending a more formal meeting.  At no time should these uniforms be worn for 
personal use outside of District functions. 
 
The employee is responsible for one hundred (100%) percent of the cost (billed 
to the District by the uniform supplier) of damages to their uniforms due to 
excessive wear and tear and for lost or unreturned uniforms.  Failure to comply 
with this policy is subject to District disciplinary action. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.   51 
Issue No.  1 
Effective Date: 6/13/11 
 
Subject:  Governmental Fund Balance Policy for the General Fund 
 
Purpose:  This Governmental Fund Balance Policy establishes the accounting 
and financial reporting standards for all governments that reports governmental 
funds as directed by the Government Account Standards Board Statement 54. 
 
Policy/Procedure     
In the February 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board published 
Statement No. 54, which established accounting and financial reporting 
standards for all governments that report governmental funds.  This statement 
divides the fund balance intro five classifications: 
 

1. Non-spendable Fund Balance includes amounts that cannot be spent 
because they are either 1) not in spendable form or 2) legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact.  The "not in spendable 
form" criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to 
cash, e.g., inventories and prepaid amounts. 
 

2. Restricted Fund Balance includes amounts that have constraints that are 
either 1) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or 2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislations. 
 

3. Committed Fund Balance includes amounts that can only be used for 
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the 
government's highest level of decision making authority.  
 

4. Assigned Fund Balance includes amounts that are constrained by the 
government's "intent" to be used for specific purposes, but are neither 
restricted nor committed except for stabilization arrangements.  Intent 
should be expressed by 1) the Board itself or 2) by the Finance Committee 
to which the governing body has delegated the authority to assign 
amounts to be used for specific purposes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chino Basin Water Conservation District Policy and Procedures Manual 

No.   51 (cont.) 
Issue No.  1 
Effective Date: 6/13/11 

 
Subject:  Governmental Fund Balance Policy for the General Fund 

 
5. Unassigned Fund Balance is the residual classification for the general 

fund.  This classification represents the fund balance that has not been 
assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or 
assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.  In other 
governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes 
exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to those 
purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund 
balance. 

 
In addition to the new five fund balance classifications, GASB 54 also makes 
clear the definition of special revenue - for financial reporting purposes, a special 
revenue fund may only be established around one or more revenue sources that 
are restricted or committed to purposes other than capital projects or debt 
service. 
 
 
 



APPENDIX E 



28

T02SR07W 27

T02SR07W

29

T02SR07W30

T02SR08W

32

T02SR08W

31

T02SR07W

32

T02SR07W

31

T02SR08W

33

T02SR07W

5

T03SR08W

4

T03SR08W

3

T03SR08W

2

T03SR08W 1

T03SR08W

6

T03SR08W

6

T03SR07W 5

T03SR07W

4

T03SR07W

10

T03SR08W

11

T03SR08W

12

T03SR08W

7

T03SR07W

9

T03SR08W

8

T03SR07W

8

T03SR08W

9

T03SR07W

7

T03SR08W

15

T03SR08W

14

T03SR08W
13

T03SR08W

33

T01SR07W

34

T01SR07W

35

T01SR07W

31

T01SR07W
32

T01SR07W

36

T01SR08W

36

T01SR07W

34

T01SR08W

31

T01NR07W

36

T01NR08W

35

T01NR08W

28

T01SR07W29

T01SR07W

30

T01SR07W

25

T01SR08W
27

T01SR07W

26

T01SR07W

26

T01SR08W

28

T01SR08W

27

T01SR08W

6

T01SR06W

1

T01SR07W

2

T01SR07W

4

T01SR07W

5

T01SR07W

3

T01SR07W

6

T01SR07W

3

T01SR08W

2

T01SR08W

1

T01SR08W

35

T01SR08W

31

T01SR06W33

T01SR08W

4

T02SR07W 3

T02SR07W

2

T02SR07W

25

T01SR07W

5

T02SR07W 1

T02SR07W

6

T02SR07W
4

T02SR08W

3

T02SR08W

12

T01SR08W

7

T01SR07W

8

T01SR07W
10

T01SR08W

9

T01SR07W

10

T01SR07W

11

T02SR08W

10

T02SR08W

9

T02SR08W8

T02SR08W

11

T02SR07W

12

T02SR07W

16

T02SR07W

15

T02SR07W

13

T02SR07W

14

T02SR07W

17

T02SR07W

18

T02SR07W

13

T02SR08W

14

T02SR08W
15

T02SR08W

16

T02SR08W

17

T02SR08W

18

T02SR08W

24

T02SR07W

23

T02SR07W

19

T02SR08W

21

T02SR08W 22

T02SR08W

20

T02SR08W

22

T02SR07W23

T02SR08W

24

T02SR08W

21

T02SR07W

20

T02SR07W

19

T02SR07W

28

T02SR08W

27

T02SR08W

30

T02SR07W

26

T02SR08W

25

T02SR08W

29

T02SR08W

33

T02SR08W 35

T02SR08W

36

T02SR08W
34

T02SR08W

33

T01NR06W

5

T01SR06W

19

T01SR07W
20

T01SR07W
21

T01SR07W

24

T01SR08W
22

T01SR07W

23

T01SR08W

12

T01SR07W

11

T01SR07W

11

T01SR08W

28

T01NR06W

26

T01NR07W

25

T01NR07W

30

T01NR06W
29

T01NR06W

27

T01NR07W

26

T01NR08W

21

T01SR08W

22

T01SR08W
23

T01SR07W

24

T01SR07W

4

T01SR06W

9

T01SR06W

8

T01SR06W7

T01SR06W

16

T01SR06W17

T01SR06W

18

T01SR06W

21

T01SR06W

20

T01SR06W

19

T01SR06W

28

T01SR06W

29

T01SR06W

30

T01SR06W

25

T01NR08W

30

T01NR07W
29

T01NR07W

17

T01SR07W

18

T01SR07W15

T01SR08W

13

T01SR08W14

T01SR08W

16

T01SR07W

15

T01SR07W

13

T01SR07W

14

T01SR07W

18

T03SR07W

16

T03SR08W

17

T03SR08W

21

T03SR08W
22

T03SR08W

23

T03SR08W 19

T03SR07W
24

T03SR08W

5

T02SR08W

2

T02SR08W

1

T02SR08W

10

T02SR07W

8

T02SR07W

9

T02SR07W
7

T02SR07W

12

T02SR08W

36

T01NR07W

31

T01NR06W

35

T01NR07W

32

T01NR06W

34

T01NR07W

33

T01NR07W
32

T01NR07W

33

T01SR06W

32

T01SR06W

JURUPA

S
 P

a
lo

m
a

re
s
 S

t

T
h
o
m

p
s
o
n

C
re

e
k

R
d

T
o
w

n
e

A
ve

W Bonita Ave

N
In

d
ia

n
H

ill
B

lv
d

STATE 71 -

STATE 60

I 15 -

I 10

FOREST

PARK

M
IL

L
 C

R
E

E
K

ONTARIO MILLS

N
 S

a
n

 A
n

to
n

io
 A

v
e

H
A

V
E

N

SAN BERNARDINO

I 10

D
U

P
O

N
T

C
A

R
B

O
N

C
A

N
Y

O
N

V
A

L
L
E

V
IS

T
A

GLEN

RID
GE

22ND

21ST

JEFFERSON

H
E

L
L

M
A

N

17TH

NORTH

HILLS

N
 B

e
rk

e
le

y
A

v
e

Radcliffe Dr

N
M

o
u

n
ta

in
A

v
e

PARKCREST

KINGSLEY

N
O

R
T

O
N

C
E

N
T

E
R

COLONIES

ELLENA

SAN JOSE

VINTAGE

H
IG

H
R

ID
G

E

D
O

U
B

L
E

D
A

Y

MILLS

CIVIC
CENTER

M
A

L
A

C
H

IT
E

S
P

R
U

C
E

BENITO

W San Jose Ave

TERRA VISTA

S
K
YVIEW

M
IL

D
U

R

A

PAYNE

RANCH

R
O

Y
A

L
R

ID
G

E

B
O

Y
S

R
E

P
U

B
L
IC

19TH

E
L

M

P
IT

T
S

B
U

R
G

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D

B
U

F
F

A
L

O

MO
U

N
T
A

IN

VIE
W

TRADEMARK

PICASSO

A
m

h
e

rs
t

S
t

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

BRICKELL

SLAT
E

TOW
NCENTER

GREYSTONE

N
 M

ill
s
 A

v
e

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

W
I N

D
R

O
W

S

K
A

D
O

T
A

S
 C

o
lle

g
e

 A
v
e

MERRILL

SIXTH

E
U

C
L

ID

S
 S

y
c
a

m
o

re
 A

v
e

P
IP

E
L

IN
E

B
E

R
Y

L

E
Arro

w

Hwy

G
R

O
V

E

VICTORIA

E Alvarado St
I-10

P
A

L
M

P
A

L
M

E
T

T
O

V
E

R
N

O
N

C
A

R
L

O
S

D

HOWARD

C
E

N
T

R
A

L

P
a

d
u

a
 A

v
e

OLIVE

INLAND
EMPIRE

GUASTI

E McKinleyAve

A

NORTH

M
o

n
te

 V
is

ta
 A

v
e

LO
S

SE
R
R
A
N

O
S

G
O

L
D

E
N

O
A

K

C
A

R
N

E
L

IA
N

O
A

K
S

Harrison Ave

H
E
M

LO
C
K

S
 G

ib
b

s
 S

t

BASE LINE

Y
O

R
B

A

RIVERSIDE

LYTLECREEK

C
O

R
O

N
A

M
A

G
N

O
L

IA

W
a

s
h

in
g

to
n

 A
v
e

S
 E

a
s
t 

E
n

d
 A

v
e

S
A

P
P

H
IR

E

PALO ALTO

APRICOT

CALIFORNIA

C

G
e

n
e

v
a

A
v
e

M
A

X
O

N

S
 G

a
re

y
 A

v
e

TORREY

PINES

I 10 - I 15

18TH

CIRCLEPARK

Alamosa Dr

M
O

O
N

R
IV

E
R

HOLT

ARROW

OAKDALE

E
A

S
T

 E
N

D

BROOKS

DEVON

PEACH

B

LO
SSOM

H
IL

LV
IE

W

J
A

S
P

E
R

STAR

RUBY

PLAZA SERENA

PRINCETON

T
A

N
G

L
E

W
O

O
D

FLORA

N
O

x
fo

rd
A

v
e

64TH

20THE Pomello Dr

V
E

R
D

U
G

O

S
A

G
EBRUSH

VICTORIA
PARK

IBERIA
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

BANYAN

O
LY

M
PIC

VIE
W

K
IP

S

K
O

R

N
E
R

LUGO

ENGLISH

ST. ANDREWS

P
R

E
C

IA
D

O

R
O

S
W

E
L

L

13TH

San Bernardino Ave

H
A

L
L

A
Q

U
E

D
U

C
T

BIRD

FARM

S
O

Q
U

E
L

C
A

N
Y

O
N

D
E

E
R

C
R

E
E

K

HIGHVIE
W

VAL

VERDE

S
 E

le
a

n
o

r 
S

t

VILLAGE

N
O

ra
n
g
e

G
ro

v
e

A
v
e

KENWOOD

L
U

C
R

E
T

IA

R
O

S
E

Vassar St

C
O

R
O

N
A

V
A

L
L
E

Y

LEMON

L
o

g
a

n
S

t

M
O

N
T

E
 V

E
R

D
E

CEDAR

C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
T
IO

N

D
E

L
 M

A
R

SCHAEFER

CHURCH

OAK HILL

BUCKINGHAM

N
 B

o
n

n
ie

 B
ra

e
 A

v
e

MISSION

ALTA LOMA

ORANGE

T
E

R
N

M
C

 K
IN

L
E

Y

14TH

IM
P

E
R

IA
L

FIFTH

M
o

u
n

ta
in

 A
v
e

T
U

R
N

E
R

C
O

R

N
E
R
S
TO

N
E

KIMBALL

W
A

L
K

E
R

W
IL

S
O

N

IN
D

IA
N

 H
IL

L

Lincoln

Ave

I

C
O

L
U

M
B

IA

D
E

L
 N

O
R

T
E

R
O

S
S

W
E

L
L

S
 S

P
R

IN
G

S

DEARBORN

W 11th St

JERSEY

AVION

E Franklin Ave

N
 C

a
s
w

e
ll 

A
v
e

SUNNY
MEADOW

R
A

M
O

N
A

D
E

W
E

Y

SEVENTH

T
R
A
IL

FA
IR

V
IE

W

E Monterey Ave

S
 S

a
n

 A
n

to
n

io
 A

v
e

B
A

K
E

R

S
U

L
P

H
U

R

15TH

M
O

N
T

E
R

E
Y

A
L

B
R

IG
H

T

B
O

U
L

D
E

R

S
 E

lm
 S

t

TERRACE

B
E

R
L
Y

N

V
IN

E

W Arrow Hwy

CANTU GALLEANO RANCH

E 3rd St

E 9th St

E Mission Blvd

E 7th St

S
 T

o
w

n
e

 A
v
e

V
IR

G
IN

IA

S
A

N
 A

N
T

O
N

IO

W 12th St

16TH

E 2nd St

2
N

D

E Grand Ave

PALO VERDE

E Olive St

HARVARD

N
 G

ib
b

s
 S

t

WATERCANYON

F

ELMA

B
LU

FF

BANDERA

N
 H

a
rv

a
rd

 A
v
e

E

EVERGREEN

N
 Y

a
le

 A
v
e

N
 C

o
lle

g
e

 A
v
e

N
 P

a
lo

m
a

re
s
 S

t

M
O

N
T

E
 V

IS
T
A

W 8th St

W
OODVIEW

NOCTA

BAYBERRY

E la

Verne Ave

VERSANTE

HUNTINGTON

B
ra

d
fo

rd
 S

t

PA
C
IF

IC

E
LE

C
TR

IC

STATE

GRAND

B

HAWTHORNE

VENEZIA

TERRACE

FOOTHILL

O
A

K
L

A
N

D

C
E

D
A

R
 C

R
E

E
K

A
M

E
T

H
Y

S
T

B
E

L
A

IR

PINE

7TH

UPLAND

HILLS

Price St

MCC L
E

V
E

C
O

R
Y
D

O
N

R
IN

C
O

N
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

W
E

S
T

P
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

BLOSSOM

H

S
h

e
n

a
n

d
o

a
h

D
r

5
T

H

A
L

L
Y

N

RED HILL

COUNTRY CLUB

T
R

A
IL

C
A

N
Y

O
N

M
Y

S
T

IC

C
A

N
Y

O
N

B
R

O
N

C
O

S
U

L
T
A

N
A

R
E

D
 O

A
K

E
A

S

T

P
R

E

SERVE

ONTARIO RANCH

KENYON

Philadelphia St

E Kingsley Ave

L
IO

N

SHADOW

CANYON

W
A

N
A

M
A

K
E

R

F
A

IR
M

O
N

T

3
R

D

CIELITO

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

U
T

IC
A

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E

WHISPERING
HILLS

CHINO

W Baseline Rd

B
O

N
 V

IE
W

G
ra

n
d

 A
v
e

D
A

Y
 C

R
E

E
K

F
E

N
N

E
L

INLAND

F
E

R
N

UNNAMED

POWERLINE

E Baseline Rd

S
T
A
T

E
6
0

-
I
1
5

S
h

e
ri

d
a

n
 A

v
e

F
R

E
M

O
N

T

ORCHARD

APPALACHIA
N

H
A

R
R

IS
O

N

In
d

ia
n

 H
ill

 B
lv

d

6TH

E
A

S
T

G
A
T

E

SIER

R
A

VIS
TA

G
IR

D

O
C

A
S

A

TERMINAL

C
O

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K

M
O

U
N

T
A

IN

B
A

N
E

 C
A

N
Y

O
N

1
0

T
H

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S

E Holt Ave

E
D

W
IN

Scripps Dr

HARREL

B
U

E
N

A
V

IS
T
A

68TH

V
IN

E
Y

A
R

D

26TH

E 12th St

WASHINGTON

L
A

U
R

E
L

VESTA

PHILADELPHIA

SANTA ANA

W 10th St

E
C

L
IP

S
E

EUCALYPTUS

P
E

Y
T

O
N

L
O

S

S
E

R
R

A
N

O
S

C
C

BERKELEY

EL MORADO

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

J

ARBOR

E 6th St

PARK

58TH

W
H

I T
E

O
A

K

SUNKIST

NEVADA

MAITLAND

RALSTON

MAIN

BELMONT

R
O

L
L

IN
G

R
ID

G
E

C
H

A
R

L
E

S
 S

M
IT

H

9TH

I 15 -STATE 60

N
 C

la
re

m
o

n
t 

B
lv

d

S
K

U
L
L
Y

R
ID

G
E

I- 210

UNNAMEDJEEP

HAMPSHIRE

E Phillips Blvd

A
L
T
A

C
U

E
S

T
A

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y

C
L

U
B

M
O

N
E

T

C
Y

P
R

E
S

S

F
E

R
R

E
E

C
O

M
E

T

R
O

C
K

E
F

E
L

L
E

R

I 
1

5

VENTURE

E Lexington Ave

D
A

N
A

D
R

IL
L

H
O

L
E

S
M

IT
H

WALNUT

PARKVIEW

BASELINE

C
O

N
C

H
A

W
IN

E
V

IL
L

E

H
O

LM
E
S

B
E

N
S

O
N

MORENO

S
C

H
O

L
A

R

1
S

T

GRANADA

S
IE

R
R

A
M

A
D

R
E

F
IE

L
D

M
A

S
T

E
R

S
U

M
N

E
R

1
2

T
H

H
E

R
M

O
S

A

G

PO
INTER

FOURTH

H
A

M
N

E
R

LOCUST

K
a

t h
ry

n
 A

v
e

STATE 60 -

STATE 71

STATE HWY 60

P
A

T
S

R
A

N
C

H

A
S

H
W

O
O

D

8TH

SLAUGHTER

CANYON

R
IG

E
L

A
R

C
H

IB
A

L
D

CONCOURS

POMONA

Miramar Ave

C
A

R
N

E
G

I E

FERON

M
IL

L
IK

E
N

CANOGA

P
A

R
C

O

S
ta

n
fo

rd

A
v
e

C
A

M
P

U
S

BICKMORE

FRANCIS

EDISON

A
L
T
A

S
 R

e
s
e

rv
o

ir
 S

t

ACACIA

P
A

R
K

H
U

R
S

T

L
U

C
A

S
R

A
N

C
H

E 1st St

PHILLIPS

LIMONITE

S
T
A
T
E

71

E
X

IT
8 P

A
R

K
P

L
A

C
E

BUTTER
F
IE

L
D

RAN

C
H

C
L

E
V

E
L

A
N

D

B
A

R
R

IN
G

T
O

N

R
O

U
N
D
U

P

HOLLOWELL

M
ount

Bald
y

R

d

E
L P

R
A
D

O

CHINO HILLS

G

LE
NVIEW

FAIR
FIELD

 R
AN

C
H

C
R

O
W

N

C
A

R
M

E
L

R
IVER

SCHLEISMAN
S
TATE

60

E
X

IT
12

A

11TH

GALLOPING

HILLS

A
U

T
O

C
E

N
T

E
R

U
P

P
E

R

A
L
IS

O

STONERIDGE

STATE HWY 210

O
LD

WOOD
V

IE
W

HIGHLAND

H
E

L
E

N C
U

C
A

M
O

N
G

A

CHANDLER

65TH

E
T

IW
A

N
D

A

C
R

O
S

S
R

O
A

D
S

R
IV

E
R

V
IE

W
 P

A
R

K

BRENTSTONE

BELLEGRAVE

OLD GUASTI

M
A

Y
H

E
W

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

RICHTON

AIRPORT

P
A

L
E

R
M

O

K
E

T
T

E
R

IN
G

O
N

T
A

R
IO

C
O

R
R
A

L

PEBBLEBEACH

S
TA

T
E
 H

W
Y
 71

H
Y

S
S

O
P

JOHNSON

S
A

N
T
A

 A
N

I T
A

MCCARTY

CHINO CORONA

SHEA

M
C

C
A

R
T

H
Y

M
C

D
E

R
M

O
N

T

S
H

O
R

T
C

U
T

R
IN

C
O

N

COLLEGE

PARK

AIRPORT
HOLIDAY ROCK

RIDGE

L
O

N
G

W
A

Y

A
R

O
U

N
DBOBCATRIDGE

REMINGTON

WIRE

SPRINGS

LO
W

E
R

A
L
IS

O

C
A
N

Y
O

N

TELEGRAPH

CANYON

P
O

M
O

N
A

R
I N

C
O

N

LAFCO ____

Consolidation of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District

and the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (a Municipal Water District)

Section Lines

Those Portions of: Township 1 North, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M., Township 1 South, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M., Township 2 South, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M.,
and Township 3 South, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M.,San Bernardino County, State of California.

1 inch = 3,000 feet

±

0 6,000 12,000 18,000 24,0003,000
Feet

Site Location

_̂
County Boundary

Chino Basin Water Conservation District Area
Containing 69,324.78 Acres, More or Less

SAN B
ERNARDIN

O C
OUNTY

RIV
ERSID

E C
OUNTY

S
A
N

 B
E
R

N
A

R
D

IN
O

 C
O

U
N
T
Y

O
R

A
N

G
E
 C

O
U

N
T
Y

S
A

N
 B

E
R

N
A

R
D

IN
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

L
O

S
 A

N
G

E
L

E
S

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION

James I. Stone                                                 Date

Deputy County Surveyor

PLS 9075                    Exp. 3/31/2018
Job Number 00146CP0 - Revised July 13, 2016

07/13/2016



16

T02NR07W

18

T02NR07W

17

T02NR07W

12

T01NR05W

11

T01NR05W

10

T01NR05W

9

T01NR05W

8

T01NR05W

7

T01NR05W

12

T01NR06W
10

T01NR06W 11

T01NR06W

9

T01NR06W

7

T01NR06W 8

T01NR06W

12

T01NR07W
9

T01NR07W

10

T01NR07W

11

T01NR07W

8

T01NR07W

7

T01NR07W
12

T01NR08W

3

T01NR05W

4

T01NR05W
5

T01NR05W

6

T01NR05W
2

T01NR06W

1

T01NR06W

3

T01NR06W

1

T01NR07W

5

T01NR07W
4

T01NR07W

3

T01NR07W

2

T01NR07W

4

T01NR06W

5

T01NR06W
6

T01NR07W
6

T01NR06W

1

T01NR08W

22

T02NR05W

23

T02NR05W

21

T02NR05W24

T02NR07W

24

T02NR05W

19

T02NR05W

23

T02NR07W

19

T02NR06W

22

T02NR06W
23

T02NR06W
24

T02NR06W

21

T02NR06W

22

T02NR07W

20

T02NR06W

19

T02NR07W
20

T02NR07W

21

T02NR07W

15

T02NR05W

14

T02NR05W

16

T02NR05W

13

T02NR07W

17

T02NR05W
13

T02NR05W

14

T02NR07W 18

T02NR05W

18

T02NR06W
14

T02NR06W

15

T02NR07W

17

T02NR06W

16

T02NR06W

27

T02SR07W

32

T02SR08W

35

T02SR09W

31

T02SR07W
32

T02SR07W

33

T02SR07W

4

T03SR08W

3

T03SR08W

6

T03SR08W

6

T03SR07W
1

T03SR09W 5

T03SR07W

4

T03SR07W

10

T03SR08W
12

T03SR08W
7

T03SR07W

9

T03SR08W

9

T03SR07W

7

T03SR08W

15

T03SR08W

13

T03SR08W

35

T01SR05W

35

T01SR07W

31

T01SR07W

36

T01SR07W

34

T01SR08W

15

T01NR07W 13

T01NR07W

31

T01NR07W

25

T03NR05W

26

T03NR05W

30

T03NR07W

29

T03NR05W

28

T03NR05W

30

T03NR05W
27

T03NR06W

25

T03NR06W28

T03NR06W

26

T03NR06W

25

T03NR07W

26

T03NR07W

29

T03NR06W

27

T03NR07W

30

T03NR06W

28

T03NR07W

29

T03NR07W

25

T01SR05W
26

T01SR05W

27

T01SR05W

12

T02NR05W
11

T02NR07W

7

T02NR05W

8

T02NR05W

9

T02NR05W 10

T02NR05W
11

T02NR05W

12

T02NR06W

11

T02NR06W

7

T02NR06W
8

T02NR06W

10

T02NR06W

9

T02NR06W
10

T02NR07W
8

T02NR07W

7

T02NR07W

28

T01SR07W25

T01SR08W

27

T01SR07W

26

T01SR07W

27

T01SR08W

1

T01SR05W2

T01SR05W
3

T01SR05W

4

T01SR05W
6

T01SR06W

5

T01SR07W

3

T01SR07W

6

T01SR07W

1

T01SR08W

35

T01SR08W

31

T01SR06W
33

T01SR08W

1

T02SR05W

4

T02SR07W
3

T02SR07W

2

T02SR07W

18

T01NR07W

13

T01NR08W

13

T03NR05W

16

T03NR05W

17

T03NR05W

18

T03NR05W
18

T03NR06W

17

T03NR06W

13

T03NR06W
13

T03NR07W

14

T03NR06W

14

T03NR07W

15

T03NR06W16

T03NR06W

15

T03NR07W

31

T03NR05W
36

T03NR06W

35

T03NR06W

34

T03NR06W

33

T03NR06W

32

T03NR06W
36

T03NR07W

35

T03NR07W

31

T03NR06W
34

T03NR07W

32

T03NR07W
33

T03NR07W

36

T03NR05W

35

T03NR05W
34

T03NR05W

33

T03NR05W

32

T03NR05W
31

T03NR07W

12

T02NR07W

1

T02SR07W

6

T02SR07W

21

T01NR05W

22

T01NR05W

23

T01NR05W

24

T01NR05W

19

T01NR05W

16

T03NR07W

17

T03NR07W

13

T01NR06W

18

T01NR05W

16

T01NR05W
15

T01NR05W

14

T01NR05W

13

T01NR05W

16

T01NR06W

16

T01NR07W 18

T01NR06W

17

T01NR07W

24

T01SR05W

35

T02NR05W

36

T02NR05W

34

T02NR05W

12

T01SR05W

11

T01SR05W

10

T01SR05W

9

T01SR05W
12

T01SR08W

7

T01SR07W

10

T01SR07W

10

T02SR08W

11

T02SR07W

12

T02SR07W

7

T02SR08W

16

T02SR07W
15

T02SR07W

13

T02SR07W

14

T02SR07W
17

T02SR07W18

T02SR07W

13

T02SR08W
15

T02SR08W
16

T02SR08W

14

T02SR09W

24

T02SR07W

24

T02SR09W
20

T02SR08W 22

T02SR07W

24

T02SR08W
21

T02SR07W

20

T02SR07W

19

T02SR07W

19

T03NR07W

1

T02NR05W

2

T02NR05W3

T02NR05W
4

T02NR05W

5

T02NR05W6

T02NR05W

25

T02SR08W

26

T02SR09W

33

T02SR08W

34

T02SR08W

36

T01NR06W

34

T01NR06W

33

T01NR06W

6

T01SR05W

1

T01SR06W
5

T01SR06W

22

T01SR05W

21

T01SR07W

24

T01SR08W
22

T01SR07W

25

T02NR05W

26

T02NR05W

11

T01SR07W

11

T01SR08W

1

T02NR06W

29

T02NR05W

30

T02NR05W
25

T02NR07W

32

T02NR05W

31

T02NR05W

35

T02NR06W

36

T02NR06W

36

T02NR07W

35

T02NR07W

34

T02NR07W
34

T02NR06W

33

T02NR07W

32

T02NR07W

33

T02NR06W
32

T02NR06W

31

T02NR06W

31

T02NR07W

36

T02NR08W

14

T01SR05W

2

T02NR06W
6

T02NR07W

3

T02NR06W

1

T02NR07W

4

T02NR06W
2

T02NR07W

5

T02NR06W
3

T02NR07W

4

T02NR07W
5

T02NR07W

6

T02NR06W

27

T01NR05W

29

T01NR05W

27

T01NR06W
26

T01NR06W

25

T01NR06W
28

T01NR06W

26

T01NR07W
25

T01NR07W

27

T01NR07W
28

T01NR07W

26

T01NR08W

4

T01SR06W

8

T01SR05W

7

T01SR05W

12

T01SR06W

8

T01SR06W

7

T01SR06W

13

T01SR06W

26

T02NR07W
25

T02NR06W

27

T02NR07W
27

T02NR06W

26

T02NR06W

28

T02NR07W

29

T02NR07W
29

T02NR06W

28

T02NR06W

30

T02NR07W
30

T02NR06W

15

T01SR06W

16

T01SR06W

17

T01SR06W

21

T01SR05W20

T01SR05W

24

T01SR06W

22

T01SR06W

21

T01SR06W

28

T01SR05W

30

T01SR05W

25

T01SR06W

26

T01SR06W
28

T01SR06W

29

T01SR06W

32

T01SR05W

30

T01NR07W

29

T01NR07W

17

T01SR07W

18

T01SR07W14

T01SR08W

14

T01SR07W

23

T03NR05W

22

T03NR05W

21

T03NR05W
20

T03NR05W

19

T03NR05W
24

T03NR06W

23

T03NR06W

22

T03NR06W21

T03NR06W

19

T03NR06W
24

T03NR07W

23

T03NR07W
22

T03NR07W

21

T03NR07W

20

T03NR07W

18

T03SR07W

16

T03SR08W
17

T03SR08W

21

T03SR08W

22

T03SR08W

23

T03SR08W
19

T03SR07W

24

T03SR08W

0

2

T02SR08W

1

T02SR08W

10

T02SR07W8

T02SR07W

9

T02SR07W
7

T02SR07W

22

T01NR06W21

T01NR06W

19

T01NR06W

21

T01NR07W
22

T01NR07W19

T01NR07W

24

T01NR08W

23

T01NR08W

36

T01NR05W

33

T01NR05W

36

T01NR07W

35

T01NR07W
34

T01NR07W

31

T01SR05W

36

T01SR06W

35

T01SR06W
34

T01SR06W

33

T01SR06W

32

T01SR06W

JURUPA

W 1st St

A
venida

de M
arcia

In
di

an

C
re

ek
Rd

LIO
N
S

C
A
N
Y
O

N

Thomps
o

n

Creek

R
d

T
o

w
n

e
 A

v
e

W Bonita Ave

J
U

N
IP

E
R

FOREST

PARK

ONTARIO
MILLS

PRADO

H
A

V
E

N

STATE
91

STRONG

C
ar

bo
n

C

an
yo

n
R

d

PALISADES

D
U

P
O

N
T

I 15 -STATE 60

EU
CALY

PTUS GLEN

RIDGE

S
o
q
u
e
l

C
a
n
yo

n
R

d

CURTIS

M
ADRUGADA

21ST

JEFFERSON

SIERRA
LAKES

H
E

L
L

M
A

N

17TH

Radcliffe Dr

B
L

U
E

G
R

A
S

S

SAN
JOSE

VINTAGE
H

IG
H

R
ID

G
E

CIVICCENTER

M
A

L
A

C
H

IT
E

BENITO

A
L

M
E

R
IA

M
IL

D
U

R
A

R
O

YAL

R
ID

G
E

B
O

Y
S

R
E
P
U

B
LI

C

19TH

P
IT

T
S

B
U

R
G

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D

B
U

F
F

A
L

O

AIRPORT

MOUNTAIN
VIEW

GREYSTONE

N
 M

ill
s

A
v
e

K
A

D
O

T
A

C
A

N
O

N

G
ol

de

n
Sprin

gs Dr

SIXTH

E
U

C
L

ID

C
A

M
IN

O

R
E

A
L

S
 S

y
c
a

m
o

re

A
v
e

P
IP

E
L

IN
E

M
ELO

D
Y

B
E

R
Y

L

Sylvan

Glen Rd

2N47

MAINSTREET

G
R

O
V

E

VAN BUREN

Country

Mile Rd

L
IT

T
L
E

L
E

A
G

U
E

S
A
N

TA
A
N
A

R
IV

E
R

T
R

A
IL

OHIO

CHINO

C
ar

bo

n

R
id

ge

R
d

I-10

V
E

R
N

O
N

C
A

R
L

O
S

E
A

S
T

Brush
Canyon Dr

D

W
E

L
L

S

HOWARD

D
A

Y
 C

R
E

E
K

INLAND
EMPIRE

GUASTI

P
A

L
M

E McKinleyAve

A

G

R
E

E
N

R

IV
E

R

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
 C

L
U

B

M
o

n
te

V
is

ta
 A

v
e

G
O

L
D

E
N

O
A

K
24TH

LO
SS
E
R
R
A
N
O

S

G
L

E
N

H
E

L
E

N

Copa
d
e

Oro
D

r

DEXTER

O
A

K
S

Harrison
Ave

W
 F

o
rk

P
a
lm

e
r M

tw
y

BASE LINE

LA
P
IS

Y
O

R
B

A

C
Y

P
R

E
S

S

H
id

d
e
n

H
ill

s
R

d

P
a
n
te

ra
D

r

N
O

ra
n
g
e

G
ro

v
e

A
ve

K
N

O
X

C
am

de

B
ry

an
t

M
A

G
N

O
L

IA

S
IE

R
R

A

V
illa

g
e

Lo
o
p

R
d

2N
59

Los
Coyotes Dr

M
A

P
L

E

Cobal Cyn

Fire Trl

Mount B
aldy R

d

CLIFF

PALO
ALTO

3N
31Y

C
E

N
T

E
R

V
A

L
L

E
V

IS
T
A

CALIFORNIA

C

S
 G

a
re

y

A
v
e

C
O

R
O

N
A

TORREY

PINES

APPLE

S
A

N
 A

N
T

O
N

IO

18TH

L
e
y
la

n
d

D
r

BEN

NEVIS

A
R

R
O

W
H

E
A

D

PHILADELPHIA

Alamosa Dr

W
IL

L
O

W

M
O

O
N

R
IV

E
R

R
U

B
ID

O
U

X

HOLT

ARROW

O
A
K

DALE

RIALTO

E
A

S
T

 E
N

D

Lo
n
g
vi

e
w

D
r

BROOKS

DEVON

SMOKESTONE

V
ia

P
a
d
o
va

U
n
k
n
o
w

n

C
A

M
P

B
E

L
L

RANCHOESTATES

STAR

RUBY

T
A

N
G

L
E

W
O

O
D

Green

Crest Dr

64TH

S
U

L
T
A

N
A

B
R

A
V

O
E

S
T
A

T
E

S

F
O

X
B

O
R

O
U

G
H C

O
N

D
O

R

L
IV

E
 O

A
K

Sm
ok

ey

M
ou

nta
in

 W
ay

E Pomello Dr

MILLER

I2
15

-
I1

5

V
E
R
D
U
G

O
MEYERS

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

P
A

R
K

IBERIA

EASTON

C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R

BANYAN

OLYMPICVIEW

D
E

V
O

R
E

KIPS KORNER

W
IN

D
M

IL
L

C
R

E
E

K

L
IN

D
E

N

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
V

IL
L

A
G

E

SUNRISE

KENDALL

STATE
HWY 138

BUENA

VISTA

ST. ANDREWS

P
R

E
C

IA
D

O

SNOWDROP

N
 I

n
d

ia
n

H
il l

 B
l v

d

R
O

S
W

E
L

L

D
e
rr

in
g
e
r

L
n

13TH

San Bernardino

Ave

B
E

E
C

H

H
A

L
L

A
Q

U
E

D
U

C
T

PA
RK

C
A

N
IS

T
E

L

C
A

N
Y

O
N

H
IL

L
S

SOQUEL
CANYON

RIMROCK

IRIS

HIG
HVIE

W

WHITEASH

VICTORIA

Grand Ave

3
N

4
5

M
AR

K
E

T

LONE PINE CANYON

23RD

BASELINE

HILLSIDE

C
E

D
A

R

KENWOOD

R
O

S
E

CONSTITUTION

D
E

F
O

R
E

S

T

L
A

R
C

H

P
E

C
A

N

LEMON

L
o

g
a

n
S

t

ALRU
PINEDALE

P
Y
R

IT
E

D
E

L

M
A

R

SCHAEFER

CHURCH

OAK

HILL

CHAPARRAL

BUCKINGHAM

N
 B

o
n

n
ie

B
ra

e
 A

v
e

MISSION

C
A

C
T

U
S

F
IL

L
M

O
R

E

O
A

K
R

ID
G

E

WINDCREST

S
TAT

E
 71 -

S
TAT

E
 60

M
A

N
G

O

C
h
in

o

H
ills

P
k
w

y

M
C

 K
IN

L
E

Y

14TH

R

ANCHO

H
IL

LS

FIFTH

KIMBALL

AUGUSTA

M
o

u
n

ta
in

A
v
e

T
U

R
N

E
R

LA CANADA

C
O
R
N
E
R
S
TO

N
E

W
A

L
K

E
R

C
R

E
S

T
L
IN

E

L
O

S
T

L
A

K
E

WHITTRAM

L
IL

A
C

Lincoln

Ave

WALN

U
T

CREEK

I

A
G

A
T

E

COLUMBIA

D
E

L
N

O
R

T
E

W
E

L
L

S

S
P

R
IN

G
S

D
EA

R
BO

R
N

HOME

A
V
A
L
O

N

F
E

L
D

S
P
A

R

AVION

JERSEY

C
A
N
A
L

A
C

A
C

IA

SUNNY
MEADOW

22ND

OLIVE

O
R

A
N

G
E

D
E

W
E

Y

P
E

P
P

E
R

SEVENTH

STATE
241

- STATE
91

TR
A
IL

KAPIOLANI

V
O

L
A

N
T

E

S
A

P
P

H
IR

E

B
A

K
E

R

R
A

M
O

N
A

W 7th St

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

S
Y

C
A

M
O

R
E

15TH

A
L

B
R

IG
H

T

R
E

D
W

O
O

D

TERRACE

PERIMETER

V
IN

E

W Arrow
Hwy

CANTU GALLEANO RANCH

H
E

M
L

O
C

K

S
 W

h
it
e

A
v
e

E Mission Blvd

E 7th St

S
P

R
U

C
E

HAWTHORNE

I 15 - I 10

F
E

L
S

P
A

R

16TH

F
IT

Z
G

E
R

A
L

D

E
D

E
N

G
L

E
N

E 2nd St

I 1
5

WATERCANYON

Golden
Prados Dr

2
N

D

E Grand

Ave

PALO VERDE

T
O

K
A

Y

UNNAMED
JEEP

E Olive St

HARVARD

O
A

K

C
A

R
N

E
L

IA
N

F

BLUFF

E

N
 Y

a
le

A
v
e

W
ALLACE

BOULDERCANYON

K
IM

B
A

R
K

P
O

P
L

A
R

M
O

N
T

E
 V

IS
T
A

BAYBERRY

W
OODVIE

W

NOCTA

VERSANTE

W
estbrook

Ln

E la

Verne Ave

PA
C

IF
IC

E
LE

C
T
R
IC

STATE

B

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E

FOOTHILL
E

T
IW

A
N

D
A

C
E

D
A

R

C
R

E
E

K

A
M

E
T

H
Y

S
T

POLLARD

UPLAND

HILLS

PINE

B
LO

O
M

IN
G

TO
N

Price St

Ridge

Li
ne Rd

R
IN

C
O

N

M
E

A
D

O
W

S

M
T

B
A

LD
Y

PARKSID
E

R
IV

E
R

A

SEVILLE

H

T
U

R
Q

U
O

IS
E

5
T

H

C
IT

R
U

S

A
L

L
Y

N

P
a

d
u

a
A

v
e

O
L

E
A

N
D

E
R

L
IM

E

T
R

A
IL

C
A

N
Y

O
N

L
O

V
E

L
A

N
D

SW
ARTHOUT

CANYON

E Arrow

Hwy

LITTLEHORSETHIEF

J
A

S
P

E
R

B
R

O
N

C
O

G
R

A
C

E

IN
D

IA
N

W
E

L
L
S

B
L

A
N

C
H

A
R

D

KENYO
N

ONTARIO RANCH

Philadelphia St

TACKSTEM

H
U

N
T

E
R

VISTA

GROVE

L
IO

N

VILLAGE

IL
E

X

SHADOW

CANYON

F
A

IR
M

O
N

T

W
A

N
A

M
A

K
E

R

N
O

R
T

O
N

3
R

D

S
A

N
 S

E
V

A
IN

E

L
A

U
R

E
L

B
A

SS

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

U
T

IC
A

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E

WHISPERING
HILLS

3N
35

B
O

N

V
IE

W

L
O

W
E

R
A

L
IS

O

C
A

N
Y

O
N

R
O

A
D

R
U

N
N

E
R

F
E

N
N

E
L

G
R

A
Y

INLAND

F
E

R
N

UNNAMED

POWERLINE

E Baseline Rd

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

B
A

N
A

N
A

S
h

e
ri

d
a

n

A
v
e

F
R

E
M

O
N

T

RIDGELINE

HERITAGE

ORCHARD

C
O

L
L
E

G
E

Armitos Pl

I 10

H
A

R
R

IS
O

N

Sunset

Crossing Rd

In
d

ia
n

H
ill

 B
lv

d

I 215

6TH

TERMINAL

E
A

S
T

G
A

T
E

G
IR

D

E Columbia
Ave

O
C

A
S

A

C
O

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K

M
O

U
N

T
A

IN

B
A

N
E

C
A

N
Y

O
N

1
0

T
H

A
R

C
H

IB
A

L
D

ENGLISH

2N49

S
TA

TE

H
W

Y 9
1

C
O

Y
O

TE

C
A
N
Y
O

N

25TH

Scripps Dr

WILSON

HARREL

RENAISSANCE

G
A

IL

68TH

V
IN

E
Y

A
R

D

SESAME

E Kingsley Ave

E Holt AveE Center

St

E 12th

StW Grand

Ave

WALNUT
VILLAGE

VESTA

E
C

L
IP

S
E

45TH

H
Y

S
S

O
P

W 10th St

La

P
alm

a
A
ve

C
H

E
R

R
Y

P
E

Y
T

O
N

LO
SS
E
R

R
A
N

O
S
 C

C

LO
N

G
W

A
Y

A
R

O
U

N
D

BERKELEY

EL MORADO

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

J

STATE 71 EXIT 8

FL
E
E
T
W

O
O

D
58TH

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K

3N29

MAITLAND
RALSTON

BELMONT

9TH

M
U

L
B

E
R

R
Y

SUMMIT

GALENA

PINTAIL

UNNAMED
FIRE

W 11th St

N
 C

l a
re

m
o

n
t

B
l v

d

I- 
210

E Phillips Blvd

28TH

SANTA ANA

MERRILL

SLOVER

E
L

M

LIBERTY

C
O

M
E

T

A
Y

A
L

A

TELEGRAPHCANYON

VENTU
R

E

E Lexington Ave

MANZANITA

D
A

N
A

I 15 -
I 215

S
K
U

LLY

R
ID

G
E

S
M

IT
H

CAN
Y

O
N

CRE
S

T

A
G

U
A

M
A

N
S

A

WALNUT

Tonner

Canyon Rd

MOUNTAIN

HIGH

3
N

2
1

C
O

N
C

H
A

W
IN

E
V

IL
L

E

M
A

R
IO

N

F
R

A
N

K

B
E

N
S

O
N

TER
R
A

VISTA

MORENO

M
IL

L
S

C
o
b
a
l

C
a
n
yo

n
 M

tw
y

SANTAFE FIR

E

STAT E
6

0

- I 1
5

S
C

H
O

L
A

R

1
S

T

SCENIC

3N22

GRANADA

HILTON

M
A

IN

S
IE

R
R

A
M

A
D

R
E

DUNCAN

CANYON

S
U

M
N

E
R

1
2

T
H

RAILROAD

ACCESS

H
E

R
M

O
S

A

W
A

R
D

M
A

N
B

U
L

L
O

C
K

G

X2N47

S
torrs

P
l

H
A

M
N

E
R

Wright St

K
a

th
ry

n

A
v
e

26TH

CERES

M
A

R
C

O
N

A

T
O

N
N

E
R

C
A

N
Y

O
N

STATE

HWY 60

D
E

C
L
IF

F

P
R
O

S
P
E
C

T

P
A

T
S

R
A

N
C

H

D
U

L
L

E
S

A
S

H
W

O
O

D

FERREE

8TH

C
A

T
A

W
B

A

S
 H

u
n

t i
n

g
t o

n
 S

t

I 15-STATE
210

4
W

D
R

oa
d

SLAUGHTER

CANYON

3N44

2N53

PRINCETON

CONCOURS

POMONA

C
A

R
N

E
G

IE

M
O

N
T

E
R

E
Y

FERON
C

O
N

N
IN

G

Decorah Rd

U
N
IO

N

M
IL

L
IK

E
N

D
A

T
E

A
L

D
E

R

CANOGA

P
A

R
C

O

C
A

M
P

U
S

UPLAND

CORNELL

BOYLE

IVY

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

ROSEMARY

BICKMORE

VALENCIA

BANYON

FRANCIS

EDISON

MARYGOLD

A
L
T
A

A
L

M
O

N
D

S
R

e
s
e

rv
o

ir
S

t

L
IN

D
S

A
Y

PERSIMMON

R
O

C
K

E
F

E
L

L
E

R

L
O

C
U

S
T

SAN

BERNARDINOL
U

C
A

S
R

A
N

C
H

WASHINGTON

K
E

N
N

E
T

H

MIRO

A
V

O
N

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N

E 1st St

PHILLIPS

LIMONITE

EL RIVINO

P
A

R
K

P
L

A
C

E

POWERLINE

W
O

O
D

L
A

W
N

CASA GRANDE

B
U

T
T

E
R

F
IE

L
D

R
A

N
C

H

C
L

E
V

E
L

A
N

D

B
A

R
R

IN
G

T
O

N

PITMAN
CANYON

C
A

B
E

R
N

E
T

S
U

M
M

IT

V
A

L
L
E

Y

E
L P

R
A
D

O

CHINO

HILLS

GLENVIE
W

FAIR
FIELD

R
AN

C
H

BARHARBOR

GRANITE
HILL

C
E

L
E

B
R

A
T

IO
N

S
U

M
M

IT
T

R
U

C
K

STO
N
EV

IE
W

2N58

C
A

R
M

E
L

C
R

O
W

N

3N53

R
IV

E
R

P
U

R
C

E
L
L

SCHLEISMAN

3
N

4
9

S
TATE

 60

E
X
IT 12 A

11TH

U
P

P
E

R

A
L
IS

O

2
N

5
6

INSTITUTION

GALLOPING

HILLS

N
orth

R
id

ge
R
d

C
A

L
A

B
A

S
H

STONERIDGE

3
N

6
6
A

1
N

4
4

VALLEY

D
E

E
R

C
R

E
S

T

C
le

a
r

C
re

e
k

L
n

STATE

HWY 210
HIGHLAND

34TH

3N31

T
A

M
A

R
IN

D

H
E

L
E

N C
U

C
A

M
O

N
G

A

CHANDLER

7TH

65TH

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

Dare Ct

BELLEGRAVE

1
N

36

20TH

2N79

OLD GUASTI

A
P

P
LE

W
H

IT
E

P
A

C
I F

IC

M
A

Y
H

E
W

C
E

N
T

R
A

L

E
S

Q
U

IL
IM

E

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

RICHTON

TAYLOR

P
A

L
M

E
T

T
O

P
A

L
E

R
M

O

K
E

T
T

E
R

IN
G

I 15E
X
IT 124

STONEHURST

O
N

T
A

R
IO

A
R

M
S

T
R

O
N

G

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

I 15 CAJON

SCALES

CORRAL

G
RAND

B
U

N
K

H
O

U
S

E

K
A

IS
E

R

HALL

RANCH

RESEARCH

PEBBLE

BEACH

S
T
A

T
E

H
W

Y
7
1

3N31YA

LA

PALM
A

F
A

IR
W

A
Y

2N
55A

1
N

3
3

JOHNSON

1N35

S
A

N
T
A

A
N

IT
A

3N06

SCOUT

CABLE

CANYON

MCCARTY

CHINO
CORONA

2N61

LY
T

L
E

 C
R

E
E

K

SHEA

M
C

C
A

R
T
H

Y

BACK
STRAIGHT

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E

L
IN

E

PotatoeMountain Mtwy

CASMALIA

M
C

D
E

R
M

O
N

T

FERNCOVE

S
H

O
R

T
C

U
T

DEVILS
BACKBO

NE

COLLEGE

PARK

R
IN

C
O

N

KEENBROOK

NAPA

Unnamed
Street

3N66

RIDGE

A
L
L
U

V
IA

L

Green
River Rd

Glendora

Ridge Rd

1
N

34
A

STATE 91 -

STATE 71

C
L
E

A
R

W
A
T
E
R

KINGS

RANCH

F
IR

E

S
T
A
T
IO

N

1N34

CARBON

CANYON

V
E
R

D
EM

O
NT

R

A
N
C

H

H
O

LL
Y

2N87

CAJON

3N06D

BOBCATRIDGE

BLUE
R
ID

G
E

TRU
C
K

REMINGTON

SCULLYRIDG
E

1N32

W
IR

E
S

P
R

IN
G

S

3
N

5
5

2N49A

AUTO CLUB
SPEEDWAY

2
N

5
7

2
N

5
2

HORSETHIEFCANYON

2N
79A

SC
ULLY

HILL

1
N

2
7

BurbankMtwy

S
TA

R
LI

G
H
T

3N
33

3N06A

2N45

3N39

3N51

3N06B

ONTARIO

PEAK

P
O

M
O

N
A

R
IN

C
O

N

6W01

3N08

2
N

4
6

FALLS

ICEHOUSECANYON

S
u
n
se

t R
idge

F
ire

Rd

2
N

0
4

LAFCO ____

Consolidation of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District

and the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (a Municipal Water District)

Section Lines

Those Portions of: Township 1 North, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M., Township 1 South, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M., Township 2 South, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M.,
and Township 3 South, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M.,San Bernardino County, State of California.

1 inch = 6,000 feet

±

0 12,000 24,000 36,000 48,0006,000
Feet

Site Location

_̂

Consolidated Inland Empire Utilities Agency &
Chino Basin Water Conservation District Area
Containing 153,262.39 Acres, More or Less

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

RIVERSIDE COUNTY

S
A

N
 B

E
R
N

A
R

D
IN

O
 C

O
U
N

T
Y

O
R

A
N

G
E
 C

O
U
N

T
Y

S
A

N
 B

E
R

N
A

R
D

IN
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

L
O

S
 A

N
G

E
L

E
S

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

Chino Basin Water Conservation District Area
Containing 69,324.78 Acres, More or Less

County Boundary

THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION

James I. Stone                                                 Date

Deputy County Surveyor

PLS 9075                    Exp. 3/31/2018
Job Number 00146CP0 - Revised July 13, 2016

07/13/2016



16

T02NR07W

18

T02NR07W

17

T02NR07W

12

T01NR05W

11

T01NR05W

10

T01NR05W

9

T01NR05W

8

T01NR05W

7

T01NR05W

12

T01NR06W
10

T01NR06W 11

T01NR06W

9

T01NR06W

7

T01NR06W 8

T01NR06W

12

T01NR07W
9

T01NR07W

10

T01NR07W

11

T01NR07W

8

T01NR07W

7

T01NR07W
12

T01NR08W

3

T01NR05W

4

T01NR05W
5

T01NR05W

6

T01NR05W
2

T01NR06W

1

T01NR06W

3

T01NR06W

1

T01NR07W

5

T01NR07W
4

T01NR07W

3

T01NR07W

2

T01NR07W

4

T01NR06W

5

T01NR06W
6

T01NR07W
6

T01NR06W

1

T01NR08W

22

T02NR05W

23

T02NR05W

21

T02NR05W24

T02NR07W

24

T02NR05W

19

T02NR05W

23

T02NR07W

19

T02NR06W

22

T02NR06W
23

T02NR06W
24

T02NR06W

21

T02NR06W

22

T02NR07W

20

T02NR06W

19

T02NR07W
20

T02NR07W

21

T02NR07W

15

T02NR05W

14

T02NR05W

16

T02NR05W

13

T02NR07W

17

T02NR05W
13

T02NR05W

14

T02NR07W 18

T02NR05W

18

T02NR06W
14

T02NR06W

15

T02NR07W

17

T02NR06W

16

T02NR06W

27

T02SR07W

32

T02SR08W

35

T02SR09W

31

T02SR07W
32

T02SR07W

33

T02SR07W

4

T03SR08W

3

T03SR08W

6

T03SR08W

6

T03SR07W
1

T03SR09W 5

T03SR07W

4

T03SR07W

10

T03SR08W
12

T03SR08W
7

T03SR07W

9

T03SR08W

9

T03SR07W

7

T03SR08W

15

T03SR08W

13

T03SR08W

35

T01SR05W

35

T01SR07W

31

T01SR07W

36

T01SR07W

34

T01SR08W

15

T01NR07W 13

T01NR07W

31

T01NR07W

25

T03NR05W

26

T03NR05W

30

T03NR07W

29

T03NR05W

28

T03NR05W

30

T03NR05W
27

T03NR06W

25

T03NR06W28

T03NR06W

26

T03NR06W

25

T03NR07W

26

T03NR07W

29

T03NR06W

27

T03NR07W

30

T03NR06W

28

T03NR07W

29

T03NR07W

25

T01SR05W
26

T01SR05W

27

T01SR05W

12

T02NR05W
11

T02NR07W

7

T02NR05W

8

T02NR05W

9

T02NR05W 10

T02NR05W
11

T02NR05W

12

T02NR06W

11

T02NR06W

7

T02NR06W
8

T02NR06W

10

T02NR06W

9

T02NR06W
10

T02NR07W
8

T02NR07W

7

T02NR07W

28

T01SR07W25

T01SR08W

27

T01SR07W

26

T01SR07W

27

T01SR08W

1

T01SR05W2

T01SR05W
3

T01SR05W

4

T01SR05W
6

T01SR06W

5

T01SR07W

3

T01SR07W

6

T01SR07W

1

T01SR08W

35

T01SR08W

31

T01SR06W
33

T01SR08W

1

T02SR05W

4

T02SR07W
3

T02SR07W

2

T02SR07W

18

T01NR07W

13

T01NR08W

13

T03NR05W

16

T03NR05W

17

T03NR05W

18

T03NR05W
18

T03NR06W

17

T03NR06W

13

T03NR06W
13

T03NR07W

14

T03NR06W

14

T03NR07W

15

T03NR06W16

T03NR06W

15

T03NR07W

31

T03NR05W
36

T03NR06W

35

T03NR06W

34

T03NR06W

33

T03NR06W

32

T03NR06W
36

T03NR07W

35

T03NR07W

31

T03NR06W
34

T03NR07W

32

T03NR07W
33

T03NR07W

36

T03NR05W

35

T03NR05W
34

T03NR05W

33

T03NR05W

32

T03NR05W
31

T03NR07W

12

T02NR07W

1

T02SR07W

6

T02SR07W

21

T01NR05W

22

T01NR05W

23

T01NR05W

24

T01NR05W

19

T01NR05W

16

T03NR07W

17

T03NR07W

13

T01NR06W

18

T01NR05W

16

T01NR05W
15

T01NR05W

14

T01NR05W

13

T01NR05W

16

T01NR06W

16

T01NR07W 18

T01NR06W

17

T01NR07W

24

T01SR05W

35

T02NR05W

36

T02NR05W

34

T02NR05W

12

T01SR05W

11

T01SR05W

10

T01SR05W

9

T01SR05W
12

T01SR08W

7

T01SR07W

10

T01SR07W

10

T02SR08W

11

T02SR07W

12

T02SR07W

7

T02SR08W

16

T02SR07W
15

T02SR07W

13

T02SR07W

14

T02SR07W
17

T02SR07W18

T02SR07W

13

T02SR08W
15

T02SR08W
16

T02SR08W

14

T02SR09W

24

T02SR07W

24

T02SR09W
20

T02SR08W 22

T02SR07W

24

T02SR08W
21

T02SR07W

20

T02SR07W

19

T02SR07W

19

T03NR07W

1

T02NR05W

2

T02NR05W3

T02NR05W
4

T02NR05W

5

T02NR05W6

T02NR05W

25

T02SR08W

26

T02SR09W

33

T02SR08W

34

T02SR08W

36

T01NR06W

34

T01NR06W

33

T01NR06W

6

T01SR05W

1

T01SR06W
5

T01SR06W

22

T01SR05W

21

T01SR07W

24

T01SR08W
22

T01SR07W

25

T02NR05W

26

T02NR05W

11

T01SR07W

11

T01SR08W

1

T02NR06W

29

T02NR05W

30

T02NR05W
25

T02NR07W

32

T02NR05W

31

T02NR05W

35

T02NR06W

36

T02NR06W

36

T02NR07W

35

T02NR07W

34

T02NR07W
34

T02NR06W

33

T02NR07W

32

T02NR07W

33

T02NR06W
32

T02NR06W

31

T02NR06W

31

T02NR07W

36

T02NR08W

14

T01SR05W

2

T02NR06W
6

T02NR07W

3

T02NR06W

1

T02NR07W

4

T02NR06W
2

T02NR07W

5

T02NR06W
3

T02NR07W

4

T02NR07W
5

T02NR07W

6

T02NR06W

27

T01NR05W

29

T01NR05W

27

T01NR06W
26

T01NR06W

25

T01NR06W
28

T01NR06W

26

T01NR07W
25

T01NR07W

27

T01NR07W
28

T01NR07W

26

T01NR08W

4

T01SR06W

8

T01SR05W

7

T01SR05W

12

T01SR06W

8

T01SR06W

7

T01SR06W

13

T01SR06W

26

T02NR07W
25

T02NR06W

27

T02NR07W
27

T02NR06W

26

T02NR06W

28

T02NR07W

29

T02NR07W
29

T02NR06W

28

T02NR06W

30

T02NR07W
30

T02NR06W

15

T01SR06W

16

T01SR06W

17

T01SR06W

21

T01SR05W20

T01SR05W

24

T01SR06W

22

T01SR06W

21

T01SR06W

28

T01SR05W

30

T01SR05W

25

T01SR06W

26

T01SR06W
28

T01SR06W

29

T01SR06W

32

T01SR05W

30

T01NR07W

29

T01NR07W

17

T01SR07W

18

T01SR07W14

T01SR08W

14

T01SR07W

23

T03NR05W

22

T03NR05W

21

T03NR05W
20

T03NR05W

19

T03NR05W
24

T03NR06W

23

T03NR06W

22

T03NR06W21

T03NR06W

19

T03NR06W
24

T03NR07W

23

T03NR07W
22

T03NR07W

21

T03NR07W

20

T03NR07W

18

T03SR07W

16

T03SR08W
17

T03SR08W

21

T03SR08W

22

T03SR08W

23

T03SR08W
19

T03SR07W

24

T03SR08W

0

2

T02SR08W

1

T02SR08W

10

T02SR07W8

T02SR07W

9

T02SR07W
7

T02SR07W

22

T01NR06W21

T01NR06W

19

T01NR06W

21

T01NR07W
22

T01NR07W19

T01NR07W

24

T01NR08W

23

T01NR08W

36

T01NR05W

33

T01NR05W

36

T01NR07W

35

T01NR07W
34

T01NR07W

31

T01SR05W

36

T01SR06W

35

T01SR06W
34

T01SR06W

33

T01SR06W

32

T01SR06W

JURUPA

W 1st St

A
venida

de M
arcia

In
di

an

C
re

ek
Rd

LIO
N
S

C
A
N
Y
O

N

Thomps
o

n

Creek

R
d

T
o

w
n

e
 A

v
e

W Bonita Ave

J
U

N
IP

E
R

FOREST

PARK

ONTARIO
MILLS

PRADO

H
A

V
E

N

STATE
91

STRONG

C
ar

bo
n

C

an
yo

n
R

d

PALISADES

D
U

P
O

N
T

I 15 -STATE 60

EU
CALY

PTUS GLEN

RIDGE

S
o
q
u
e
l

C
a
n
yo

n
R

d

CURTIS

M
ADRUGADA

21ST

JEFFERSON

SIERRA
LAKES

H
E

L
L

M
A

N

17TH

Radcliffe Dr

B
L

U
E

G
R

A
S

S

SAN
JOSE

VINTAGE
H

IG
H

R
ID

G
E

CIVICCENTER

M
A

L
A

C
H

IT
E

BENITO

A
L

M
E

R
IA

M
IL

D
U

R
A

R
O

YAL

R
ID

G
E

B
O

Y
S

R
E
P
U

B
LI

C

19TH

P
IT

T
S

B
U

R
G

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D

B
U

F
F

A
L

O

AIRPORT

MOUNTAIN
VIEW

GREYSTONE

N
 M

ill
s

A
v
e

K
A

D
O

T
A

C
A

N
O

N

G
ol

de

n
Sprin

gs Dr

SIXTH

E
U

C
L

ID

C
A

M
IN

O

R
E

A
L

S
 S

y
c
a

m
o

re

A
v
e

P
IP

E
L

IN
E

M
ELO

D
Y

B
E

R
Y

L

Sylvan

Glen Rd

2N47

MAINSTREET

G
R

O
V

E

VAN BUREN

Country

Mile Rd

L
IT

T
L
E

L
E

A
G

U
E

S
A
N

TA
A
N
A

R
IV

E
R

T
R

A
IL

OHIO

CHINO

C
ar

bo

n

R
id

ge

R
d

I-10

V
E

R
N

O
N

C
A

R
L

O
S

E
A

S
T

Brush
Canyon Dr

D

W
E

L
L

S

HOWARD

D
A

Y
 C

R
E

E
K

INLAND
EMPIRE

GUASTI

P
A

L
M

E McKinleyAve

A

G

R
E

E
N

R

IV
E

R

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
 C

L
U

B

M
o

n
te

V
is

ta
 A

v
e

G
O

L
D

E
N

O
A

K
24TH

LO
SS
E
R
R
A
N
O

S

G
L

E
N

H
E

L
E

N

Copa
d
e

Oro
D

r

DEXTER

O
A

K
S

Harrison
Ave

W
 F

o
rk

P
a
lm

e
r M

tw
y

BASE LINE

LA
P
IS

Y
O

R
B

A

C
Y

P
R

E
S

S

H
id

d
e
n

H
ill

s
R

d

P
a
n
te

ra
D

r

N
O

ra
n
g
e

G
ro

v
e

A
ve

K
N

O
X

C
am

de

B
ry

an
t

M
A

G
N

O
L

IA

S
IE

R
R

A

V
illa

g
e

Lo
o
p

R
d

2N
59

Los
Coyotes Dr

M
A

P
L

E

Cobal Cyn

Fire Trl

Mount B
aldy R

d

CLIFF

PALO
ALTO

3N
31Y

C
E

N
T

E
R

V
A

L
L

E
V

IS
T
A

CALIFORNIA

C

S
 G

a
re

y

A
v
e

C
O

R
O

N
A

TORREY

PINES

APPLE

S
A

N
 A

N
T

O
N

IO

18TH

L
e
y
la

n
d

D
r

BEN

NEVIS

A
R

R
O

W
H

E
A

D

PHILADELPHIA

Alamosa Dr

W
IL

L
O

W

M
O

O
N

R
IV

E
R

R
U

B
ID

O
U

X

HOLT

ARROW

O
A
K

DALE

RIALTO

E
A

S
T

 E
N

D

Lo
n
g
vi

e
w

D
r

BROOKS

DEVON

SMOKESTONE

V
ia

P
a
d
o
va

U
n
k
n
o
w

n

C
A

M
P

B
E

L
L

RANCHOESTATES

STAR

RUBY

T
A

N
G

L
E

W
O

O
D

Green

Crest Dr

64TH

S
U

L
T
A

N
A

B
R

A
V

O
E

S
T
A

T
E

S

F
O

X
B

O
R

O
U

G
H C

O
N

D
O

R

L
IV

E
 O

A
K

Sm
ok

ey

M
ou

nta
in

 W
ay

E Pomello Dr

MILLER

I2
15

-
I1

5

V
E
R
D
U
G

O
MEYERS

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

P
A

R
K

IBERIA

EASTON

C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R

BANYAN

OLYMPICVIEW

D
E

V
O

R
E

KIPS KORNER

W
IN

D
M

IL
L

C
R

E
E

K

L
IN

D
E

N

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
V

IL
L

A
G

E

SUNRISE

KENDALL

STATE
HWY 138

BUENA

VISTA

ST. ANDREWS

P
R

E
C

IA
D

O

SNOWDROP

N
 I

n
d

ia
n

H
il l

 B
l v

d

R
O

S
W

E
L

L

D
e
rr

in
g
e
r

L
n

13TH

San Bernardino

Ave

B
E

E
C

H

H
A

L
L

A
Q

U
E

D
U

C
T

PA
RK

C
A

N
IS

T
E

L

C
A

N
Y

O
N

H
IL

L
S

SOQUEL
CANYON

RIMROCK

IRIS

HIG
HVIE

W

WHITEASH

VICTORIA

Grand Ave

3
N

4
5

M
AR

K
E

T

LONE PINE CANYON

23RD

BASELINE

HILLSIDE

C
E

D
A

R

KENWOOD

R
O

S
E

CONSTITUTION

D
E

F
O

R
E

S

T

L
A

R
C

H

P
E

C
A

N

LEMON

L
o

g
a

n
S

t

ALRU
PINEDALE

P
Y
R

IT
E

D
E

L

M
A

R

SCHAEFER

CHURCH

OAK

HILL

CHAPARRAL

BUCKINGHAM

N
 B

o
n

n
ie

B
ra

e
 A

v
e

MISSION

C
A

C
T

U
S

F
IL

L
M

O
R

E

O
A

K
R

ID
G

E

WINDCREST

S
TAT

E
 71 -

S
TAT

E
 60

M
A

N
G

O

C
h
in

o

H
ills

P
k
w

y

M
C

 K
IN

L
E

Y

14TH

R

ANCHO

H
IL

LS

FIFTH

KIMBALL

AUGUSTA

M
o

u
n

ta
in

A
v
e

T
U

R
N

E
R

LA CANADA

C
O
R
N
E
R
S
TO

N
E

W
A

L
K

E
R

C
R

E
S

T
L
IN

E

L
O

S
T

L
A

K
E

WHITTRAM

L
IL

A
C

Lincoln

Ave

WALN

U
T

CREEK

I

A
G

A
T

E

COLUMBIA

D
E

L
N

O
R

T
E

W
E

L
L

S

S
P

R
IN

G
S

D
EA

R
BO

R
N

HOME

A
V
A
L
O

N

F
E

L
D

S
P
A

R

AVION

JERSEY

C
A
N
A
L

A
C

A
C

IA

SUNNY
MEADOW

22ND

OLIVE

O
R

A
N

G
E

D
E

W
E

Y

P
E

P
P

E
R

SEVENTH

STATE
241

- STATE
91

TR
A
IL

KAPIOLANI

V
O

L
A

N
T

E

S
A

P
P

H
IR

E

B
A

K
E

R

R
A

M
O

N
A

W 7th St

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

S
Y

C
A

M
O

R
E

15TH

A
L

B
R

IG
H

T

R
E

D
W

O
O

D

TERRACE

PERIMETER

V
IN

E

W Arrow
Hwy

CANTU GALLEANO RANCH

H
E

M
L

O
C

K

S
 W

h
it
e

A
v
e

E Mission Blvd

E 7th St

S
P

R
U

C
E

HAWTHORNE

I 15 - I 10

F
E

L
S

P
A

R

16TH

F
IT

Z
G

E
R

A
L

D

E
D

E
N

G
L

E
N

E 2nd St

I 1
5

WATERCANYON

Golden
Prados Dr

2
N

D

E Grand

Ave

PALO VERDE

T
O

K
A

Y

UNNAMED
JEEP

E Olive St

HARVARD

O
A

K

C
A

R
N

E
L

IA
N

F

BLUFF

E

N
 Y

a
le

A
v
e

W
ALLACE

BOULDERCANYON

K
IM

B
A

R
K

P
O

P
L

A
R

M
O

N
T

E
 V

IS
T
A

BAYBERRY

W
OODVIE

W

NOCTA

VERSANTE

W
estbrook

Ln

E la

Verne Ave

PA
C

IF
IC

E
LE

C
T
R
IC

STATE

B

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E

FOOTHILL
E

T
IW

A
N

D
A

C
E

D
A

R

C
R

E
E

K

A
M

E
T

H
Y

S
T

POLLARD

UPLAND

HILLS

PINE

B
LO

O
M

IN
G

TO
N

Price St

Ridge

Li
ne Rd

R
IN

C
O

N

M
E

A
D

O
W

S

M
T

B
A

LD
Y

PARKSID
E

R
IV

E
R

A

SEVILLE

H

T
U

R
Q

U
O

IS
E

5
T

H

C
IT

R
U

S

A
L

L
Y

N

P
a

d
u

a
A

v
e

O
L

E
A

N
D

E
R

L
IM

E

T
R

A
IL

C
A

N
Y

O
N

L
O

V
E

L
A

N
D

SW
ARTHOUT

CANYON

E Arrow

Hwy

LITTLEHORSETHIEF

J
A

S
P

E
R

B
R

O
N

C
O

G
R

A
C

E

IN
D

IA
N

W
E

L
L
S

B
L

A
N

C
H

A
R

D

KENYO
N

ONTARIO RANCH

Philadelphia St

TACKSTEM

H
U

N
T

E
R

VISTA

GROVE

L
IO

N

VILLAGE

IL
E

X

SHADOW

CANYON

F
A

IR
M

O
N

T

W
A

N
A

M
A

K
E

R

N
O

R
T

O
N

3
R

D

S
A

N
 S

E
V

A
IN

E

L
A

U
R

E
L

B
A

SS

U
N

N
A

M
E

D

U
T

IC
A

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E

WHISPERING
HILLS

3N
35

B
O

N

V
IE

W

L
O

W
E

R
A

L
IS

O

C
A

N
Y

O
N

R
O

A
D

R
U

N
N

E
R

F
E

N
N

E
L

G
R

A
Y

INLAND

F
E

R
N

UNNAMED

POWERLINE

E Baseline Rd

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

B
A

N
A

N
A

S
h

e
ri

d
a

n

A
v
e

F
R

E
M

O
N

T

RIDGELINE

HERITAGE

ORCHARD

C
O

L
L
E

G
E

Armitos Pl

I 10

H
A

R
R

IS
O

N

Sunset

Crossing Rd

In
d

ia
n

H
ill

 B
lv

d

I 215

6TH

TERMINAL

E
A

S
T

G
A

T
E

G
IR

D

E Columbia
Ave

O
C

A
S

A

C
O

B
B

L
E

C
R

E
E

K

M
O

U
N

T
A

IN

B
A

N
E

C
A

N
Y

O
N

1
0

T
H

A
R

C
H

IB
A

L
D

ENGLISH

2N49

S
TA

TE

H
W

Y 9
1

C
O

Y
O

TE

C
A
N
Y
O

N

25TH

Scripps Dr

WILSON

HARREL

RENAISSANCE

G
A

IL

68TH

V
IN

E
Y

A
R

D

SESAME

E Kingsley Ave

E Holt AveE Center

St

E 12th

StW Grand

Ave

WALNUT
VILLAGE

VESTA

E
C

L
IP

S
E

45TH

H
Y

S
S

O
P

W 10th St

La

P
alm

a
A
ve

C
H

E
R

R
Y

P
E

Y
T

O
N

LO
SS
E
R

R
A
N

O
S
 C

C

LO
N

G
W

A
Y

A
R

O
U

N
D

BERKELEY

EL MORADO

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T

J

STATE 71 EXIT 8

FL
E
E
T
W

O
O

D
58TH

W
H

IT
E

 O
A

K

3N29

MAITLAND
RALSTON

BELMONT

9TH

M
U

L
B

E
R

R
Y

SUMMIT

GALENA

PINTAIL

UNNAMED
FIRE

W 11th St

N
 C

l a
re

m
o

n
t

B
l v

d

I- 
210

E Phillips Blvd

28TH

SANTA ANA

MERRILL

SLOVER

E
L

M

LIBERTY

C
O

M
E

T

A
Y

A
L

A

TELEGRAPHCANYON

VENTU
R

E

E Lexington Ave

MANZANITA

D
A

N
A

I 15 -
I 215

S
K
U

LLY

R
ID

G
E

S
M

IT
H

CAN
Y

O
N

CRE
S

T

A
G

U
A

M
A

N
S

A

WALNUT

Tonner

Canyon Rd

MOUNTAIN

HIGH

3
N

2
1

C
O

N
C

H
A

W
IN

E
V

IL
L

E

M
A

R
IO

N

F
R

A
N

K

B
E

N
S

O
N

TER
R
A

VISTA

MORENO

M
IL

L
S

C
o
b
a
l

C
a
n
yo

n
 M

tw
y

SANTAFE FIR

E

STAT E
6

0

- I 1
5

S
C

H
O

L
A

R

1
S

T

SCENIC

3N22

GRANADA

HILTON

M
A

IN

S
IE

R
R

A
M

A
D

R
E

DUNCAN

CANYON

S
U

M
N

E
R

1
2

T
H

RAILROAD

ACCESS

H
E

R
M

O
S

A

W
A

R
D

M
A

N
B

U
L

L
O

C
K

G

X2N47

S
torrs

P
l

H
A

M
N

E
R

Wright St

K
a

th
ry

n

A
v
e

26TH

CERES

M
A

R
C

O
N

A

T
O

N
N

E
R

C
A

N
Y

O
N

STATE

HWY 60

D
E

C
L
IF

F

P
R
O

S
P
E
C

T

P
A

T
S

R
A

N
C

H

D
U

L
L

E
S

A
S

H
W

O
O

D

FERREE

8TH

C
A

T
A

W
B

A

S
 H

u
n

t i
n

g
t o

n
 S

t

I 15-STATE
210

4
W

D
R

oa
d

SLAUGHTER

CANYON

3N44

2N53

PRINCETON

CONCOURS

POMONA

C
A

R
N

E
G

IE

M
O

N
T

E
R

E
Y

FERON
C

O
N

N
IN

G

Decorah Rd

U
N
IO

N

M
IL

L
IK

E
N

D
A

T
E

A
L

D
E

R

CANOGA

P
A

R
C

O

C
A

M
P

U
S

UPLAND

CORNELL

BOYLE

IVY

E
V

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

ROSEMARY

BICKMORE

VALENCIA

BANYON

FRANCIS

EDISON

MARYGOLD

A
L
T
A

A
L

M
O

N
D

S
R

e
s
e

rv
o

ir
S

t

L
IN

D
S

A
Y

PERSIMMON

R
O

C
K

E
F

E
L

L
E

R

L
O

C
U

S
T

SAN

BERNARDINOL
U

C
A

S
R

A
N

C
H

WASHINGTON

K
E

N
N

E
T

H

MIRO

A
V

O
N

P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N

E 1st St

PHILLIPS

LIMONITE

EL RIVINO

P
A

R
K

P
L

A
C

E

POWERLINE

W
O

O
D

L
A

W
N

CASA GRANDE

B
U

T
T

E
R

F
IE

L
D

R
A

N
C

H

C
L

E
V

E
L

A
N

D

B
A

R
R

IN
G

T
O

N

PITMAN
CANYON

C
A

B
E

R
N

E
T

S
U

M
M

IT

V
A

L
L
E

Y

E
L P

R
A
D

O

CHINO

HILLS

GLENVIE
W

FAIR
FIELD

R
AN

C
H

BARHARBOR

GRANITE
HILL

C
E

L
E

B
R

A
T

IO
N

S
U

M
M

IT
T

R
U

C
K

STO
N
EV

IE
W

2N58

C
A

R
M

E
L

C
R

O
W

N

3N53

R
IV

E
R

P
U

R
C

E
L
L

SCHLEISMAN

3
N

4
9

S
TATE

 60

E
X
IT 12 A

11TH

U
P

P
E

R

A
L
IS

O

2
N

5
6

INSTITUTION

GALLOPING

HILLS

N
orth

R
id

ge
R
d

C
A

L
A

B
A

S
H

STONERIDGE

3
N

6
6
A

1
N

4
4

VALLEY

D
E

E
R

C
R

E
S

T

C
le

a
r

C
re

e
k

L
n

STATE

HWY 210
HIGHLAND

34TH

3N31

T
A

M
A

R
IN

D

H
E

L
E

N C
U

C
A

M
O

N
G

A

CHANDLER

7TH

65TH

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

Dare Ct

BELLEGRAVE

1
N

36

20TH

2N79

OLD GUASTI

A
P

P
LE

W
H

IT
E

P
A

C
I F

IC

M
A

Y
H

E
W

C
E

N
T

R
A

L

E
S

Q
U

IL
IM

E

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

RICHTON

TAYLOR

P
A

L
M

E
T

T
O

P
A

L
E

R
M

O

K
E

T
T

E
R

IN
G

I 15E
X
IT 124

STONEHURST

O
N

T
A

R
IO

A
R

M
S

T
R

O
N

G

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

I 15 CAJON

SCALES

CORRAL

G
RAND

B
U

N
K

H
O

U
S

E

K
A

IS
E

R

HALL

RANCH

RESEARCH

PEBBLE

BEACH

S
T
A

T
E

H
W

Y
7
1

3N31YA

LA

PALM
A

F
A

IR
W

A
Y

2N
55A

1
N

3
3

JOHNSON

1N35

S
A

N
T
A

A
N

IT
A

3N06

SCOUT

CABLE

CANYON

MCCARTY

CHINO
CORONA

2N61

LY
T

L
E

 C
R

E
E

K

SHEA

M
C

C
A

R
T
H

Y

BACK
STRAIGHT

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E

L
IN

E

PotatoeMountain Mtwy

CASMALIA

M
C

D
E

R
M

O
N

T

FERNCOVE

S
H

O
R

T
C

U
T

DEVILS
BACKBO

NE

COLLEGE

PARK

R
IN

C
O

N

KEENBROOK

NAPA

Unnamed
Street

3N66

RIDGE

A
L
L
U

V
IA

L

Green
River Rd

Glendora

Ridge Rd

1
N

34
A

STATE 91 -

STATE 71

C
L
E

A
R

W
A
T
E
R

KINGS

RANCH

F
IR

E

S
T
A
T
IO

N

1N34

CARBON

CANYON

V
E
R

D
EM

O
NT

R

A
N
C

H

H
O

LL
Y

2N87

CAJON

3N06D

BOBCATRIDGE

BLUE
R
ID

G
E

TRU
C
K

REMINGTON

SCULLYRIDG
E

1N32

W
IR

E
S

P
R

IN
G

S

3
N

5
5

2N49A

AUTO CLUB
SPEEDWAY

2
N

5
7

2
N

5
2

HORSETHIEFCANYON

2N
79A

SC
ULLY

HILL

1
N

2
7

BurbankMtwy

S
TA

R
LI

G
H
T

3N
33

3N06A

2N45

3N39

3N51

3N06B

ONTARIO

PEAK

P
O

M
O

N
A

R
IN

C
O

N

6W01

3N08

2
N

4
6

FALLS

ICEHOUSECANYON

S
u
n
se

t R
idge

F
ire

Rd

2
N

0
4

LAFCO ____

Consolidation of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District

and the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (a Municipal Water District)

Section Lines

Those Portions of: Township 1 North, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M., Township 1 South, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M., Township 2 South, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M.,
and Township 3 South, Ranges 7 & 8 West, S.B.M.,San Bernardino County, State of California.

0 12,000 24,000 36,000 48,0006,000
Feet

Site Location

_̂
County Boundary

Inland Empire Utilities Agency Area
Containing 153,262.39 Acres, More or Less

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY

RIVERSIDE COUNTY

S
A

N
 B

E
R
N

A
R

D
IN

O
 C

O
U
N

T
Y

O
R

A
N

G
E
 C

O
U
N

T
Y

S
A

N
 B

E
R

N
A

R
D

IN
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

L
O

S
 A

N
G

E
L

E
S

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

1 inch = 6,000 feet

±
THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION

James I. Stone                                                 Date

Deputy County Surveyor

PLS 9075                    Exp. 3/31/2018
Job Number 00146CP0 - Revised July 13, 2016

07/13/2016



APPENDIX F 



Environmental Recommendation 
from Tom Dodson 

     



Tom DODSON & ASSOCIATES

2150 N. ARROWHEAD AVENUE
SAN BERNARDINO, CA 92405

TEL( 909) 882- 3612 > FAX( 909) 882-'7015 1

E-MAIL tda@tdaenv. com

February 28, 2015

2mgmuTmoMs. Kathleen Rollin---s-McDonalds-McDonald MAR p5 2015
Local Agency Formation Commission
215 North T Street, Suite 204 € , FCO

San Bernardino, CA 92415- 0490
San Bernardino County

Dear Kathy

LAFCO 3174 consists of a Service Review for Water Conservation in the Valley
Region. The primary agencies encompassed by the service review would include: 

San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District
Chino Basin Water Conservation District

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District
San Bernardino County Flood Control District, and
Other Agencies considered but of lesser importance include: City of Chino, 
City of Chino Hills, City of Redlands, City of SanBernardino( Municipal
Water Department, City of Upland, Cucamonga Valley Water District, East
Valley Water District, Monte Vista Water District, Riverside Highland
Mutual Water Company, West Valley Water District and Yucaipa Valley Water
District. 

This Service Review will be received and filed by the Commission without taking
any action that could change the environment. As we have learned from previous

service reviews, only when the subsequent step is taken to physically revise the
jurisdictional boundary or to provide new services does a potential for physical
change in the environment occur. Thus, the proposed action presented above is

not judged to pose any identifiable adverse changes to the physical environment. 

Therefore, I recommend that the Commission find that a Statutory Exemption ( as
defined in the California Environmental Quality Act, CEQA) applies to LAFCO 3174
under Section 15061 ( b) ( 3) of the State CEQA Guidelines, which states: A

project is exempt from CEQA if the activity is covered by the general rule that. 
CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing significant
effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no

possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the
environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA." It is my opinion, and

recommendation to the Commission, that this circumstance applies to LAFCO 3174. 



In this case, adopting the proposed action does not alter the existing operations
or obligations of the affected agencies and does not adversely affect any

existing physical facilities. Based on this review of LAFCO 3174 and the
pertinent sections of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines; I conclude that LAFCO
3174 does not constitute a project under CEQA and adoption of the Statutory
Exemption and filing of a . Notice of Exemption is the most appropriate
determination to comply with CEQA for this action. The Commission can approve

this review and finding for this action and I recommend that you notice LAFCO
3174 as statutorily exempt from CEQA for the reasons outlined in the State CEQA
Guideline section cited above. The Commission needs to file a Notice of

Exemption ( NOE) with the County Clerk of the Board for this action once it is
completed. 

A copy of this memorandum and the NOE should be retained in the LAFCO project
file to serve as verification of this evaluation and as the CEQA environmental
determination record. If you have any questions, please feel free to give me a
call. 

Sincerely, 

Tom Dodson

2













































































































of Congress from California wrote letters urging federal officials to reconsider and reject the 
proposal.  
 
Ultimately, the National Marine Fisheries Service and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Services officials 
chose an alternate plan that should not result in cutbacks to contracted farm water deliveries. The 
newly adopted plan will still allow for ample cool water for endangered winter-run Chinook 
salmon during the warm summer months.  
 
The plan calls for the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation officials to closely monitor temperatures in 
Shasta Lake, to determine if the temperatures get too warm for the salmon. If they do, releases 
will be cut back to ensure cooler water is available. If project operators are unable to keep the 
Sacramento River cool enough, more cutbacks may still be in order for farmers who have already 
planned and planted crops for this year’s growing season. 
 
Stanford Study Reveals More Groundwater Storage  
Stanford scientists may have discovered as much as three times more freshwater in the state’s 
groundwater aquifer than was previously observed. The water was discovered in eight different 
counties, including the Central Valley, from 1,000-3,000 feet deep (as deep as 9,000 feet). 
Previous groundwater availability estimates were only as deep as 1,000 feet. The research was 
completed for Colusa, Yolo, Solano, Fresno, Kern, Santa Barbara, Ventura, and Los Angeles 
counties. 
 
Due to the location and depths of the water, there are concerns that the water could be more 
saline, and that drilling that deep could cause additional land subsidence. Water quality concerns 
are also due to the water’s proximity to many oil and gas wells.  
 
The authors of the study used state databases to analyze deeper water chemistry. Their results are 
based on an extrapolation of previous estimates and data from the California Department of 
Conservation’s Division of Oil, Gas and Geothermal Resources (DOGGR) database, which has 
data sheets on oil and gas fields and wells. The database includes not just fracking, but also 
injection wells and other activity. The researchers said this was a first order estimate, and more 
sampling is needed to refine their estimate, before studying what would happen as a result of 
pumping this far down for water. 
 
The full study was published in the journal Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences 
and a brief is available at http://woods.stanford.edu/sites/default/files/JacksonKang-
DeepGroundwaterBrief-2016FINAL.pdf     
 
Legislative Update 
Before the Legislature recessed for their month-long summer break, all bills had to be out of 
their second-house policy committees. Bills that are still alive are now awaiting action in the 
Senate and Assembly Appropriations Committees. Bills must reach the floor by August 12 and 
both houses will be in floor sessions until the August 31 end of session deadline.  
 
With the Legislature gone for the month of July, no action has occurred on any legislation. 
Below is a status report significant pieces of legislation still being considered: 



























































































































































































































































































General Manager’s Report Regarding Agency Activities 
August 17, 2016 
Page 4 of 14 
 
Groundwater Recharge – June 2016 
During June 2016, recycled water recharge totaled 1,286 acre-feet. There was no imported water 
delivered.  The capture of dry weather creek flows totaled 47 acre-feet.  There were no rain events 
during this period. A detailed summary of the Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Operations can be 
found at http://www.ieua.org/category/reports/groundwater-recharge-reports. 
 
Groundwater Recharge – July 2016 (Preliminary) 
During July 2016, recycled water recharge totaled 610 acre-feet. There was no imported water 
delivered.  The capture of dry weather creek flows totaled 31 acre-feet.  There were no rain events 
during this period.  A detailed summary of the Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Operations can 
be found at http://www.ieua.org/category/reports/groundwater-recharge-reports. 
 
Total Groundwater Recharge – June 2016 

 

 
 
Recycled Water Delivered to Groundwater Recharge – June 2016 

 






















	8-17-2016 IEUA Board Meeting Package Part 2.pdf
	Consent Calendar 1J cont.
	Consent Calendar 1K
	Action Item 2A
	Information Item 3A
	Information Item 3B
	Information Item 3C
	Information Item 3D
	Information Item 3E
	Information Item 3F
	Information Item 3G
	Information Item 3H
	Information Item 3I
	Information Item 3J
	Information Item 3K
	Information Item 3L
	Information Item 3M
	Information Item 3N
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4A
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4B
	Agency Representatives' Reports 4D
	General Managers' Report 5

	Resolution 2016-8-1 Application for LAFCO Consolidation of CBWCD and IEUA.pdf
	Exhibit A.pdf
	IEUA Plan for Service with Figures and Appendices 8-17-16.pdf
	IEUA Plan for Service including Figures 8-17-16.pdf
	Figure 10 - Consolidated Organizational Chart.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7

	Figure 9 - CBWCD Organizational Chart.pdf
	Figure 8 - IEUA Organizational Chart.pdf
	Figure 7 - Comparison of Audited Balance Sheets.pdf
	Figure 6 - Chino Creek Wetland Map and Legend.pdf
	Chino Creek Park Map-Figure 6
	Slide Number 1

	Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park Legend (2)

	Figure 5 - CBWCD Water Conservation Center Campus.pdf
	Figure 4 - CBWCD Facilities.pdf
	Figure 3 - IEUA Facilities.pdf
	Figure 2 - CBWCD Facility Locations.pdf
	Figure 1 - Consolidated Boundary Map.pdf
	IEUA Plan for Service 8-17-16.pdf

	APPENDIX A.pdf
	consolidated 2015 Service Review for Water Conservation.pdf
	APPENDIX B.pdf
	10-1-1969 #2.pdf
	9-14-1973.pdf
	12-31-1982 #4.pdf
	9-6-2014.pdf
	APPENDIX C.pdf
	Appendix C - Four Party Agreement.pdf
	APPENDIX D.pdf
	Appendix D - CBWCD Staff Policy Manual.pdf
	APPENDIX E.pdf
	Appendix E - CBWCD Legal Boundaries Map.pdf
	Appendix E - IEUA Legal Boundaries Map.pdf
	Appendix E- Consolidated IEUA & CBWCD Legal Boundaries Map.pdf
	APPENDIX F.pdf
	EIR LAFCO-Doddson.pdf
	ADPDB80.tmp
	Environmental Recommendation  from Tom Dodson
	Attachment 3






